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CHALLENGES CONFRONTING AMERICAN
INDIAN YOUTH

TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 1995

U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON INDJIAN AFFAIRS,
Washington, DC.
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m. in room 485,
Senate Russell Building, Hon. Daniel Inouye (vice chairman of the
committee) presiding.
Present: Senators Inouye, Kassebaum, and Simon.

STATEMENT OF HON. DANIEL K. INOUYE, U.S. SENATOR FROM
HAWAII, VICE CHAIRMAN, COMMITTEE ON INDIAN AFFAIRS

Serator INOUYE. The committee meets this morning to receive
testimony frora those Federal agencies that administer programs
authorized te address challenges confronting American Indian
youth. This morning’s hearing is a followup to an oversight hearing
which was held by this committee 1 month ago on Feb-uary 9.

At that tiine, the committee received Lestimony from young In-
dian men and women representing reservation communities and
urban areas across Indiar country regarding the challenges facing
them as Indian youth. The testimony of tribal youth was an impor-
tant opportunity for the committee to hear from a new generation
of Indian leaders. These young men and women identified critical
challenges they face, including aleohol and substance abuse, sexual
and child abuse, suicide, educational needs, employment needs,
teenage pregnancy, environmental challenges, violence, and the in-
filtration of gangs in reservation and urban Indian commumtnes
and cultural isolation in urban areas.

The objective of this morning’s hearing is to identify how the
U.5, Government might better address the needs of Indian youtih
in ]the development of Federal laws, Federal programs, and Federal
policies.

Before I call upon the witnesses, we have two panels, may I rec-
ognize my dear colleague from Illinois, Mr. Simon.

Senator Sivon. I thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no great
werds of wisdom. I look forward to hearing what the panel hag to
cay. | will have to get to a meeting of the Judiciary Committee
also, 50 [ won't be able to be here for the full hearing.

Senator INOUYE. Then may I call upon the first panel, the Assist-
ant Secretary of Indian Affairs of the Bureau of Indian Affairs, Ada
Deer; and the Director of the Indian Health Service, U.S. Depart-
ment of Health and Human Services, Dr. Michael Trujillo.

Madam Secretary, welcome.

o
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STATEMENT OF ADA DEER, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF INDIAN
AFFAIRS, BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, US. DEPARTMENT
OF THE INTERIOR, WASHINGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY
JOANN SEBASTIAN MORRIS, ACTING DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF
TRIBAL SERVICES; JAMES MARTIN, OFFICE OF INDIAN EDU-
CATION PROGRAMS; AND THEOIXORE QUASULA, CHIEF, DIVI-
SION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Ms. DEER. Good morning, Senator Inouye and Senator Simon. It
is good to be here again before this friendly forum and interested
grou . T also did meet with members of the youth group that testi-
ied here several weeks. Youths and the problems of youths are
ve:{ significant to me, very important to me, being a social worker
and working with many of the youth programs at various levels.

I am pleased to be here to spesk to the many challenges facing
Americon Indian and Alaska Native youth today. My staff who at-
tended gour hearing on February 9 were moved by the testimony
provided by the eight young people, At the Bureau of Indian Affairs
[BIA], we are doing our part to alleviate the pain and alienation
faced br our youth, and we realize that there is much, much more
that all of us can do. At the BIA, we believe that tribal govern-
ments, communities, and families must share the responsibility for
addressing the challenges our youth face.

I have with me today Joann Sebastian Morris, who is the Acting
Director of the Office of Tribal Services; Dr. James Martin, Office
of Indian Education Programs; and Theodore Quasula, Chief, Divi-
sion of Law Enforcement. They will assist me in responding to any
technical questions that the committee may have.

I would like to swamarize mgr tgreparEd statement and request
that my full statement be part of the record.

Senator INOUYE. So ordered.

Ms. DEER. As agents of the Federal Government, it is our duty
and responsibility to do all we can to improve circumstances for In-
dian youth. The multiple challenges they face are the direct result
of historical policies and practices of our Government. When Indian
children were forcibly removed from their homes and community,
the entire makeup of the community and its structures were for-
ever changed. Parents without children in the home for years at a
time forgot how to parent. They became deegly saddened by the
loss of their beloved children and despondent that their culture was
deemed unfit in which to raise children. Their primary role as
caregivers was eliminated. The aunts and uncle who in most tribes
were considered surrogate parents also formally played an impor-
tant role in the upbringing of youth, for disciplining them or for
teaching them certain skills anc'r social responsibilities. Their roles
too were eliminated by our Federal removal policies.

Grandparents and other elders had especially critical roles in the
uﬁbringmg and in developing healthy and responsible citizens.
They were responsible for transmitting the deep sﬁiritual and cul-
tural lessons to tribal youth, It was tne elders who set the times

for naming ceremonies, the recognition of a boy's first hunt or a
girl’s puberty, the whole range of events making up the community
ceremonial cycle. Many of these ceremonies could no longer be car-
ried out with no children in the community end many are now lost.
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In sirnilar fashion, the key role of clan relatives in those tribes
that followed the clan system was to educate the youth as to their
proper role in society and the contribution they were expected to
make through participation in activities and ceremonies of the clan.
The connection to their clan relatives was also destroyed by our
Federal policy of removing Indian youth from the community.

So, as you see, our legacy and influence have been extensive and
it is our duty now in the 20th century to repair the damage done.
As a social worker, I have seen far too many Indian children grow
up in families where risk factors are high, such as: Poverty, rural
tsolation, cultural alienation, poor healtg, and low educational at-
tainment of parents. In my formal testimony, I cited the unfortu-
nate statistics which defirie the lives of far too many Indian youth.
We must realize that the consequences of being raised amid mul-
tiple risk factors reach far beyond individual Eves to impact the
total well-being of communities and soverei(f‘n nations.

The problems that currently plague Indian youth evolved over
time and will not disappear overnight. What is required is action
that is thoughtful, broad-based, and sustained. Solutions will de-
pend on strong tribal leadership and the concerted effort of every
sector of Indian society.

At a time when the Federal Government is seeking ways to re-
duce its presence, the BIA must take every opportunity to partner
with tribes and other Federal entities to meet the obligations to
tribal people. Particularly as it relates to issues surrounding Indian
youth and families, my staff working in the BIA child protection,
social services, judicial services, education, alcohol and substance
abuse prevention, and law enforcement are meeting consistently as
joint work groups. These efforts will continue.

My formal testimony points out the many ways that we cooper-
ate and collaborate with other Federal agencies, particularly with
our colleagues at Indian Health Service. The key Federal agencies
with whom we are working closely include Health and Human
Services, Education, and Justice. In addition, my staff serve on sev-
eral Federal interagency task forces or councils that meet quarterly
to share information, rezources, and leadership.

A personal goal I didn’t pinpoint in my formal testimony is m
desire to serve as a catalyst and to bring together our Federal col-
leagues with other national organizations who work on youth is-
sues and ask each %o commit to resolving some of the challenges
facing Indian youth by determining which agency or group can con-
tribute which piece of the solution, and then actively implementing
our cooperative solutions. In my formal testimony I cited a wide
range of programs, activities, and innovations which several BIA
offices are implementing. Yet, we must remember that the role of
the Federal Government, including the BIA, is principally to be
supportive of Indian tribes in their quest for solutions to the chai-
lenges facing their youth.

I would like to offer one suggestion that wasn’t previously cited.
As a university lecturer on leave, I believe in good research. There
is a growing body of valuable and valid research that has been con-
ducted on Indian youth. BIA staff often have the opportunity to
meet with the researchers themselves and regularly to obtain cop-
ies of this research. Such opportunities are rare to staff working di-
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rectly in Indian country. Tribal level staff are so engaged in the
day-to-day running of programs and saving young lives that they
have neither the time nor resources available at the local level to
investigate what new approaches are working well with Indian
youth. The BIA can play a greater role in sharing information on
the latest of promising practices. We can do more of this through
our two current publications “Linkages” of the Social Services Divi-
gion, and the “Prevention Quarterly” of the Office of Alcohol and
Substance Abuse Prevention. We can do thig at all upcoming meet-
ings and conferences, such as the National Indian Family Preven-
tion Conference we are cospongoring next month with IHSJ.,

The guantity of research on at-risk Indian youth is limited but
the findings continue to repeat similar themes. We know what the
risk factors are that most impact Indian youth and we have re-
search available on methodologies that have worked well with In-
dian youth. It is our job at the BIA to share that information as
broadly as possible across Indian country. That will be only one of
the expanded support services we will provide directly to Indian
communities in the months ahead.

1 am also proud to announce that we will be hostin%_ 24 young
American Indian interns in the BIA Central Office and field offices
this summer. They will range from college sophomores to graduate
students and will receive weekly stipends as well as travel cost cov-
ering all expenses for the 10 week period they are with us.

T would like to emﬁhasize that the Degar’t.ment and the BIA will
continue to work with this committee and other agencies to address

the challenges faced by Indian youth.

This concludes iy opening statement. I will be pleased to answer
questions that the cominittee may have.

{(Prepared statement of Ms. Deer appears in appendix.]

Senator InouYE. Thank you very much,

May I now call on Dr, Trujillo.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL TRUJILLO, M.D., DIRECTOR, INDIAN
HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, WASHINGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY SCOTT NEL-
SON, M.D., CHIEF, MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAMS BRANCH; JO-
HANNA CLEVENGER, M.D., CHIEF, ALCOHOLISM SUBSTANCE
ABUSE PROGRAM BRANCH; AND CRAIG VANDERWAGEN,
M.D., DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF CLINICAL AND PREVENTIVE
SERVICES

Mr., TrUJILLo. Good morning, Senator Inouye and Senstor
Simon. With me today I have Dr. Scott Nelson, who is in charge
of our mental health programs; Dr, Johanna Clevenger, who is in
charge of our alcohol programs; and Dr. Vanderwagen, who i8 in
charge of our community and special initiatives in preventive pro-
grams in the Indian Health Service.

As you mentioned in the conference that was held in the Senate
hearing several weeks ago, the American Indian and Alaska Native
youth are leaders of tomorrow and key to the future of Indian com-
munities and Indian people. Our Indian Health Service population
that we deal with is 1.3 million people, and 40 percent of those in-
dividuals are Indian youth. The median age of our service popu-
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lation is 22 years, and in some reservations that median age is
even younger, 18 and 19 years.

Being an Indian youth is detrimentsl to one’s health and some-
times life. There are many behavioral health issues. The most in-
tense area of conflict facing American Indian and Alaska Native
teenagers was highlighted in the testimony that was given before
you on February 8.

In a past University of Minnesota study in 1988, many health
compromisin§ behaviors and risk facters were identified, including
unintentional injuries, substance abuse, poor self-assessed health
status, emotional status, and suicide. In 1990, in association with
the Indian Health Service and the Office of Technology Assess-
ment, many of those issues were again readdressed and also high-
lighted the limited resources available to IHS that went to treat
them or prevent those problems.

The three leading causes in regards to death for American Indi-
ans and Alaska Native youths between the ages of 15 and 24 years
are accidents, suicides, and homicides. Aleohelism, drug abse, de-
pression, suicide attempts, school dropouts, anti-social behgvior in-
cluding gang membership now in the reservations and other places,
teenage pregnancy, and sexually transmitted disease also occur na-
tionwide, both in the reservation and also in the urban setting, for
Indian youth.

There are many contributing factors that have been acknowl-
edged and have geen cited, including continued oppression, dis-
crimination, racism, loss of culture and language, loss of tradition,
dysfunction within the family with sometimes the history and the
pattern of family violence and also abuse.

In my commitment, including in my Senate confirmation state-
ment of last year at this time, and within the Indian Health Serv-
ice I have felt and have tried to bring forward within the service
the commitment of the Indian Health Service to Indian children
and adolescents as one of the highest priorities in addition to try-
ing to facilitate and see how we can coordinate programs within
our service with other agencies and programs in the public health
service and with the Bureau of Indian airs and Department of
Justice.

There is a necessity for continuation and strengthening of the
suicide and family violence prevention programs, especially in
intervention, early identification, and training of staff at all levels,
There is a necessity for increasing and strengthening collaborative
agreements that have been signed and to put them on an oper-
ational level not only at the regional and headquarters level, but,
most essentially, at the local level which involves multidisciplinary
coordinated dedicated staff. The resources to run these programs
are oftentimes limited. But if we sometimes put our heads together
around the table, those resources can be extended and leveraged
with the cooperation and coordination of a number of individuals
and agencies and tribes.

Alcohol and substanee abuse prevention treatment is sometimes
the major problem and those problems must be treated first. There
are numerous tribal programs that have been established and are
excellent. Urban programs are now being set up that also coordi-
nate with other programs within the State and local area and also

9
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tribes, including sor.c centers that deal with families and where
farnilies are able to bring their children and thus enabling them to
be part of the whole process of treatment, and in-patient treatment
programs and evaluation. Essentially when we start talking about
treatment, we have to discuss what happens after the person
leaves the center in regards to post-treatment. After care and out-
patient treatment are essential. Beh- «oral intervention programs
to prevent the problem are critical. Collaboration with the BIA and
other programs is critical to addressing the numerous problems in
Indian countr{v.

Mental health, social services, and child abuse programs, unfor-
tunately staffing in those areas is far below the need. Staffing in
mental health is about 43 percent; in social services, 21 percent of
the need. We have establislged within the Indian Health ervice, in
cooperation with tribes and urban pro%rama,_ some demonstration
programs in those areas involving multidisciplinary and collabe-
rative approaches.

One of the major problems facing Indian youth is accidents and
unintentional injuries, Iarielely from automobile accidents which
occur as a result of risk-taking behavior. There have been identi-
fied nationwide demonstration programs also critical in regards to
the use of aleohol and depression as part of that problem. We have
established a fellowship in injury prevention. And some major as-
ﬁects in regards to the effect of implementinﬁ prevention programs

ave been demonstrated, including that on the Navajo Reservation

with the use of seatbelts, also the judicial and the corrections part
involving the implementation by the tribe in strengthening the

legal aspects for prevention of accidents.

The areas of collaborative agreements have been made with the
BIA, the Centers for Mental Health Services, the Center for Sub-
stance Abuse Prevention Programs in SAMHSA, CDC has been in-
volved in many of our lgrograms, the National Center for Child
Abuse and Neglect, the Department of Justice at various levels, es-
gecial]y the tribes and other Indian organizations, Headstart has

een involved, the National Center for American Indian and Alas-
kan Native Mental Health Research at the University of Colorado
has also been involved.

At our past hearing before the Senate on the budget, Senator Do-
menici also mentioned the possikbility of collaborating with other
centers, the University of New Mexico. He discussed this issue with
Secretary Shalala in regards to more collaborative efforts within
the Indian Health Service, the Department, and the Public Health
Service. The Secretary and Doctor Lee are very supportive of that
aspect.

e areas of cultural values, tredition, community and family are
essential. I se¢ as I travel in Indian country and meet with tribal
leaders and see organizations and programs a return fo cultural
pride and language which had been lost before. The reinstitution
of traditional family networks in the community and among them-
selves in regards to the family and interrelationships are hopefully
being strengthened, rekindling self-esteem and pride especially
among the youth, and also the establishment and reestablishment
and strengthening of those ceremonies that you have in regards to
the ages and the rites of passage from children into adulthood.




There have been established many youth groups, including
UNITY and Running Strong, teenage groups and teen centers
throughout the Nation that we support and encourage. They pro-
mote approaches and strategies for healthier lives and also
strengthen and emphasize the necessity for education among the
youth. As an example of a local initiative, unfortunately because of
a tragedy on the Pine Ridge Reservation where was a young girl
who was an exceptional basketball athlete, her name was SueAnne
Big Ciow, unfortunately, as she was identified as a major athlete
within the State of South Dakota, she was killed in a car accident,
her family and those individuals have established a program that
recognizes her accomplishments as well as some of the accomplish-
ments that she was working with her fellow teens on in regards to
living « healthier life without drugs, without alcohol. They have es-
tablished a center in Pine Ridge in her memory and they are work-
ing at trying to establish a8 gym and other activities for the youth
in that area. They are building, as they say, a “happy town” where
life is good, where drugs, aleohol, prejudice, and jealousy don't
exist. I had the opportunity to visit that center and was quite in-
pressed with the process tj;at was happening, with the ability for
them to go forward despite the tragedy among the family and also
the community to establish a better, healthier life style.

The lack of economic opportunities, the lack of social develop-
ment in many Indian communities and urhan programs are there
and well recognized. The same problems are also faced by youth
throughout the Nation in any minority program because of the so-
cial/economic status that is there. Unfortunately tur American Indi-
ans and Alaska Natives, the problems are highlighted because of
the lack sometimes of the cultural values and the families that are
dysfunctional.

Education is a mainstay that needs to be addressed as we pgo
forth not only in the healtﬁ issues and the social areas, but the es-
sence of education for youth and the opportunities that are there.

In this time when ti’uere is decreasing resources or limited re-
sources, whenthere is discussion of block grants going to States for
other programs, where do Indian youth, Indian tribes and individ-
uals and organizations sit in that process? I hope as the budgets
are discussed for various programs in SAMHSA, in CDC, in NiH,
and other programs in which we also are secking funding and In-
dian tribes are able to obtain resources from those programs, that
those resources will continue to also enable Indian youth to indeed
become leaders of our future, As I grew up at Laguna, I think life
wag a lot easier then. I had a family that was supportive of my
education, my grandmother was there and we had a large extended
family. I remember going home each Sunday afternoon to grand-
ma's where the family met and ate fogether, Unfortunately, when
I go back home, I see oftentimes those relationships and those fam-
ilies are no longer there and you have the problems of alcohol, drug
abuse, gangs, and other problems that I cited,

I hope that together the Congress, the administration, and our
service programs can indeed address the problems 3o that we can
go forward and perhaps next year at this time we can say these
were the things that we set out to do, we've done them, and how
can we go forward together to strengthen those programs so that
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indeed our American Indian and Alaska Mative youth can become
the leaders and embellish our programs with the values and tradi-
tion of Indian people. Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Mr. Trujillo apgears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. I thank you very much, Doctor.

I left the hearing on February 9 with a sense of optimism and
feeling of hope. The voices I heard were promising and the voices
I heard spoke of a future. But I must tell you with all candor that
for the past 8 years, whenever I chaired hearinps listening to our
Government witnesges—whether they be Democra. or Republican—
responding to the needs of our youth, I would leave the hearing
much depressed, much anfgered, and frustrated. I must say that [
will leave this hearing, unfortunately, feeling the same way.

The situation, if anything, has gotter: worse. No matter what the
numbers seem to tell you, with a few exceptions, and I say a very
few exceptions, the unemployment rate in Indian country ranges
anywhere from about 50 percent to 95 percent, as compared to 5.7
percent for our Nation; the men and women below the aze of 20
in the United States is about 29-30 percent, whereas for Indian
country it is about 40 percent; the suicide rate, maybe it has im-
proved because ten years ago it was about four times the national
norm, is about three times the national norm today; and for rea-
sons of their own, great national organizations that are common-
place in all other areas are rare in Indian country, such as the
YMCA, the YWCA, the Boy Scouts, the Girl Scouts. Thank God we
have UNITY but that is one organization.

And 80 with all of this, one would think that we may be spending
a little more money than we would in the rest of America. But such
is not the case, ag you know. In fact, the amounts recommended
this year are less than what it was last year. And added to that,
we have something new happening in Washington, DC, as a result
of an event, of November 8 of last year. We have programs such as
Drug Fres: Schools being wiped out in the other body; not redur  d,
wiped out. And yet your testimony does not reflect that. You seem
as though it is business as usual. And we are going to have block

ants if the other body has its way. And in the discussion and de-

ate on block irant, no one seems to refer to Indian sovereignty or
trust relations ig. The only relationship we hear about is the Fed-
eral and State. So the block grants go to the State and everyone
is put into that block grant. And guess where the Indians come
out? But somehow fyour testimony does not reflect that. Are we pre-
aring ourselves for this horrendous contingency? I just do not
now how to face this.

Secretary Deer, how much have you set aside for the young peo-
ple that we are responsible for? at are you going to do about
Drug Free Schools? They are going to be wiped out.

Ms. DEER. Let me say that 1t is within the power of the Congress
to make these budfet ecisions and I hope that in the Senate there
will be a more realistic approach taken to these programs. I regret
that many of them are being wiped out, especially the Drug Free
Schools program. We have an effective school program called
FACE. A number of these programs are very effective. To me, it is
a very short-term approach to wipe these out, because by nega-

12




g

tively impacting these young people, society is going to be paying
a much higher price later on.

Now in terms of the actual figures for the budget, I don't have
these off the top of my head but perhaps Ms. Morris does.

Senator INOUYE. Maybe you can assist me in this. I will not ask
questions beyond this because I do not think you are ready for it.
I would like to have a report from both of you as to what the im-
pact would be or what the outcome would be if some of the propos-
als that are now being considered by Congress become reality. 1
think it would be realistic on the part of the administration to an-
ticipate that many of the things being advecated today will become
law. And so T want to know what would happen if block grants
come in. Are you poing to fight for special block grants for Indian
country? Or are we just going to sit Lback and say I am sorry, that
is what Congress wants? (§r if they wipe out the Dru;.]f, Frec
Schools, what are we going to do to replace this? I would like to
know what you have in mind because I think the Congress would
want leadership from the experts. You have the staff and you have
the experts. So may I request that this committze be furnished
with your response to my general question within 1 week.

[Report appears in appendix.}

Ms. DEER. We will comply.

I would like w state in terms of block grants, legislation is being
developed in the Congress and 1 would like to request that there
be a special get aside for Native communities and that the recogni-
tion of the trust responsibility and the tribes’ sovereignty be recog-
nized and affirmed. T know that the tribes do not want to come
under the authority of the States in this whole block grant effort.
It is in the development of the legislation that this will be carried
out. My position will be to advo~ate for the tribes.

Senator INOUYE. Is the admiiustration prepared to so articulate
their position?

Ms. DEgR. I can’t speak for the entire Administration.

Senator INOUYE. Well, I would suggest that you tell the adminis-
tration they better do that; otherwise, Indian country will be the
boitom of the priority list. If last year's hearing was sad and de-
pressing, I think this one would be traumatic for me.

Senator KASSEBAUM.

STATEMENT OF HON. NANCY LANDON KASSEBAUM, U.S.
SENATOR FROM KANSAS

Senator KasskBaUM. Thank you, Senator Inouye. Assistant Sec-
retary, | am sorry to have missed your testitnony. I found, Dr. Tru-
jitlo, yours very eloquent ag far as the needs that are there that

ave to be met. I just would suggest that Senator Inouye's request
to you is a very valid one. And as we look to changes which are
coming here in the budget, it is going to be very important to have
some direction from you about how best to deal with this.

Just a couple of tﬁings. One is really directed more perhaps at
the next panel, but in mentionin% the chairman's comments as far
as the groups coming to work in Indian country, asking where are
the ¥’s, scouts, but T understand that the Boys and Girls Clubs are
working on a few of the reservation lands. And this, as I say, is
more for the next panel, but I believe that they have started some
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clubs. I don't know how successful they are, but I think it is very
important to encourage that communitv-type of effort. I have been
working, and Senator Inouye has been a cosponsor in the last Con-
gess and this one I hope as well, for the Youth Developraent Block
rant in which I think it is important to recognize that it is very
important to make sure that part of that effort, because it is di-
rected at the community and not the State, will be recognizing the
importance of the Native American youth work. I think the intern
rogram that you mentioned is interesting and an important step,
ut it really goes back to working ri%ht there.

And it all starts with education, In reading the comments from
the February 9 hearing, it is my understanding that a number of
the young people expressed the desire to have a youth council that
could really lend a stronger voice perhaps to what they saw. I think
that is important. I have always believed student councils should
be listened to more perhags by the boards of education and so forth
ag they develop policies. But also I thought it was interesting that
they expressed strong support for the establishment of a national
Indian university that could provide a culturalli; gensitive edu-
cational environment; not that that should be just PC, because that
isn’t going to be necessarily a strong and leading university. But
1 think the desire to have a focus for that education where there
could be great pride taken in the culture and the roots and the his-
tory coulﬁrbe important. So it is a voice that needs to be heard.
And in the issues of education and healthy behavior, helping work
througgh this in sort of a holistic way I think is very important.

So I guess I don’t have any specific questions other than times
are changing and to be able to be constructive in the process, I
think we%:‘\ave to work very closely together, Thank you and thank
you, Senator Inouye,

Senator INOUYE. I have a couple of questions. Secretary Deer,
ﬂou have two positions, the Child Protection Coordinator and Alco-

ol Substance Abuse ﬁirector, that have been open now I believe
for eight months. When will you fill those positions? I have been
told bﬁf all of you that these things are very important, but all you
have had for the 7 or 8 months are acting personnel.

Ms. DEER. I think part of the reason that they haven't been filled
has been the uncertainty regarding the restructuring and the
downsizinﬁ. I think that one of the positions is in the process of
being filled.

Ms. Morris. The child profection position was vacant for 4
months, We went through the process of advertising and I have
five applicants on my desk that just arrived last week after going
through the clearance process, So it is my responsibility within the
next week or so to have interviews on that and then we will fill
that position. The Director of OASAP position has been vacant for
just one month since Dr. Mason took another position in Albuquer-

ue. We are in the process of getting all of that paperwork moved
orward. That process has started to advertise that position as well.
n]S%r}?at,or INOUYE. Wil] you advise us when these positions are
illed?

Ms. MORRIS. Yes.

Senator INOUYE. Dr, Tryjillo, I just want a few numbers at this
time so that the people here at least can get a flavor of the work
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{{ou are doing. Ycu have an Alcohol and Substance Abuse Program.
as that been successful?
Mr. TRUJILLO. T believe the areas in treatment, prevention, and
education have been continuing, they have been growing. The ma-
Jority of the alcohol programs are through tribes with whom we
contract. They have also been intimately involved in that process.
I would add, however, because the problems are immense, that
while we have made some inroads into the problems in regards to
treatment, there still needs to be early identification. Prevention
and intervention is essential. The aftercare of individuals who go
through treatment programs is critical. The resources that are
needed there are vast. The involvement of families in the treat-
ment process and aftercare to assure that when individuals come
back to the family and to the communities there is indc=d a con-
tinuation of abstinence is essential.
Senator INOUYE. Have these programs stemmed the growth of
abuse among the {oung men and women of Indian country?
Mr. TRUJILLO. I believe in coordination wiin some of the youth
groups and communities in some areas, there have been some in-
roads. In some other areas in some programs, I would have to say
no, there hasn’t been. There has to be major efforts—
Senator INOUYE. Overall, the numbers are worse; are they not?
Mr. TRUJILLO. Yes; they are. They are continuing to grow. The
difficulty will become, as you mentioned earlier, and I do want to
add on to your comment—-
Senator INOUYE. What about youth suicides?
Mr. TruJiLLo. The suicides in regards to the multidisciplinary
problems that are there, the coordination, the early identification,
there has been some demonstration programs in some communities
that heve been very good in regards to stemming the problem of
suiciﬁe. However, that problem also continues to grow with Indian
youth.
Senator INOUYE. So numbers have gotten worse?
hMr. TRUJILLO. The numbers are still continuing to grow. Yes,
they are.

enator INOUYE. What about family violence involving youth?
Child abuse and such.

Mr. TRUJILLO. Family violence, child abuse, that is still continu-
ing. In some areas, the intervention interdisciplinary teams with
tribes, the BIA, the Department of Justice, and Indian Healih
Service have made some inroads. We have regional programs and
we also have local interdisciplinary teams. %‘he roblem is im-
mense, The difficulty in treatment is very hard. The treatment of
perpetrators is extremely difficult, besides those who have been
abused and the consequences that it occurs within the family and
the community.

Senator INQUYE. But statistically, it has gotten worse?

Mr. TRUJILLO. It is still growing, yes.

Senator INOUYE. What about accident prevention?

Mr. TRWILLO. That, again, is one of the major areas affectin r In-
dian youth in regards to the morbidity and mortality. There ,l:ave
been some very good demonstration programs, as I have cited on
the Navajo Reservation. There have been also identification of indi-
viduals within the Indian Health Service and with tribal programs
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who have been working very well with both the States, the tribes,
and prevention programs to identify areas where early intervention
can oceur to decrease the number of accidents. The accidents, for
the majority, are also in association with the use of alcohol, unfor-
tunately. And as alcohol abuse grows and risk behaviors oceur, it
also affects the statistics in accidents.

Senator INOUYE. [ cited these three areas because I was aware
that the numbers have gotten worse.

Mr. TRUJILLO. Yes.

Senator INOUYE. I cited this just as an example of what I want
from you in your next report 1 week from now as to what the im-
pact would be if we started block granting or eliminating certain
programs. Would these numbers get better or would they get
worse? That is what I and the committee would want to know.

Mr. TruJiLLo. The question this time i8 very critical as to how
it will affect Indian country. As I had mentioned in my testimony
before this committee on the budget of the Indian Health Service,
there are so:ae concerns in Indian country and among Indian lead-
ers and tribes as to when funds go to States in block grant compo-
nents, where are Indians? Are chey going to be at the table? Are
they going to be there wher options are developed? Within our pro-
gram at ﬁ'le Indian Health Service and Public Health Service, we
are going forward with sug%estions and working with Dr, Lee, the
Agsistant Secretary of Health, to include language in the block
grants of CCC and SAMHSA so that Indian tribes and Indian orga-
nizations also have that fundinF directly just as States. However,
the concern that we have is also that sometimes, unfortunately,
State programs stop at the reservation line.

Senator INOUYE. In both testimonies, not just today but in years
past, we have spoken of coordination of all of the Federal agencies,
and there are many, that are involved in Indian youth. Have we
gone beyond the talking stage? Are we coordinating? Are you work-
ing with Department of Justice with the U.S. attorneys, the De-
partment of Labor, or are we still talking about it? Secretary Deer?

Ms. DEER. I know in a number of instances we have gone beyond
talking and are actually doing it. For example, Ms, Morris has met
with Dr. Nelson here on a number of occasions. There have been
a number of meetings held between those two groups. I believe that
Mr. Becker in his testimony will perhaps touch on that new effort
in the Department of Justice’s Office of Tribal Justice. I myself
serve on some committees that are working at this. For example,
I am cochair of the Indian Economic Subcommittee and we are
making some good steps. It is still not enough but I believe we are
making progress.

Senator INOUYE. [ am going to ask all of the Government agen-
cies what they think about collaborative and cooperative effort. I
have been hearing about this for many years, but, so far, [ have
not heard much about results. So I would like to know what sort
of results we have achieved as a result of these efforts.

Ms. DEER, Good gqnestion. We can report that to you.

Senator KAssEBAUM. Mr. Chairman, if I could just make one
other observation. When you were talking about block grants, the
fipures have gotten worse under the monies and the procedures
that we heve now. I think what is important is not whether to

16




13

block grant or not block grant, it is to make things work better and
to be more effective in the use of the moneys that we have. |
couldn’t agree more strongly with the comments of Senator Inouye
about coordination. It involves education, the Indian Health Serv-
ice, the Department of the Interior, the BIA. And it is not just this
one area, it is so many others. It is hard here in the Senate to get
coordination sometimes, but I really feel that the success is rea%ly
not just whether to block grant or not to block grant, it is looking
at things perhaps in a different way and be willing to take scme
risks to get & better product. And that is what we simply have to
do. 1 support the directions that Senator Inouye has directed to
those testifying in trying to help us work together on this because
Ihthink it will strengthen these efforts, I would hope, not diminish
them.

Senator INoUYE. I do not want to embarrass Senator Kassebaum,
but Indian country is most fortunate that the U.S. Senate has a
Nancy Kassebaum. Cne of the few shining lights here, and there
are not too many of us around, [Lau%hter.]

Ms. DEER. Senator Inouye, if I could make a comment on Senator
Kassebaum’s statement. As long as we're talking about block
grants to the States, I would like to suggest that block grants to
the tribes be considered. I feel that they are sovereign entities and
we have had a lot of success in the compacting with the self-gov-
ernance {:rogTam. I think that as long as we're doing new ways and
new methods, this should definitely be considered.

Senator KASsEBAUM. Well, ma ge we could strike an agreement
that we can work towards that if, indeed, we see greater coordina-
tion among the different programs and agencies that we will be
block granting. As I say, I don’t think it is that so much as making
sure tﬁgt the delivery systems are improving. That is what I think
we need to work on.

Senator INoUYR., Thank you very much, Senator.

Thank you Secretary Deer and thank you Dr. Trujillo.

Now may I call upnn the Associate Assistant Secretary for Em-
ployment and Training, Department of Labor, Josephine Nieves;
the Director of the Office of Tribal Justice, Department of Justice,
Herb Becker; the Director of the Office of Native American Pro-
rams, Department of Housing and Urban Development, Dominic
essl.

May I first call upon the Associate Assistant Secretary for Em-
ployment and Training, Josephine Nieves.

STATEMENT OF JOSEPHINE NIEVES, ASSOCIATE ASSISTANT
SECRETARY FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING, DEPART-
MENT OF LABOR, WASHINGTON, DC

Ms. Nigves. Thank you. Mr. Chairman and members of the Com-
mittee on Indian Affairs, I really want to thank you for the oppor-
tunity of being able to discuss the Department of Labor's employ-
ment and training efforts for Indian youth. Our goal is to help pre-
are young Indians and Native Americans for productive work
ives.

To meet this challenge effectively, we believe it is essential to ad-
minister employment and training programs serving Indian youth
in a way that promotes local initiative and that respects the Indian
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cultural values. Currently, a new partnership between the Depart-
ment’s Division of Indian and Native American Programs, or
DINAP, and its 182 Indian and Native Ameri- an grantees is ensur-
ing that this principle is realized.

Agsisting Indian communities to overt:me the negative social
and economic conditions that lead to the suicide, violence, and di-
minished aspirations that have been described so passionately by
the Indian yeuth leaders before this committee on February 9 is a
solemn commitment of this administration. And I am pleased to
share with the committee the recent actions that have been taken
by the Department that show this commitment.

It was 1 year ago, the Department’s Assistant Secretary for Em-
ployment and Training, Doug Ross, testified before this committee.
He spoke about the Department’s programs for Indians and other
Native Americans. At that time, Assistant Secretary Ross informed
the committee of the Department’s recruitment efforts to fill the
position of the head of the Indian program. I am happy to say that
today, Thomas Dowd, sitting to my right, a Hopi Indian, serves as
the Chief of the Division of Indian and Native American Programs.
Mr. Dowd’s knowledge of grassroots Indian employment and train-
ing programs has truly bolstered the Department’s efforts to better
serve our Indian and Native American customers.

Assistant Secretary Ross’ awareness and commitment to improve
services to Indian grew further when he visited the Navajo Nation
last November. Spending time on a reservation presented a g'reat
opportunity for him to learn about Indian country. He visited the
Navgjo Job Training Partnership Act program headquarters in
Window Rock, AZ. He travelled to two field sites at Fort Defiance

and Chinle, AZ. He spoke to Indian students attending community
college and high schools to understand their education and career
goals. Communications were enhanced and led to administrative
irn8rovements that I would like to describe a little later on.

n a personal note, a few weeks ago 1 had the very good fortune
to visit the Fort Mojave Indian Reservation. I, too, was able to
meet and interact with goung Indian participants of the JTPA pro-

gTam there. I heard and saw the young people and leaned a great
eal about them. This experience intensified my belief in the value
of the Indian JTPA program.

Let me review with the committee, if I might, specific Depart-
ment efforts to serve Indian youth. Section 401 of JTPA is the De-
partment’s principal program serving Indians and Native Ameri-
cans. During the most recent program year, over 60 percent of the
terminees in the section 401 program were under 30 years old.
About 30 percent of the terminees were under 22 years old. A very
youthful population. Many of our urban grantees operate year-
round and summer programs for youth with their Section 401
funds to meet the tremendous need of the Indian and Native Amer-
ican young people off the reservation.

On most reservations the only summer program of any kind for
youn? people is the Indian Summer Youth Program subsidized by
title II-B of JTPA. That program funds work experience and train-
ing activities to develop job readiness skills, to provide academic
enrichment, on-the-job training, and other necessary services relat-
ed to skill development.

~
13




15

We have approximately 130 JTPA Summer Youth formula grants
that are awarded to Indian tribes. They serve about 13,000 youth
residing on federally and State recognized reservations. Funding
for the 1995 Summer Program is about $15.8 million. This mod-
estly funded program alone we know is not going to solve the many
overwhelming problems that we know face Indian youth today.
However, the kinds of job skills and academic enrichment offered
by this program I think are critical in preparing youth for produc-
tive work hves; about I think the best investment that we can
make in youth As the committee is no doubt aware, there is a pro-
posal pending 1a the House for rescissions of the Department’s fis-
cal year 1995 budget. Two of these rescissions would eliminate the
JTPA Summer Youth Program in the summers of both 1995 and
1996 entirely. For many Indian youth, this is their first oppor-
tunity to work and their first step learning the work ethic. In many
instances, as you all know, this is probably the only opportunity for
summer work that they have.

In general, the Summer Program provides valuable services for
Jow-income youth. Studies by the Department of Labor’s Office of
the Inspector General, OIG, as well as Westat Inc. found the JTPA
Summer Youth Program to be well run. For example, the OIG re-
port found that the young participants were productive, interested,
closely supervised, learned new leills that they could apply to their
schoor work, and took pride in their employment.

I want to share with the committee two examples of model Sum-
mer Indian Youth Programs that are making a tremendous dif-
ference in meeting the intense challenges faced by Indian youth. In
addition, I want to mention that both programs were loca{]y devel-
oped and carried out within the context of what works in Indian
country and what is culturally appropriate.

The first example is the Summer Youth Employment Program
managed by the Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma. This program pro-
vides that all-important first job for Indian youth, but it does much
more than that, It also commonly provides a source of income to
use for school books and supplies, for clothes, for college savings,
and sometimes for financial assistance to their families. The 500
youth of the Cherokee Nation served by this program get more
than just the opportunity to work, Their program provides a com-
prehensive set of activities that promote stable families and com-
munities, and we all know you cannot disengage a young person
from the family and the community setting. Cherokee youth par-
ticipate in a tribal internship program that enhances leadership
skills and citizenship. Indian youth fill summer positions with trib-
al courts, elder centers and health care facilities. They also attend
a national vocational .onference for a week of skills training that
focuses on academic enrichment. Through the community enrich-
ment activity, the youth work on projects that benefit the entire
community. These include beautification and renovation projects
supported by the local city council. The Cherokee Nation’s Summer
Youth Program is strengthening their youth, their families, and
their community.

This fortifying effect also occurs in my second example, the Gila
River Community’s Summer Youth Program in Sacaton, AZ. This
program has an integrated approach to work and education; it
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blends the classroom academic concepts with the workplace,
Throughout the school year, the idea of learning-rich classrooms
and worksites reinforces the importance of education and its rel-
evance to the workplace,

A lack of adequate education facilities and summer job opportu-
nities within the Gila River Community motivated the program
managers to develop linkages with surrounding institutions that
provide the academic enrichment and the job ekill training. The
(iila River tribal leaders are commi*ted to providing more than just
summer jobs, They want their yout.. to obtain the prerequisite edu-
cation and gkills needed to open the doors to professional careers.
This is the first step in a career ladder.

One linkage forged by the Gila River Community’s Summer
Youth Program is with C)éntral Arizona College’s mass communica-
tions skills training program. This combination of resources en-
abled the production of two videos, one about teen awareness of al-
cohol and drug abuse, and the other elderly issues and concerns.
Both videos benefit the entire Gila community. The American In-
dian Summer University Experience held at Arizona State Univer-
sity and a similar program at Northern Arizona University exposed
the youth in the programs to many skills and different fields.
These include college survival skills and careers in engineering,
science, education. These soon-to-be first generation coﬁege stu-
dents receive academic credit toward completing high school, aca-
demic guidance, and encouragement to attain their newly expanded
academic and career goals.

The youth of the Gila River Community, and also those from
other rural reservations, benefited far beyond the capacity of the
JTPA funded Summer Youth Program through these very impor-
tant linkages. I heard the conversation we were having about co-
ordination and linkages and we understand that these are ex-
tremely imtportant. The Gila River Indian Summer Youth Program
and that of the Cherokee Nation are only two examples of Indian
communities meeting the challenges conf"xtonting their youth, their
families, and their community,

And let me take this opportunity to inform the committee about
the continuing efforts to carry out Public Law 102-477, the Indian
Employment, Training, and Related Services Demonstration Act.
We are working to implement the law in coordination with the De-
partments of the Interior, Health and Human Services, and Edu-
cation. This law is critical to the successful consolidation of employ-
ment and training programs that produce locally determined initia-
tives to serve youth and adults,

Thus far, all of the Public Law 102-477 plans submitted by 10
tribes have been approved. The Department is taking the lead in
encouraging additional tribes to participate in this initiative. Qur
Deputy Secretary Thomas Glynn has directed my office and Mr.
Dowd to assume responsibility for this effort. We plan to build on
the work of the Federal interagency group to address program co-
ordination and management issues. \5: also plan to engage, as ap-
propriate, the tribal workgroup representing the interests of par-
ticipating tribes and those seeking to submit proposed plans for the
demonstration project, A Public Law 102-477 workgroup meeting
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is scheduled for late March to provide direct technical assistance to
those tribes wanting to develop and submit plans for approval.

In addition, I want to t-ke this opportunity to inform the com-
mittee of the Department’. partnership activities involving the Na-
tive American Employment and Training Council and others. This
council, which is authorized by Titie IV of JTPA, continues to di-
rectly advise the Department on all partnership activities, proposed
policy initia:‘ves, and efforts to improve program results. Council
members havse participated in a workgroup that will revise and
streamline the section 401 regulations, and they are making great
headway on it already. Grantees on the council voluntecred to
served as pilot sites for a new automated reporting system dem-
onstration project. The ({Jroject is goinF to enable grantees to pro-
vide the Department individual client level data as opposed to unlf\:
aggregate data that is now available. The council has assisted wit
establishing an hourly wage goal for program year 1995 required
by the Assistant Secretary. Council members provided direct com-
ment on a draft request for proposals to evaluate the JTPA section
401 program, and that evaluation will be underway. The councii
wilhalso serve as a technical advisory group during this evaluation
stuay.

1 would also mention that the Assistant Secretary Ross has es-
tablished a departmental goal that further demonstrates our com-
mitment to the advisory r(ﬁe of the council. The goal states that 85
percent of the advisory council members will rate their relationship
with the Department of Labor as positive or extremely positive in
1995; a goal that I feel confident we will be able to fulfill. But to
fulfill the vision statement of principles adopted by the council this
past October, a 24-month partnership plan will be drafted with our
partners during this first week of April. The partnership plan will
serve as a blueprint to guide the program toward higher perform-
ance success and improved results over the next 2 years,

The School-To-Work Opportunities Act of 1994 will fund grants
that provide Indian youth access to opportunities that prepare
them for first jobs in high-skill, high-wage careers and future post-
secondary education anﬁ training. These grants will be announced
soon in a solicitation for grant awards. The Departments of Labor
and Education jointly propose to have the final grant package
ready for publication by the second week of March. Grant awarss
will be announced by June 30. Eligible entities may apply for ei-
ther a developmentai or an implementation grant. They must in-
clude tribal organizations responsible for economic development,
employment and job training, and education, and they must involve
schools funded by the BIA. The two Departments anticipate award-
ing approximately eight developmental grants of $30,000 and up to
five implementation grants ranging from $50,000 to $100,000.

To streamline their administrative burden, the Department has
recently worked cooperaiively with the Navajo Nation. This was in
response to their request for relief from multiple administrative re-
quirements resulting from the Navajo Nation operating various
programs in three different States—Arizona, New Mexico, and
Utah. The Department's response to the Navajo Nation proposes a
way to streamline the myriad of planning, reporting requirements
and performance standards by consolidating the tribe’s JTPA pro-
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grams under a single administrative entity. This is being achieved
through a cooperative arrangement with the States of Arizona,
New Mexico, and Utah.

Finally, I would like to mention the President’s proposed G.I. Bill
for American workers, The section 401 %rc:Fram is not part of this
proposal because of the special needs of Indians and Native Ameri-
cans living on reservations, However, we helieve that the rede-
signed employment and training system will offer greater oppor-
tunity for all participants, inclucﬁng Indians and Native Americans
not living on reservations, than in the present system. The pro-
posed system will empower individuals to choose t{te training they
need at any eligible institution they choose; it will provide job seek-
ers high quality information on job opportunities, career options,
success records of training institutions so that they can make
sound, informed decisions; and they will provide greafer flexibility
to States and local communities to tailor the information and gerv-
ices to their specific needs. It will also ensure that all systems at
the Federal, State, and local levels are managed for high quality
results. In addition, an array of current youth programs will be
transformed to support the education and school-to-work reforms
already underway in State: and local communities, for both in
school and out of school at-risk young people. We hope to work with
the Indian and Native American communities to ensure that these
new initiatives will be closely coordinated with the section 401 pro-
grams,

In conclusion, the Department has a serious commitment to
reaching out to Indian and other Native American communities to
provide assistance in enhancing the employment and training op-
portunities available to youth in those communities. I have de-
scribed some important steps that we have taken to promote a new
partnership. While much remains to be done, we believe a founda-
tion has been established that will result in improving economic op-
portunities for many young Indians and Native Americans,

I want to thank you. This concludes my prepared statement, but
I would be very happy to answer any questions.

[Prepared statement of Ms. Nieves appears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. I thank you very much, Ms. Nieves.

May [ now call on Mr. Becker.

STATEMENT OF HERBERT BECKER, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF
TRIBAL. JUSTICE, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, WASHINGTON,
DC

Mr. BECKER. Thank you, Vice Chairmar Inouye, Senator Kasse-
baum. At the outset, I want to pass on to you, Senators, the Attor-
ney General's thanks for support of the Office of Tribal Justice
which the Senate approved with swift action when it came back in
session in January. She i8 also thankful for the expressions of sup-
port given to her by the Chairman and by Senator Domenici and
others. She thinks that this effort in creating this office reflects the
appropriate bipartisan support that the country has toward Indian
initiatives,

As the Chairman noted, the testimony on February 9 before this
committee on challenges confronting American Indian youth attests
to the leadership, vitality, and courage among Indian youth in
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seeking to solve these problems. Creative leadership among the

tribes will be, and has to be, a key asset in any effort to address

this most difficult problem facing Indian country and Indian youth.

The problem of course, as we know and as the grim statistics that
ou have noted shows, Senator, is an ever-increasing crime rate in
ndian communities involving juveniles.

Tribal leaders have expressed their concerns, and they are not
alone in their effort to respond to and prevent crime in Indian
country. By statute, the Department through the U.S. Attorneys’
office. is responsible for prosecution of crimes occurring on Indian
reservations for crimes between Indians and non-Indians in most
of Indian country. There are exceptions under Public Law 280, as
this committee is oware. The Department is committed to carrying
out these responsibilities in a manner consistent with the govern-
ment-to-gove: nment relationship that exists between the tribes and
the Federal Government. This government-to-government relation-
shié) is consistent with the sovereign status that the tribes have.

rimes in Indian country extract a tremendous price from the
communities in this Nation. Indian cornmunities have paid a par-
ticularly high cost both in terms of broken lives and dollars lost.
Indian youth are particulsrly vulnerable to the effects of the vio-
lence. According to the #BI, 1,259 Indian country violent crimes
and child sexual abuse investigations were conducted in 1993 and
that number went up to 1,406 in 1994. The Indian Health Services
reports that homicide is the third leading cause of death of Amer-
ican Indians in the following age groups: those between the ages
of 1 pnd 14; between 15 and 24; and between 25 to 44. The homi-
cide rate for Indians is 1.5 times higher than the rate of the gen-
eral Population and 2.6 times higher than the rate of the white
population. Those kinds of disproportionate figures are reflected
throughout criminal activity on Indian reservations.

The BIA Division of Social Services, for instance, reported nearly
32,000 child sexual abuse reports in 1993; over 4,100 of which con-
stituted sexual abuse allegations. In 1994, while the numbers de-
creased to 26,000, there were still over 3,400 which constituted sex-
ual abuse allegations. The Division of Law Enforcement of the BIA
reports that the rate of sexual offenses, excluding prostitution and
rape, in Indian country i8 228 occurrences per 100,000 inhabitants
versus 41 occurrenceg for the general population in the United
States. The rate of forzible rapes is 32.5 occurrences per 100,000
inhabitants in Indian country versus 24.6 occurrences per 100,000
in rural cou. ties. Further, attempted rapes in Indian country occur
at a rate of 3 per 100,000 inhabitants versus 2.7 per 100,000 in-
habitants in auraY counties.

These statistics are grim and growing, you had noted earlier in
your questioning of Dr. Trujillo. These are alarming figures which
underscore the vital importance of combining our efforts to address
and prevent crime in Indian country. The Department hopes to
work with tribal leaders, tribal police departments, and Indian
youth to reduce and prevent crime in Indian communities. But as
this committee is aware, these efforts have to be supported by ap-
propriate legislation in Congress.

Let me explore with you briefly the criminal investigation and
enforcement in Indian country. The U.S. attorneys’ offices and the
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criminal division within the Department of Justice, in coordination
with the BIA, the FBI, and the tribes, are working to address the
unique problems of combating crime in Indian country. The pros-
ecution of violent crimmes against victims in Indian country is one
of the Department’s highest enforcement priorities, especially
where the victims are children.

Federal prosecution in Indian country is the responsibility for the
most part of the Department, That responsibility is carried out by
the U.S, attorneys’ offices. Those offices have focused on how to
better provide services to Native American population. The Depart-
ment has encouraged those offices to appoint special assistants for
Indian affairs in order to develop better working relations with
tribes and to provide a point of contact for criminal vietims and
their families, tribal law enforcement officers, victim advocates, so-
cial workers, prosecutors, and many other officials. Many such ap-
pointments have already been made and we expect additionai ap-
poiniments in the near future, In recognition of the importance of
this task, 26 additional assistant U.S, attorney positions have been
provided by the Department to those districts with significant
amounts of Indian country within those districts.

The problems involving the scope of Federal, State, and tribal ju-
risdiction present a barrier to effective law enforcement in Indian
country. In order to address crime in Indian country, the U.S. at-
torneys consider it critical to leverage resources by deveIOpin‘g
working groups with both tribal and State governments. Some of.
fices have worked with Federal, tribal, and State agencies to de-
velop memoranda of understanding to address problems caused by
overlapgling jurisdiction. The committee had asked as to what kind
of coordination is going on by the Federal Government. Let me
point out one example. Last year, the tribes in Oklahoma and the
U.S, attorneys office in the three districts in Oklahoma worked
with the FBI, BIA, Indian Health Service, and the State of Okla-
homa to deveiop a memorendum of understanding {(MOU] to guide
the investigation, reporting, and prosecution of physical and sexual
abuse of Indian children. This model is being examined by other
U.S. attorneys offices and they are working with affected tribes and
States to see if they can’t reach similar memoranda of understand-
in%‘to hasten prosecution of these types of crimes.

he Department has also encouraged the U.S. attorney’s office to
sponsor meetings with tribal officials to address erime issues, par-
ticularly child sexual abuse, and we have made resources available
for this purpose.

Within the Department, we are redesigning our training program
to ensure that Federal prosecutors understand the jurisdictional
framework for Indian country, the law, and their responsibilities to
American Indian communities, The FBI is providing similar train-
ing for agents assigned to Indian country or having significant re-
sponsibilities in Indian country. Next month, the ¥BI along with a
number of tribes are having train’ g in Arizona as further at-
tempts to coordinate investigation ..’ crimes that occur ir. Indian
country. The goal of this training is to ensure that the Federal en-
forcement responsibilitics are carried out sensitively, responsibly,
and effectively,
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The types of crimes that are of high priority, as I noted earlier,
one is child sexual abuse. The prosecution of these cases in Indian
country is of great concern within the Department. Since the enact-
ment of the Indian Child Protection Act, the Crime Control Act,
and the Indian Law Enforcement Reform Act in 1990, the Depart-
ment has taken steps to enhance its responsiveness to Indian child
victims and to utilize fully the tools provided by Congress.

On issues of child protection, there ig a section within the crimi-
nal division known as the child expioitation and obscenity section.
This section enhances, through its expertise and human resources,
the ability of the U.S. attorneys’ offices to prosecute child sexual
abuse cases. That section is staffed by attorneys with backgrounds
and expertise in child protection issues and protection of child ex-
ploitetion cases. Since last November, seven new attorneys have
been added to that section and those attorneys have extensive ex-
pertise in child sexual abuse and Indian country issues,

The Department is also committed to close coordination with
other Federal agencies to ensure the efficient allocation of limited
resources and to better leverage available resources. Two years ago,
the Department convened a meeting of Federal agencies to discuss
how we inight improve our response to child victims of crime in In-
dian country and allocate our resources to enhance these efforts. As
a result, we have established good working relationships with the
other relevant agencies. We are confident that this will transiate
into a more unified and successful approach to addressing the prob-
lems of children who are victims of crime.

The Department has adopted and strongly endorses the multi-
disciplinary approach to handling of these sensitive and tragic
cases. We are in the process of establishing, where appropriate,
multidisciplinary teams for each reservation. A victim-witness coor-
dinator has been established in each U.S. attorneys’ office and is
available to work with tribal victim assistanc. programs.

With regard to the handling of juvenile offenders, there has been
a dramatic increase in recent years in the number of Indian juve-
nile offenders referred for Federal prosecution. There has been a
dramatic increase in the level of violence perpetrated by these
young offenders. To give you an example, for the district of New
Mexico, as of February of this year, that office has pending matters
on 33 juveniles; crimes including a larceny, 11 serious assaults, 13
sexual sbuse cases, and, more alarmingly, 8 murders. Based on
this trend, the Department expects to receive more and more of
these types of referrals.

Much of the juvenile crime on Indian reservations appears to re-
late to or result from loose-knit gangs and alcohol abuse. I believe
Dr. Trujillo noted that in response to questions that you posed to
him. We have also noticed a disturbing amount of witness intimi-
dation in juvenile cases. When violence-prone youth band together,
their boldness and defiance of authority increases. In many Indian
communities, law abiding victims and witnesses have been openl
threatened with retaliation by youth gangs if they cooperate witﬁ
law enforcement authorities. This disturbing trend towards witness
intimidation is hamyering investigation and prosecution of violent
crimes. -
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Federal criminal investigation in Indian country is basically done
by the FBI, the BIA, and, where trib.s have contracted under 638
for their law enforcement, by tribal peii« To be effective in reduc-
ing crime in Indian country, increased prosecutoria! resources must
be mirrored by an increase in law enforcement ptrsonnel. During
fiscal year 1995 and 1996, the U.S. attorneys hope to encourage
further development of tribal police and law enforcement programs
and to encourage aggressive cross-designation of tribal police with
BIA and other appropriate policing authorities, Furthermore, 27
additional FBI agents will be assigned to supplement the agents
currently conducting investigations in Indian country, bringing the
total of 124 FBI agents with investigatcry responsibilities in Indian
country for this year. .

Because of the complex jurisdictional issues and the expanse of
Indian country, the FBI works with tribes to develop law enforce-
ment efforts, These efforts include the initiation ofP an operation
safe trail program in Arizona with the Navajo Nation's department
of law enforcement. The program is designed to address major
crime and sexual abuse in Indian country, and is staffed for the
first time by a task force of FBI special agents working with Nav-
ajo tribal police officers. Last fall, as a result of this cooperative ef-
fort, there were the first successful convictions in Arizona of people
investigated by this special task force. The FBI field offices in other
areas are exploring the possibility of implementing the Safe Trails
program also. In addition, the FB‘& has developed pilot programs to
train tribal police in FBI facilities. The FPI plans to axpand its pro-
gram and training efforts to include regional training programs for
tribal police officers. This effort we feel is necessary in order to pro-
tect the chain of custody and allow the tribal police officers to he
effective witnesses in criminal prosecutions conducted by the U.S.
attorneys' offices.

We have taken other steps to build the tribal capacity to address
crime in Indian country, X]though the Department has major re-
sponsibility under the Federal Major Crimes Act for crimeas occur-
ring in Indian country, the solutions to the crime problem must
come from within the tribal communities themselves. The Depart-
ment i3 committed to enhancing the capacity of tribes to confront
the problems of crime in their communities. And to that end, last
fall monies were appropriated under the Violent Crime Control and
Law Enforcement Act of 1994 for the establishment of the Commu-
nity Oriented Policing Services program [(COPS]. The Department
of Justice in conjunction with the BIA held regional meetings
throughout the country for all the representatives of the federal y
recognized tribes to explain to them the funding that was available
*o them for having police officers put on the ground. That resulted
in 128 tribes receiving over $9 million in funding from the COPS
Ero am. Such direct grants to tribes are an important step toward

uilding tribal law enforcement capacity.

One of (he recurring questions, Senator, that came out of those

meetings, and it goes back to a question you asked earlier, is, with
the changes going on in the House, the tribes want to know what
kind of moneys there will be in the out years after this fiscal year
ends, Of course, not having crystal balls, we could not adequately
respond to that question. But we would note that this COPS pro-
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gram provided for the first time an effective vehicle for the tribes
to have law enforcement in the community and think it is essential
to continue that type of program.

We have also worked very closely with tribal courts. Tribal courts
are critical to law enforcement in Indian country. Tribal courts
have exclusive jurisdiction where both the offender and victim are
Indians where it is not a major crime. And even where it is major
crime and subject to Federal jurisdiction under the Major Crimes
Act, the tribal court has concurrent jurisdiction with the Federal
Government and, where those tribes are subject to Public Law 280,
they have concurrent jurisdiction with those States that are exer-
cising criminal jurisdiction pursuant to that law.

The major problem we have heard from the tribal courts is that
they cannot prosecute for lack of funds. We would note that the
103d Congress passed legislation to enhance tribal courts and we
would urge the committee to see if appropriations could not be ap-
propriated to fund that act as a way ofPimproving tribal court deliv-
ery of justice.

Within the Department of Justice there is an office of policy de-
velopment which has initiated a tribal courts project. The goal of
the project is to assist tribes in developing and strengthening their
systems of justice so that tribal governments are able to establish,
maintain, and enforce the laws that govern Indian lands.

Tribal court systems are particularly significant in the handling
of cases where children are victims, as well as where children are
offenders. The tribal court system is the closest—culturally and
physicaily—to the victims, oﬂz:anders, and their families, ang thus

adjudication in these courts may have the most immediate and pro-

found impact on crime rats in Indian country. To reduce crime, it
is eritical to have an adjudicative, value-enforcing institution in the
community that can deal with child abuse, child neglect, and crimi-
nal acts committed by youth. Strong tribal courts also are an essen-
tial component of triba{ sovereignty and self-gpovernance,

As I noted, adequate funding would be of particular assistance in
the development of tribal courts. Such courts could deal with fami-
lies and could handle cases dealing with family violence, domestic
relations, child support, child abuse and neglect, and juvenile delin-
quency, or some combination thereof depending on the particular
wishes of the tribal government.

The Office of Policy Development’s Tribal Courts Project, which
is coordinates its activities with the BIA and the National Tribal
Judges Association headed up by Judge Cochivey, is undertaking
a number of efforts related to the improvement of tribal family
court and juvenile justice systems, The project will soon initiate a
tribal court~-DOJ partnership program with certain tribal govern-
ments which will coordinate Department resources aimed at im-
proving tribal systems of justice. The particular emphasis of the
pertnership will be family violence and juvenile justice. The De-
partment tentatively plans to focus resources on increased training
opportunities for tribal court judges in these areas, and will sup-
port traditional tribal justice systems—such as the Navajo Nation
Peacemaker Court system—for the handling of juvenile justice is-
sues.
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Other funding initiatives undertaken by the Department include
funding for law enforcement, crime prevention, and victims of
crimes. This is handled through the Bureau of Justice Assistance,
a division within the Office of Justice Programs of the Department.
The Bureau of Justice Assistance, through their Edward Byrne Me-
morial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Programs
provide formula grants to States to assist States and local criminal
Justice systems. Local justice systems include tribes and tribes are
eligible to receive funding from the States under this program.

n addition, BJA tentatively has planned to provide the following
awards from discretionary funds maintained by the Department.
Those awards are: Planning grants to three reservations for the es-
tablishment of a comprehensive plan to reduce crime, domestic vio-
lence, and drug and aleohol abuse; funding for the improvement, of
tribal court systems, including the possible establishment of a pilot
prcgect to increase the effectiveness of prosecutions of child sexual
and physical abuse; and support for training and technical assist-
ance for programs in Indian country offered by the Office of Vic-
tims of Crimes and BIA law enforcement.

In addition, the Bureau of Justice Assistance will work with
HUD in seeking to establish with the Boys and Girls Clubs of
America facilities on reservations in Indian country to assist them
to provide alternatives for youth to crime.

he Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention man-
ages the Native American pass-through provisions of the Juvenile
dJustice and Delinquency Act. That office provides training, tech-
nical assistance, and grant funds to tribes and institutions for the
prevention and treatment of juvenile delinquency. Concurrently,
that office is engaged in several initiatives in Indian country. It is
providing assistance to the Pueblo of Jemez in New Mexico, the
Navajo nation, Gila River Indian community in Arizona, anci the
Red Lake Band of Chippewa in Minnesota to develop community-
based alternatives to secure detention and inecarceration facilities.

In this year, that office plans to identify a site in Indian count
for one of five “Safe Futures” programs. Safe Futures programs will
focus on implementing a comprehensive delinquen¢y prevention
and intervention program. This program will enhance pu%lic safety
and provide a continuum of care for at-risk and delinquent youth.

The Office also plans to replicate the Bethesda Day Treatment
Center model in Indian country. That model provides day treat-
ment to improve the academic and social skills of juveniles referred
to it by the courts. The services offered by such a center include
family therapy, individual and group counseling, academic support,
job skills development, and substance abuse prevention and treat-
ment.

The Office of Victims of Crime works with Federal, State, and
tribal authorities to support programs to compensate and assist
victims of crimes. In addition, that office offers training for tribal
State, and Federal law enforcement officers, prosecutors, and social
service and mental health staff through the biennial Indian Na-
tions Conference.

In 1994, the Office of Victims of Crime’s Victim Assistance in In-
dian Country [VAIC) grants supported the efforts of 352 staff and
668 volunteers providing an array of critical victim assistance serv-
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jces to crime victims on reservations and in Native American com-
munities. The subgrant awards have supported the development of
more than 50 tribal victim assistance programs in 19 States. That
office has awarded approximately $5.4 million in funding cycles
since 1989 to these States for the programs for the tribes. The of-
fice also supports training and technical assistance to subgrantees
through an independent grant contractor.

Since 1989, the office has provided funding to 28 tribes through
the Children’s Justice Act to improve the investigation, prosecu-
tion, and handling of cases of child abuse, particularly child sexual
abuse. The office also supports its Native American hildren's Jus-
tice Act prantees through training and technical assistance pro-
vided by the National Indian Justice Center,

Domestic violence is also being addressed. The Violence Against
Women Act, established under the Violence Crime Control and Law
Enforcement Act of last year, authorizes and appropriates funds for
%;ants to combat violent crime against women. The act stipulates
that 4 percent of the funds must be reserved for direct grants to
tribal governments. The Office of Justice Programs anticipates
awarding 15 to 20 grants to Indian tribes through this discre-
tionary program.

In conclusion, Senator, despite the grim statistics which we are
all aware of, the Department is optimistic that the future will be
brighter for the Native Americans. I say this hecause we have had
the opportunity to work with many tribal leaders. America’s tribal
leaders are talented, dynamic, creative, and coinmitted (g:ople. Our
optimism also rests on the knowledge that the Federal Government
is developing a new partnership with the tribes, a partnership that
will bring new thinking to bear on the problems of crime in Indian
country.

The Department looks forward to working with the tribes and
the Senate Committee on Indian Affairs to build strong, safe, tribal
communities in which Indian youth can survive. That concludes my
testimony. Thank you.

(Prepared statement of Mr. Becker appears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. I thank you very much, Mr. Becker.

Mr. Nessi.

STATEMENT OF DOMINIC NESSI, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF NA-
" 'TIVE AMERICAN PROGRAMS, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT, WASHINGTON, D.C.

Mr. Nesst. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, thank
you for the opportunity to appear before you today to discuss the
critically important subject of challenges facing Native American
youth and to discuss the concerns identified by those young people
that testified during the hearing that you helc{ on February 9. Sec-
retary Cisneros sends his sincerest regards and strong support for
your efforts in this area.

Senator as you may remember from the Secretary’s appearance
at a recent appropriation oversight hearing conducted by this com-
inittee, he mentioned that he would soon visit & number of Indian
reservations in Montana, including the Northern Cheyenne Res-
ervation in Lame Deer. I had the good fortune to accompany him
during that visit which took place, and 1 would like to begin this
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testimony by recounting a tragic, but all too often common story
about a 16 year old Northern Cheyenne boy who was found mur.
dered on the reservation on February 7.

We have provided copies of the newspaper article to your staff,
This one article recounting this story is afmost a textbook case of
the many social ills facing today's youth. A dysfunctional family,
over-crowded housing conditions, Juvenile delinquency, welfare,
vandalism, teenage substance abuse, violence, and, ﬁna{l’ , & mur-
der and a suicide are all included in this one single newspaper arti-
cle. The story in-between the lines describes a loss of hope and di-
rection, being replaced by despair and tragedy.

These shorﬁdng deaths are all the more disturbing when you con-
sider that this young man's grandmother moved him from Billings,
MT, back to the reservation because she felt that it was a safer and
healthier place to grow up. Ironically, the Northern Chevenne are
one of the first Indian reservations fo open a Boys and Girls Club
and to begin a tribal initiative to combat these issues. Unfortu-
nately, in this case, the good people of Northern Cheyenne simply
didn’t have the money or resources to reach this young man.

Senator, I travel extensively to the reservations and I want to as-
sure you that every time I encounter another story like this it af-
fects me personally and it makes me want to increase our efforts,
not only my own but the Department’s efforts, on behalf of Nat;jve
American youth,

His murder and his friend’s suicide are s mptoms of the social
ills that this Department is fully committed to helping tribes and
Indian housing authorities address. We must place special impor-
tance on youth programs, both for the present and long-term health
of Native Americans and Native communities,

The positive effect of this effort extends well blegond the Native

American community to the Nation asg a whole. If we are ever to
reverse the hundreds of years of tribal dependericy on the Federal
Government and replace it with a productive and cooperative part-
nership relationship, we ntust reach these future leaders.

Last year we did have one Native American youth work in our
office during the summer. This year we hope to have two more
through a program sponsured by American University for Native
American youth. It i3 a very successful program and we hope it will
continue because it provides us with access to youny Native Amer-
ican interns.

Of the programs that HUD administers in order to help Native
American young people, I would like to highlight today the Public
and Indian Housing Drug Elimination program, the Youth Sports
program, cultural contests that the Department holds for Native
American young people, the Department's involvemen¢ with the
Boys and Girls Clubs of America, and just a few examples of volun-
teer work that HUD staff contribute on behalf of Native American

outh.
d Substance abuse is the most severe health and social problem in
Indian country today. I am not going to go back through all of the
statistics that Dr. Trujillo and %—Ier ang others have already re-
cited. But we understand that changing the social and economic en-
vironment in which illicit drug use firives is essential for long-
term reduction in substance abuse. Furthermore, comprehensive
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community-based prevention provides a supportive foundation for
effective treatment and law enforcement.

HUD implements its Drug Elimination Proﬁram from this social
and economic perspective. Indian housing authorities and residents
have a great deal of flexibility within this program to address their
specific drug-related problems. Senator, iet me mention that in
1996, the Department's budget is proposing an increase in the
Drug Elimination Program and we will continue to have those
funds go directly to tribes and Indian housing authorities. No HUD
Native American program funds go to States.

Eligible grant activities include: Employing security personnel
and investigators; working with local law enforcement agencies for
security; making physical improvements to enhance security; estab-
lishing of voluntary tenant patrols; and designing drug prevention
programs, including education, family, and other supportive service
programs, youth services, and job training. In fiscal year 1994, 43
of 60 Indian housing authorities that applied were unded for al-
most $8 million. Since 1989, HUD has funded approximately $25
million for these activities. Let me mention that there are 180 In-
dian housing authorities. When 60 apply, that is fully one-third of
&htlal Indian iousing authorities that are attempting to use these

ollars.

I would like to point out just a few of the different ways that
HUD'’s Drug Elimination Program dollars have been used. The
Crow Nation in Montana has used drug prevention funds to create
a cultural presentation called “Our Way of Life.” This show con-
tains Crow songs, dances, and traditionat flute music. The dancers,
singers, and presenters in the show emphasize education, Crow
language and culture, and anti-drug themes. The wide variety of
age groups in the show help both participants and audience mem-
bers defeat the feelings of isolation that lead to so many problems
in Indian country.

Avother new important initiative under the Drug Elimination
T .. am will also confront directly the despair that too often leads
young people to substance abuse and gang membership. This initia-
tive is a HUD-sponsored training program called “The New War-
riors: American Indian Youth Development and Leadership Today.”
Training sessions for this program will be hosted this year by res-
ervations in each of the six offices of HUD’s Native American Pro-
grams. Young people will be the leaders and role models in these
sessions. which will include anti-crime, anti-drug tactics that are
cultura]fy relevant to American Indian youth, leadership skills, ne-
gotiation skills, conflict resolution, self-esteem, traditional values,
and forming youth community groups.

The Office of Native American Programs, along with the Menom-
inee Tribal Housing Authority and the Menominee Tribal Police
Department, will be co-sponsoring a national drug elimination
crime prevention conference the week of May 6 through 11.1 would
like to mention that we are working closely with the Department
of Justice and the Bureau of Indian Affairs on this effort. The con-
ference theme “Building Positive Partnerships for a Brighter To-
morrow” embraces the Department's vision of establishing positive
networking opportunities and strengthening partnerships among
Indian housing authorities and law enforcement officials.
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I would like to_alsc mention another activity that is going on at
the Passamaqueddy tribe where HUD has funded an effort called
“The Native Brothers.” That is a group of 'ﬁ?ung men who have
taken a vow of being drug- and alcohol-free. That activity is spread-
ing to other reservations and they have now created a Passama-
quggdy group called Little Eagles for the young members of the
tribe.

HUD's Youth Stports Program is based on the conviction, shared
by Indian people for thousands, of years that fitness and participa-
tion in sports are an extremely effective way to build identity and
self-esteem, The Youth Sports Program funds cultural, educational,
recreational, and other activities (Fel;;igned to appeal to youth as al-
ternatives to the drug environment in Indian housing projects. Ac-
quisition, construction, or rehabilitation of community centers,
parks or playgrounds are all aligible activities under the p ogram,

A numger of tribes have used Youth Sports Programs iunds to
organize youth camps through the Wings of America program. This
youth development program of the Earth Circle Foundation uses
running as a catalyst to inspire Indian youth to effect change in
themselves and their communities and to take pride in their cul-
tural identity.

In 1994, 21 Irdian housing authorities received Youth Sports
grants for $2.6 million out of 71 Indian housing authorities appl-’
cants.

HUD is also now working with the inner-city games of Los Ange-
les to expand the inner-city games not only to public housing com-
munities, but also to have a Native American component of the
mner-city games where Indian youth would be able to compete
against young people from the cities. We are hoping to have that
completed either in late 1995 or early 1996. We are working with
Arnold Schwarzenegger and his foundation to expand this activity,

An important way that HUD attempts to promote pride in Na-
tive American youth and also to intro:i)uce them to the concepts of
housing and ecoromic development is through HUD-sponsored cul-
tural activities. In 1993, we asked a young Native American teen
from the Rosebud reservation, Lakota Clairmont, to design a poster
which became the theme for HUD's efforts to enhance its relation-
ship with the Native American community. In 1994 we sponsored
Native American youth to submit drawings with their images of
what Indian housing should look like. We received entries from
over 150 young people and chose 13 drawings for inclusion in our
1995 American Indian Heritage Calendar. V&: distributed this cal-
endar to tribes and Indian housing authorities. The images it con-
tains reflect the variety of Native American youths' housing ideals,
and are an important reminder to all of us of the importance of a
kome to young people.

Senator, this year we are sponsoring an essay contest for Native
American youth for them to discuss what they feel they can do to
improve their people’s living environments. ‘%e intend to publish
all of the essays in a book whirh will be passed out to tribes and
to Federal officials,

Two final items that we are particularly proud of at HUD is, one,
our relationship with the Boys and Girls Clubs of America. Dr.
Trujillo mentioned SuAnne Big Crow, a young woman from the Og-
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tala Sioux Reservation who died tragically in a car accident a few
years ago. Doctor Trujillo had mentioned that her mother, who is
a personal friend of mine, Chick Big Crow and her family, ¢.C. and
other members of that family, wanted to establish something in
SuAnne’s honor. [ am reall{y proud to say that HUD, working with
the Boys and Girls Clubs of America, created the second c¢lub in In-
dian country which is the SuAnne Big Crow Boys and Girls Club.
I have been to that club a number of times and, again from a ve
personal perspective, I think the creation of that club and the wor
done b guAnne's mom and family is an indication of how HUD
and other Federal agencies can work with local communities to de-
velop those sorts of activities.

In 1987, the Boys and Girls Clubs and HUD forged a partnership
to create new clubs within public housing. That did not start in In-
dian country until 1992. Since that time, we have worked to create
eight Indian housing Boys and Girls Clubs—at Sac and Fox; Pine
Ridge, as I mentioned; Mescalero Apache; Absentee-Shawnee; the
Delaware of Oklahoma; the Northern Cheyenne; Sisseton-
Wahpeton in South Dakota; and the Pala Tribe of California. We
believe that we could do another eight to twelve clubs almost im-
mediately if funding was available. The response to our working
with Indian housing authorities and the Boys and Girls Clubs has
been overwhelming.

Many Indian housing authorities have used the Drug Elimi-
nation and Youth Sports Programs to initiate Boys and Girls Club
activities, and we continue to work with local communities to con-
vert non-dwelling space or abandoned units into youth centers.
Senator, that is something that we are trying to do more. Wherever
we find vacant houses that are just not being used, we are encour-
aginﬁ the housing authorities to immediately convert those into
youth centers. We have done that on at ‘least seven reservations
that I am aware of. In some cases, we utilize some portion of devel-
opment funding to build new centers. I am going down to Porch
Creek in Alabama next week o see a new youth center that was
built with Indian housing development monies.

Senator, all of these programs that we've talked about and dol-
lars that are being spent I think are important, but 1 think there
are some ersonaFthings that HUD staf have been doing in the
past and I would like to just give you .1 couple of examples. In
many ways that personal relationship that we have with the In-
dian community I think transcends some of the programs and the
dollars that we're talking about.

One very special activity to me is something that my staff and
I started 10 years ago back in Denver when I was the director of
the Denver office where we created a very special weekend for Na-
tive American youth in the Northern Plains area. The entire event
is a cooperative effort between HUD volunteers and Indian housing
authorities from that area. The first year we bad about 150 young
people attend. At the end of this month, we will hold our 10th an-
nual event and we expect slmost 850 young people along with par-
ents, chaperons, and coaches to attend our educations! sessions and
basketbaﬁ tournamaent. I would like to mention that SuAnne Big
Crow, who Dr. Trujillo mentioned, had attended that event and we
now have named our Girls MVP trophy in her honor. Senator
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Campbell, a member of this committee, attended our second annual
event and we have invited him to come again this year and hope
that he will help us celebrate our tenth anniversary.

Recently, one of our HUD employees who was a former NBA
player was sble to secure, through his contacts with the NBA, al-
most 500 free passes for Indian youth in the Phoenix area to attend
the NBA All-Star activities. Again, this is something that is not

art of our regular activities but it is something that our staff feel
18 important to build that relationship with the community.

Qur goal is to demonstrate to the Native American community
that we at HUD fully understand that there is more to building a
home than simply putting up a structure.

Senator, thank you for the opportunity to appear before you
{.loday. I would be pleased to answer any questions that you may

ave.

{Prepared statement of Mr, Nessi appears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. I thank you very much, Mr. Nessi.

Before proceeding, I have been asked by Chairman McCain to ex-
tend to you his deep regrets in not being able to be present here.
He has a very important chore to perform with the Government
Operations Committee so he is there presiding at this moment.
However, he has asked me to have his statement made part of the
record. He also has a set of questions he would like to submit to
all the witnesses for your consideration and response.

I will be submitting many detailed questions. But my questions
at this time would be in rather general terms. First, on coordina-
tion. Ms. Nieves, the President in his G.I. Bill for American Work-
ers has eliminated the JTPA Indian program, the Summer Intern
Program. However, you have indicated that the section 401 pro-
gram is intact because I believe the phrase you used was “special
needs of Indians and Native Americans living on reservations.”
How did you determine that the JTPA program did not meet the
“special needs” however 401 did?

Ms. NIEvES. Senator, first let me make a correction. The Depart-
ment is not eliminating the Indian Youth Program.

Senator INOUYE. You consolidated that.

Ms. NIEVES. It is not. It is still to be run out of the national
headquarters.

Senator INouUYE, There will still be a JTPA prugram?

Ms. NIEvEs. Yes, it will.

'S%nawr INOUYE. And what are you going to do with the rescis-
sion?

Ms. NIEVES. The rescission I believe would have dire con-
sequences.

enator INOUYE. So you have a program with no money?

Ms. NIEVES. We are not proposing a rescission.

Senator INOUYE. But you are telling me that the JTPA Summer
Youth Grant to Indian entities is not terminated?

Ms. NIEVES. That's correct. If there is monies for it, it will be 1un
out of the national headquarters.

Senator INoUYE, If there i3 money for it?

Ms. Nieves. That's right.

Senator INoUYE. Did you discuss this matter with the BIA before
coming up with this consolidation?
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Ms. Nieves. We did not propose a consolidation. We are not pro-
posing a consolidation for the Indian set aside. That will remain,
administered by the national office. There may have been some
confusion and some error in some early documents that went out
that mistakenly listed it as scheduled for consclidation. But it is
not so. That was an error.

Senator INOUYE. I have here the President’s budget. It says here
“Program consclidations in the Department of Labor: Summer
Youth Grants to Indian entities.” What is that?

Ms. Nikves. This is the Summer Youth Programs that would—

Senator INOUYE. And that’s going to be consolidated? These 70
programs are going to be consolidated, right?

Ms. Nieves. Yes; but the Indian set aside will not be consoli-
dated. And if it is in there, it is an error.

Senator INOUYE. That and the 401 will not be?

Ms. Nievies. Will not be, no, sir.

Senator’ INouye. However, you have consolidated this Summer
Youth Grant but not the 4017

Ms. N1eves. That's correct.

Senator INOUYE. Why the difference?

Ms. NIEVES. We feel it is important to highlight the needs of In-
dian people, Indian programs and that they would be best met out
of the national office; direct administration out of DC.

Senator INOUYE. Now 401 was not in the consolidation package
but JTPA was.

Ms. NIEVES. No; none of the moneys g.ing to Indians were con-
solidated.

Senator INouyg. Then this report is not correct?

Ms. NIEVES. I'm not sure what r?ort you have got there, but I
think so. That was not to be included,

Senator INOUYE. I am talking about the Summer Youth Grant.

Ms. NiEvES. That’s correct.

Senator INOUYE. That's not consolidated?

Ms. NIEVES. It will not be consolidated; no, sir.

Senator INOUYE. So that’s an error.

Ms. NIEvES. It is an error.

Senator INOUYE. Well, I thank you because we have to rely upon
documents that you people submit.

Ms. Nieves. I understand and 1 apologize for that.

Senator INOUYE. In coming forth with these programs, do you
confer with each other? Do you talk to the BIA people?

Ms. NIEVES. Yes, we do.

Senator INOUYE. Is that the same thing with Justice?

Mr. BECKER. Yes, sir, Senator. Within the White House, as you
know, they have a Domestic Policy Council. Last fall, created with-
in that Council was a working group on Indian Affairs chaired by
Secretary Babbitt. We had our first meeting last month and our
next one i8 on the 24th. We are seeking executive-wide coordina-
tion of all the programs that relate to Indian affairs. So we are tak-
ing aggressive steps to coordinate.

enator INOUYE. I ask this question because you emphasized the
importance of funding for special tribal courts. As you know, there
is a $1.4-plus million that is now being threatened in the rescission
package. Is that correct?
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Mr. BECKER. Within Interior, that's correct.

Senator INOUYE. I have been advised this morning that rep-
resentatives of the BIA have notified appropriators that these
funds are not necessary. Are you aware of that?

Mr. BECKER. I am not aware of that, Senator.

Senator INOUYE. I would suggest you discuss this matter with
them because apparently your coordination is not working here. 1
have been told that BIA has advised the House a{)propriat.ors that
they don't need the $1.463 million for special tribal courts.

Mr. Nessi, you have listed a very ambitious list of programs.
How many ¢f them are now potentially on the chopping block with
the rescission package?

Mr. NEssI. The Drug Elimination Program has a reduction of ap-
proximately 12 percent or $32 million,

Senator INOUYE. Is that the enly one?

Mr. NEssl. Yes.

Senator INouvg,. All the other programs remain intact?

Mr. NEssI. Yes,

Senator INOUYE, What about the Department of Justice, any-
thing on the rescission package?

Mr. BEcker. I need to get back with you on that, Senator.

[Information appears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. With Labox?

Ms. NiEVES. What wrs the question, sir?

Senator INOUYE. There is a huge rescission package now being
con'?idered. Anything in it that would affect you and Indian coun-
try!
Ms. Nieves. Most definitely. It would eliminate the Summer
Youth qu}oyment Programs, the title II-B totally for both 1995
and 1996. That would mean that there would be no moneys for In-
dian youth programs.

Senator INOUYE. What sort of coordination do you have, Mr.
Becker, with BIA?

Mr. BECKER. We meet with them throuih Ted Quasula, who is
Chief of the Law Enforccment Division who here today, we meet
with Ms. Deer’s office, and with Secretary Babbitt’s office on issues
that we have in common in law enforcement, tribal courts, prosecu-
tion, juvenile justice.

Ms. NIEveS. Could I add, Senator, that the rescission would also
mean a 10 percent cut in the title IV programs for Indians beyond
the Summer Youth Program.

Senator INOUYE. May I request that all three of you submit to
this committee those programs that will be affected by the rescis-
sion package. We would ap%\:ciate that velg much. xﬁso, if there
are an{ more corrections to be made on the budget submission, we
would like to have that. Otherwise, we will have to proceed on the
basis of some document and this is the document that was pre-
sented. In fact, the question that was submitted by Senator Simon
is on this very subject. He, 00, read the budget request. Believe it
or not, we Members of the Congress do read these voluminous doc-
uments. It is not fun reading but we do read them.

[Information appears in appendix.]

Senator INOUYE. We will be submitting to all of you many ques-
tions and we hope that you can respond to them and could submit
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to us your responses to what you think would be the impact of the
rescission package; how the block grant proposal would affect In-
dian country, whether it will be positive or negative, and, if nega-
tive, in what respects. If I may, 1 would like to request that those
reports be submitted to this committee within 1 week. We do not
have much time to act upon this. The Congress seems to be intent
upon cutting corners and proceeding as expeditiously as possible,
30 we do not have the luxury of lengthy consideration.

[Corg_mi]ttee’s questions and departmental responses appears in
appendix.

enator INOUYE. Again, I thank all of you for participating in

this hearing. And once again I extend to you the regrets of Chair-
man McCain. Thank you very much.

[Pregared statements of Senators McCain and Dorgan appear in
appendix.]

[Whereupon, at 12:10 p.m., the committee was adjourned, to re-
convene at the call of the Chair.]
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APPENDIX

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD

PREPARED STATEMENT oF HON. JOHN McCAIN, U.S. SENATOR FROM ARIZONA,
CHAIRMAN, SENATE COMMITTEE ON INDIAN AFFAIRS

I would like to thank the distinguished Vice Chairman of the Committee, Scnator
Inouye for condueting this hearing, and the witnesses who will appear belore the
Commitice to present testimony on the federal agenciea role in addressing the con-
cerns of American Indian youth. Last month, the Commiltee heard from & remark-
able group of American Indian youth who vividly described the challenfcs that they
face on a dail{ basia. Unfortunately, the information that they provided, verified the
information that the Committce has reccived over the years regarding the problems
of alcahol and substance abuse, suicide, teen rcgnan%a and the lack of federsl aup-

ort for Indian education. Thesc are isaues that this Commiltee, and the Congress,
ave attempted w address through various Federal laws. However, by listening to
the youth who teatified before this Commitlce, these laws are either not being prop-
erlrx implemented, or are simpléonot. working.
or example, in 1992, the Congress passed various Amendments to the Indian
Health Care Improvement Act. One of the geals behind these amendments was to
address the alarming health statistics of Indian youth—where suicide mortality for
youth between the ages of 16 to 19 is 2.5 timea higher than the national average,
and American Indians begin abusing aubstancea at a younger age than non-Indians,
and where lcen pregnancy was increasing at an alarminE rate. The goal of improv-
ing the health status of Indian youth was to be accomplished through the implemea-
tation of the Indian Health Amendments of 1992, which required the Endian Health
Service in cooperation with the Bureau of Indian Affaira to carry oul programs for
American Indian youth. For example, the implementation of a Comprehensive
School Health Education Program whercby granta would be provided to tribes to de-
velop a comprehensive health curricula. The Act also calls [or the implementation
of the Indian Youth Grant Program for Indian tribes to develop prevention and
treatment models to promote the mental and physical health of Indian youth.

In addition, last Congress, this Commillee [ound that at a time when Indian high-
er educational institutions are experiencing an overall rise in college attendarice
rates, they have not experienced the benefits of Federal resources and programa to
the extent of other post-secondary institutions with under-served populations. This
support is critical because oftentimes, these post-secondary Indian educational inati-
tutions are the only available alternative to American Indian youth to receive a
post-sccondary degree. Past data has shown that approximately 10 percent of the
reservation Indian students who went directly fromn high school graduation to a non-
Indian two year or [our year institution actually succeeded in obtaining a college
degree. However, these numbers are beginning to increase as a result of the sd-
vancement of tribal wl!cges and vocational education institutions, and can only con
tinue to succeed with Federal support. Approximately 20 of my colleagues, including
the Vice Chairman, submitted a Sense of the Senate Resclution ealling for the
White Houase to issue an Exccutive Order to promote and expand Federal szsistance
for Indian instilutions of higher education—to the same exient as that of the His.
torically Black Colleges.

Since 1 have been a member of the Committee on Indian Affairs, and during my
tenure in the House, I can recsll the many limes that T have heard tribal leaders
praise and give recognition to the achievements of the young t|:;,~oplc of their commu-
nitiea. Over Lhis same period, tribal leaders have appeare fore Congress, Lo re-
quest funds and services for education, health and social services programs to help
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serve the young people of their tribea. These tribal leaders have labored many hours
to change the system of Indian education, and to improve the chance of succeas for
their young triba! membern, both on and off Indian reservations. They do so because
they know that a modest investment in youth today will reap enormous rewards in
the generations to come. However, without the assistance of the Federal agencies,
many of whom are represented hear today, these efforts are futile.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. ByroN L. DORGAN, U.S. SENATOR FROM NEVADA

Mr. Chairman, myriad chudlenges confront Indian youth today, pariicularly prob-
lems surrounding educatior, employment and family iasues. However, I focus my at-
tention today on what I oinsider the moet troublesome and trng!cgaroblem facing
many Young people in Indian Country—child sbuse and neglect. Since m eariy
days as & member of the other body, I have worked to reduce the heartbreaking el-
fects of abuse and neglect that plague so many of our nation's children.

The staggering levels of abuse and neglect on Indian rescrvations arc related to
n larger issue, namely, the poverty, unemployment and aleoholism that has resulted
from an overriding lack of economic opportunity and from indifference on the part
of rome Indian agencies, Like the residents of most communities, the vast majority
of Indian parenis care for end nurture their children. Unfortunately, though, the
combination of mocio-coonomic problems has exacerbated the problem of abuse on
rescrvations.

We cannot ignore the victima of physical and paychological ebuse. The federatg?c -
ernment has & solemn trust obligation to protect them. And when these children
suffer pain at the hands of adults, we have failed them.

More than four years ago, 1 conducted & hearing in Biamarck, North Dakota to
investigate the causes of child ebuse and neglect in my state. I was utterly dis-
mayed and disguated by what [ learned that dey. There was one story-~about a lit.
tle girl named Tamara—that touched me eapeciaily dee l{. While under the care of
foater parents, Tamara suffered from a broken arm and leg and had her hair torn
out. The social worker who should have been ensuring Tamara's safety had a case-
load of aver 200 children.

After that hearing, | worked to increase the number of atafl social workera on the
Standing Rock Sioux Reservation—Tamera's home—from 1 to 12. The resull
brought enormous relief to those professionals who were working everyday to pre-
vent the abuse and neglect of children on that reservation.

Last June, I chaired another hearing of this Committa2 in North Dakota. I discov-
ered that the three other rescrvations in my State, Fort Berthold, Devils Lake and
Turtle Mountain also experience scrious problems with abuse and neglect

The Devils Lake Sioux Reservation has had 13 different people in its three stall
social worker positiona in the last two years. There are piles of abuse and neglect
rvt:) rts that have never been mviewed—{!ecaule the stalf resources just aren't avail-
able.

On the Fort Berthold Reservation, eight abused or neglected children attempted
suicide in a two-week ﬁriod. On the Turtle Mountain Reservalion, {oster parents
locked a three-year-old boy in & closet and starved him, Young children are acxually
molested by parents and step-parents. One girl turned to aleoho] at age eight as a
resuit of her {ather's abusive behavior. By age 14, she was an aleoholic.

Sa, what can Congress do? Firat, we muat begin *o pay more then lip service to
the atrocioua levels of abuse and neglect on reservations. Last year, worked to ﬁm-
vide $2 million in the Senate’s 1895 Department of Interior appropriations bill to
establish model programs ‘o fight child abuse and neglect on reservations. Much to
my disappaintment the amendment was dropped from the final legislation during
conference committoe negotiations,

This year, the BIA has requeated $5 million for child protection and family vio-
lence prevention in its fiscal year 1996 budget request. The Child Protection and
Family Violence At of 1990 authorized the Bureau to provide grants to tribea to
develop Indlan Child Protection and Family Violence Protection programs. In 1984,
Congress directed the Bureau to request funding for tribal ehild protection and fam-
ily violence prevention programs when “regulations are in place and implemented.”
It is my understanding that these regulations, which will allow approximately 540
tribea to receive anywhere from S-B,Ogg to $32,900 in grants, have been developed
with tribal input and will be in place before the enactment of fiscal yesr 1998 appro-
priations. The grants can be used to hire child protection and family violence pre.
vention stafl, to conduct training programs for exisling slafl, to develop plana for
inveatigations, and to create tribal child protection and domestic violence codes and




Q

E

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

RIC

37
regulations, urge the Commitiet to review whether the BIA's budget request is ade-
quate to tackle the problem of child abuse and neglect on rescrvationa.
Indian children need and deserve that same safcl&}and care that we provide o
our own sons and daughters, and [ plead with you lo support initiatives that will
help to case their plight.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOSEPHING l;lfvns ASSOCIATE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF
BOR

Thank you lor the opportunity to discuss the Department of Labor's employment
and training efforts for Indian youth. Our goal is to help prepare young Indians and
Native Americans lor productive worklives.

To meet this challenge effectively, we believe it is essential Lo administer eraploy-
ment and training programs wrvin% Indian youth in & way that promotes local ini-
tiative and respects Indian cultural values, Currently, &8 new partnership bolween
the Department's Division of Indian and Native American Programs (OINAP) and
il.sdI&2 Indian and Native American grantees is ensuring that this principle ia real-
ized.

Assiating Indian communilies to overcome negalive socisl and economic conditions
that lead to suicide, violence, and diminished eapirations, described so passionstely
by the Indian youth leaders before thia Committee on Februa 9, is & solemn com-
mitment of this Administration. I am pleased to share with the Committee recent
actions taken by the Department showing this commitment.

One year ago, the Department’s Assistant Secretary for Employment and Trein-
ing, Doug Ross testified before thia Committee. He spoke about the Department's

rograma for Indiana and other Native Americans. At that time, Assistant Secretary

osa informed the Committee of the Department's recruitment efforts to fill the pa-
sition of the head of the Indian program, Today, sitting next to me_is Mr. Thomus
Dawd, a Hopi Indian, who serves as the Chief of the Division of Indian and Native
Arerican Programs. Mr. Dowd's knowledge of grass-roots Indian employment and
training programs has holstered the Department's efforts to better serve cur Indian
snd Native American customers.

Asgiatant Secretary Ross’ awareness and commitment to improve services to Indi-
ans grew further when he visited the Navajo Nation last November. Si)cnding time
on & reservation presented afrcat. opportunity for him to learn about Indian Coun-
try. He visited tﬂc Navajo Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) program head-
quariers in window Rock, Arizona. He traveled to twa field sites at Fart Defiance
and Chinle, Arizona. He apoke to Indian students attending community college and
high schools to understand their education and carcer foala. Communications were
enhanced and led to administrative improvements that I will describe later.

Ona personal note, 8 few weeks ago I had the good fortune to visit the Fort Mo-
jave Indian Reservation. I was able to meet and interact with the young Indian par-
ticipants in the JTPA Program there. [ heard and saw the g:un people and leamed
a great deal about them. Thia experience intensified my belief in the value of the
Indian JTPA Program.

Let me review with the Commitlee specific Department efforta to serve Indian
youth. Section 401 of JTPA ia the Department's principal program serving Indians
and Native Americans. During the most recent program year aver 60 percent of the
terminces in the Scction 401 program were under 30 years ald. About 30 percont
of the terminees were under 22 years old. Many of our urban grantees aperate year-
round and summer rn%rams for youth with their Section 401 funds to meet the tre-
mendous needs of the Indian and Native American young peaple “off the reserva-
tion.”

On most reservations the only summer program of any kind for young peaple is
the Indian Summer Youth Program authorized by Title I{-B of JTPA. That program
funds wark experience and training activities to develop Job readincsa skills, provide
academic enrichment, on-the-job training, and other services related to skiil develop-
ment.

There are approximately 130 JTPA Summer Youth formula grants awarded to In-
dian tribes. They serve about 13,000 gout.h residing on federally and state recog-
nized reservations. Funding for the 1996 Summer Program ia 15.8 miilion. Thia
madeatly funded prolﬁ'ram alone will not solve the many overwhelming ;‘émb‘em"
faced by Indian youth today. However, the kinds of job skills and academic enrich-
ment ollfered by this program are critical in preparing youth for productive wark
lives. As the Committee ia no doubt aware, there is a propossal pending in the House
for rescissiona of the Department’s fiscal year 1895 budget. Two of these rescissiona
would eliminate the JTPA Summer Youth Program in the summers of 1995 and
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1996 entirely. For many Indian youth, this is their first opportunity to werk and
their first step learning the work ethic.

In general, the summer fm‘gf:m provides valuable services for low-income youth,
Studies by the Department ol Labor's Office of the Inspector General (QIG) as well
as Westat Inc. found the JTPA summer youth program to be well run. For example,
the OIG report found that the young participants were productive, interested, close-
ly supervised, learned new skilla that they could apply to their school wor‘vc, and
took pride in their employment.

I want to share with the Committee two examples of roodel Summer Indian youth
rmg'rama that are making & tremendous difference in meetinq.lthe intense chal-
enges faced by Indian youth. in addition, 1 want to mention that both programs
were locally developed and carried nut within the context of what works 10 Indian
country and what is cultura'lg appropriate.

The first example is the Summer Ynuth Employment ngram managed by the
Cherokee Ngtion of Oklahoma. This program provides that ali-important first job for
Indien youth, but it does much more than that. It also comrionly provides a source
of income to use for schoal booka and supplies, for clothes, lor college savings; and,
somelimes, for firaacial assistance to their families.

The 500 youth of the Cherokee Mation served by this pmﬁrram get more than juat
the opportunity to work. Their program providea & comprehensive aet of activities
that promote stable familiez and communities. Cherokee youth participate in &
“Tribal Internship Program™ that enhancea leadership skills and citizenzhip. Indian
youth fill summer positions with tribal courts, ¢lder centers and health care facili-
lics. They also attend a national vocational conference for a week of skills trainin
that focuses on academic enrichment. Through the “communily enrichment activit
the youth werk on projecta that benefit the entire community. These include beau-
tification and renoyvation projecta supported by the local cily council. The Cherokee
Nation's Summer Youth gram is strengthening their youth, their families, and
their cosumunity.

Thia fortifying effect also ccours in @iy second example, the Gila River Commu-

nity's Summer Youth Program in Saceton, Arizona. This program has an integrated
approach Lo work and educatinn; it blends classroom academic concepts with the
workplace. Throughout the school year, the idea of “learning-rich classrcoms and
wlorkuiteu' reinforces the importance of education and its relevance to the work-
place.
A lack of adequate aducation facilities and summer job opportunities within the
Gila River Community molivated the program manaf‘ers to develop linkages with
sun‘oundilig inatitutions that provide atademic enrichment and jeb skiil training.
The Gila River tribat leaders are commilted to providing more than just snmmer
joba. Theg want their youth to obtain the prerequisite education and akilis nceded
to apen the dcors to professionsl careers.

One linkage forged by the Gila River Community’s Summer Youth Prog-am is
with Centra.? Arizona College’s masa communication akills training progran. This
combinatien of resources enabled the production of two videos, one about “Teen
Awsareness of Aleshol and Drug Abuse™ and the other “Elderly lasues and Conierna.”
Both videos benelit the entire Gila community: The American Indian Summer Uni-
versily Exparicnce held at Arizona State University and a similar program at
Northern Arizona University exposed the youth in the programs to many skills and
ficlds. These include college survival skills and carcers in engineering, science, edu-
cation. These soon-to-be first generation college students receive acagcmic credit to-
ward completing high scheal, academic guidance, and encoursgement o altain their
newly expandad academic anc career goals.

The youth of the Gila River Communityl and alac those from other rursl reserva-
tions, benefitted far beyond the capacity of the JTPA funded Summer Youth pro-
gram throuql;nmthcae very important program linkages. The Gila River Indian Sum-
mer Youth gram and that of the Cherokee Nation are two examples of Indian
communities neeting the challenges confronting their youlh, families and commu.

nity.

gct me also take this opportunity to inform the Committee about the continuin
efforts to carry out P.L. 102477, the Indian Employment, Training and Relate
Services Demonstration Act. We are working to implement the law in coordination
with the Depariments of Interior, Health and Human Services, and Education. This
iaw i critical to the mucceasful consolidation of employment and training programs
that produce lo-call{ ¢ etermined initiatives to serve youlh and adulta.

Thus far, all of the “477 plans” submitted by ten tribea have been approved. The
Depariment is taking the lead in encouraging additional tribea to pariicipate in this
initiative. Deputg Secretary Thomas Glynn haa directed my office and Mr. Dowd to
assume responaibility for this effort.
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We plan to build on the wirk of the Federal interagency group to address program
coordination and management issues. We also plan to engage, as appropriate, the
tribel workgroup representiug the interests nf participating tribes and those seeking
{0 submit proposed plans jor the demanpatration project. A "477 Wnrkﬂoa?' meeting
is scheduled for late March to provide direct cal aseistance oae tribes
wanting to develop and submit “477 plans® for approval.

In addition, 1 want to take this npportunigeto inform the Committee of the De-
artment’s partnership activities involving Native American Employment and
ra.u:a.mgl Coundil and others. This council, authorized by Title IV of JTPA, continuca

direcfly advise the Department on all partnership activities, proposed policy ini-

tiatives and efforts to improve program results. Council members have participated
in a workgroup that will revise and streamlipe the Section 401 regulations. Grant-
ees on the council volunteered o serve as pilot sites for a new automated reporti
system demonstration project. The project would enable grantees to provide the De-
partment individual client level data as opposed to only aggregate data that is now
available. The council has assisted with establishing an huurcliy wage goal for FY 95
required by the Assiatant Secmtu-{. Council members provided direct comment on
a request for proposals to evaluate the JTPA Section 401 program. The council
will also serve as a technical advisory group during the evaluation atudy.

1 would alss mention that Assiatant Secretary doss has established a DeFart-
mental goal that further demonstrates our commitmeus to the advisory role of the
council. The goal atates that 85 percent of the Advisory Council Members will rate
their relationship with the Department as positive or extremely positive in 1995,

To fulfill the “vision statement” pri cigleu adopted by the council thia past Octo-

ber, a 24-imonth “partnership plan” will be drafted with our partners the first week
of April. The “partnership plan” will serve as a blueprint to guide the progrem to-
hi&her rformance success and in;froved results over the next 24 montha.
The School-To-Work Opportunities Act of 1994 will fund grants that provide In-
dian youth accesa to opportunities that prepare them for first joba in high-skill,
high-wage carcera and Tuture ﬂt-secnndmar education and training. These granta
will be announced soon in a Solicitation for Grant Awards (S3GA).

The Departments of Labor and Education propose to have the final grant package
ready for publication by the second week of March. Grant awards will be announced
by June 30, 1995. Eligible entities may apply for either a developmental or imple-
mentation grant. They must include tribal organizations responsible for economic
development, emp]o;ment and job training, and education and they muat invelve
schools funded by the Bureau of Indian Aflairs. The two Departments anticipate
awarding approximately eight (8) development grants of $30, and up to five (B)
implementation grants ranging from $50,000 o $100,000.

o atreamline their administrative burden, the Department recently worked coop-
eratively with the Navajo Nation, This was in responsc {o their eat for relief
from multiple administrative requirements resulting from the Nmﬂjo ation operat-
ing varioua programs in three different States,—Arizona, New Mexico, and Utah.
The Department’s response to the Navejo Nation pr;;_poues a way to streamline the
myriad of planninﬁt‘ reporting requirements and performance standards by consoli-
dating the tribe’s JTPA programs under a single administrative entity. This is being
achieved through a cooperative arrangement with the Stetes of Arizana, New Mex-

ico, and Utah,

f‘inally, 1 would like to mention the President’s proposed G.1 Bill for America’s
Workers. The Section 401 prom {2 not part of this proposa! because of the special
needs of Indians and Native ricans living on reservations. However, we believe
that the redepigned employment and trainirg system will offer greater opportunities
for all participants, including Indians and Native Americans pot living on reserva-
tions, than in the present system. The proposed system will empower individuals
to choose the training they nced—at any eligible inatitution they choose; will pro-
vide job seckers high quelity information on job epportunities, career options, and
success recerds of training inatitutions so they can meke atmnci, informed decisions;
will provide greater flexibility to States and focal communities {o tailor information
and services to their specific needs; and will ensure that all systems at the Federal,
State and local Jevels are managed for high quality results. In addition, an srra
of current youth programsa will be transformed to mipport the education and achool-
to-werk relorms already undcrway in Ststes and local communities—{or both in-
school and out-of-school at-risk {ou:\g people. We hope to work with the Indlan and
Native American communities lo ensure that these new initiatives will be closely
coordinated with the Scction 401 programs,

In conclusion, the Department has a serious commitment to Nuhh;ﬁ, out to In-
dian and other Native American communities to provide assistance in e ancing the
employment and training opportunitiea available to youth in those communities. I
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have deseribe 4 some im&ttnm. steps we have taken to promote & new partnership.
While much remaina to be done, we believe a foundation has been eatablished whici
will result in improving econamic opportunitiea for many young Indians and Native
Americans.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my prepared atatement. I will be happy to answer
any questions you may have.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HERBERT BECKER, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF TRIBAL JUSTICE

Mr. Chairman, Mr. Vice Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to testify on
the challenges confronting American Indian youth. My name 1s Herbert Becker, and
I am the Director of the Office of Tribal Junt.?cr:a at the Department of Justice,

The testimony from the Febru 9, 1995 hearing before this Committee on the
Challenges Confronting American Indian Youth attests to the leadership, vitality,
and courage mamong Amerfcan Indian youth. Creative leadership among the tribes
will be a key asset in any effort to ndd}'\zu one of the most difficult problema facing
Indiar} Country and Indian youth—the ever-increasing crime rates in Indian com-
munities.

Tribal leaders are not alone in their efforts to reapond to and grew:nt. crime in
Indian Country. By statute, the Department through the United States Attorneys’
Offices is rcu?onai lo for the prosecution of major crimes and crimes between Indi-
ans and non-Indians in most of Indian Country. The Department is committed to
cartying out these responsibilities in @ manner conaistent with the government-to-
government relationship between tribes and the federal government.

Crime in Indian Country

Crime extracts a tremendous price from the communities of this Nation. Indian
commuaitica have pald particularly high costs both in terms of broken lives and in
dollars lost. Indian ou& are particularly vulnerable to the effects of the vielence.
Accarding to the FBI, 1,269 Indian Count?' viclent crime and child sexual abuse
investigations were conducted in 1983 and 1,406 were conducted in 1984, Accordin
to an Indian Health Service (IHS) report, homicide is the third leading cause o
death of American Indians in the following age gmuFinﬁ: those between the ages
of 1 to 14; I5 to 24; and 26 Lo 44. The homicide rate for Indians is 1.5 times higher
than the rate for the general population and 2.6 times higher than the rate for the
white population.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) Division of Social Services reported nearl
32,000 child abuse reports o 1993; over 4,100 of which constituted sexual abusae al-
legations, In 1994, nearly 26,000 child abuse reﬁom were reported; over 3,400 of
wgich constituted sexual sbuse allegationa. Furthermore, the Division of Law En-
forcement of BIA reporta that the rate of sexual offenses, excludini'pmstitution and
rape, in Indian Countrir fs 228 occurrences per 100,000 inhabitants verzus 41.0 oc-
currences per 100,000 inhabitants in rursl counties in the United States. The rate
of forcible rapes is 32.5 occurreaces per 100,000 inhabitaots in Indian Country ver-
sus 24.6 ccourreoce’s per 100,000 in rural counties. Further, attempted rapes in In-
dian Country occur at a rate of 14.6 per 100,000 inhabitants veraus 2.7dpar 104,000
inhabitants in rural countics. These are aiarming figures, which underscore the
vital importance of combining our efforts to address and prevent crimo in Indian
Country. The Department hopes to work with tribal leaders, tribal police depart-
meots, and Indian youth to reducs and prevent crime in Indian communities,
Criminal Investigation and Enforcement in Indlan Country

The United States Attorneys’ Offices and the Criminal Division—in conjunction
with the BIA, and the tribes—are warking to address the unique problems of com-
Imt.inﬁ1 crime in Indian Country. The prosecution of violent crimes against victims
in Indian Country is one of the Department’s highest enforcement priorities, eape-
clally where the victima are children,

A. Federal Prosecution of Crime in Indian Country

We havo taken soveral important stepa almed at improving the Department's re-
spongiveness to ¢rime_and crime victims in Indian Cnuntl"{. United States Attor-
neys’ Offices with significant Indian jurisdiction have focused on how to provide bet-
ter service to the Native American population. The De ment has encouraged
United States Attorneys to appoint stSal asaistants for Indian AfTairs in order to
develop better warking relations with tribes and to provido a point of contact for
crime victims and their families, tribal law enforcement officers, victim advocatea,
social workers, prosccutors, and other officials. Many such appointments have al-
ready been made, and wa expect additional appointments [n the near future. In rec
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ogrition of the importance of this task, 26 additional Assistant United States Attor-
ney positions have been provided to those Districta with significant amounts of In-
dian Country within their districts. .

The problems invelving the scope of federal, state, and tribal juriadiction present
a barrier to effective law enforcement in Indian Country. In order to address crime
in Indian Country, the United States Attorney2 consider it critical to Icvcragseore-
sources by developing working groups with bod: tribal and state governments. Some
Officer have worked with lederal, tribal, and state agcncies to develop mermoranda
of underatanding (MOU) to address problems caused by overlapping jurisdictions.
For example, in 1994, the tribes 8nd United States Attorneys Offices in Oklahoma
worked with the FBI, BIA, the IHS, and the stale to developed an MOU to guide
the investigation, reporting, and prosecution of physical and sexusl abuae of Indian
children. Scveral additional United States Attorneys' Offices are exploring the posai-
bility of MOUs with tribes.

We have cncouraged each United Stntes Attorney’s Office to aponsor meetings
with tribal ofTicials to address crime victima issues, particularly child scxual abuse,
and we have made resources available for this purpose.

Within the Department, we are redegigning our training programs to ensure that
federal prosecutors understand the jurisdictional framework for Indian Country, the
law, ung their responsibilitivs o American Indian communitica. The FBI is provid-
ing aimilar Lraininﬁ for agents assigned to Indian Couvitry or having significant re-
sponsibilities in Indian Country. Our gosl is to ensure that our federal enfurcement
reapongibilitiea are carried out sensitively, responsibly, and cffectively.

1. Child Sexual Abuse. The prosecution of federal child sexual abuse statutes in
Indian Country is &n arca of great cancern within the Departnient. Sinee the ennct.
ment of the Indian Child Protection Act, the Crime Control Act, and the Indian Law
Enforeement Reform Act in 1990, the Department has taken steps to enhance its
respongiveness to Indian child vietims and Lo utilize fully the tocls provided by Con-
gress,

On issues of child protection, the Child Exploitation and Obscenity Section
(CEOS) of the Criminuri\ Division enhances, Lhmu%‘l its expertise and humsn re-

sources, the efforts of United States Attorneys. CEOS is a litigation section atafled

Ly attorneys wilh backgrounds and expertise in child protection issues and the proa-
ccution of child exploitation cases. Since November 1994, CEQS haa hired seven at-
torneys with extensive expertise in child aexual abuse and Indian Country issues.

The Depariment aluo ia committed 1o closc coordination with other federal agen-

cies to ensure the efficient allocation of limited resources and to better leverage
available Tesources. Two years &0, the Department convencd & mecting of federn]
agenciea to diacuss how we might improve our response Lo child victims of crime
in Indian Conntry and allocale our resources to enhance these efforts. As a result,
we have catahlished good working relationships with the other relevant agencics.
We are confident that this will trunslate into a more unified and successful ap-
prouch to nddrcssinghl.he problems of ehildren who are victims of crime,

The Department has sdopted and strongly endorses the multi-dizciplinary ap-
proach to the handling of Lgcsc sensitive and Lragic cases. We are in the process
of catablishing, where appropriate, mulli-disciplinary teams for reservations. A vic-
tim-witneas coordinator Eas cen established in each United States Attorneys’ office,
and is available to work with tribal viclim assistance programs.

2. Juverile ffenders. In recent years, there has been a dramatic increase in the
numbers of indian juvenile offenders referred for federal progecution. There has also
been & dramatic inerense in the level of vialence perpetrated by these young offend-
ers. For example, as of February 15, 1995, the New Mexico U.S. Attorney's Office
has pending matters on 33 juvenile Indian offenders, including 1 lurceny, 11 serious
assaults, 13 sexual abuse cases, and 8 murders. Based on recent trends, the Depart-
ment cxpecls Lo receive more and more of these types of referrals.

Much of the juvenile crime on Indian reaervations appears Lo relate Lc or resolt
from loesc-knit gangs and alechol abuse. We have also noticed a disturbing amount
of witness intimidation in juvenile cases. When violence-prone youths hand together,
their boldneas and defiance of authority increages. In many Indian cominunities, law
rhiding victiins and witlnesses have been openly threstened with retaliation by
youth gangs il they cosperale with law enforcement authorities. Thia disturbin
trend towsrds witness intimidation ia hampering investigation and prosecution o
viclent erime.

B. Federal Criminal Investigation in Indian Country

The FBI and the BIA work LoFL-lhor to investigate federal erime in much of Indian
Country. To be effective in reducing crime in Indian Country, increased proaccu-
Lorial resources must be mirrored by an increase in law enforcement personnel. Dur-
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ing FY 1996 and FY 1936, the United States Attorneys hope to encourage the fur-
ther development of tribal police and law enforcement Sm ams and to encourage
aggressive cross-designation of tribal police with BIA an oti-er appropriate policing
autherities. Furthermore, 27 additional FBI agents will be assigned to supplement
the agents currently conducting investigations in Indian Country, bringing the total
to 124 agenta with investigatory responsibilities in Indian Country.

Because of the complex jurisdictional issues and the expanse of Indian Country,
the FBI works with tribes to develop cooperative law enforcement efforts. These of.
forts include the initiation of Operation Safe Traila in cooperation with the Navajo
Nation's Department of Law Enforcement. This program, which is designed to ad-
dress major crime and sexual avuse in Indian Country, is staffed by a tack force
of FBI Special Agents and Navajo Nation Police Officers. FBI field offices in other
areas are exf!oring the possibility of implementing Safe Traila programs. In addi-
tion, the FBI has developed pilof programa to train tribal police in FBI faciiities.
The FBI plans to expand ita programs and training eforts to include regional train-
ing programs for tribal police officers.

Building Tribal Capacity to Addrees Crime in Indian Country

Although the Department enforces federal law in much of Indian Country and
works with tribea to prevent crime, the solutions to the crime problem must come
from within tribal communities. The Department is committed to enhancing the ca.
pacity of tribes to confront the problems of crime in their communities.

A. Assistanee for Tribal Police Departments. Tribal Courts, and Socia! Services

1. Tribal Law Enforcement. The Communifg Oriented Policing Services (COPS)
program was established under the Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement
Act of 1994, COPS is commitled to helping Indian tribes control crime b hdpi{.&ﬁ
them hire more police officers and expand their law enforcement capacily. In
1995, 128 tribes received over $9 million in fund.ing from police hiring granta. Such
direct grants o tribea are an important step toward building tribal law enforcement
capacily.

- Tribal Courts. Tribal courts are critical to efTective law enforcement in Indjan
Country. Tribal courls generally have excluaive juriediction where both the offender
and the victim are Indians, except where the offense is subject to federal juriadiction
under the Major Crimea Act. Even under the Major Crimes Act, tribal courls have
concurrent jurisdiction. Furthermore, some Major Crimes Act cascs may be pros.
ecuted in tribal court, rather than federal court, due to lack of federal resources,

The Department’s Office of Policy Development has initiated the Tribal Court
Project. The goal of the project ia to assist tribes in developing and strengthening
their aystems of justice, so that tribal governments are able to eatsblish, maintain,
and enforce the laws that gevern Indian lands.

Tribal court aysiems are particularly significant in the handling of cases where
children are victima of crime, as well as where children are offenders. The tribal
court syatem ia the closest—eulturally and physically—to the victims, offenders, and
their families, and thus adjudication in these courts may have the most immediate
and profound impact on crime rates in Indian Country. To reduce crime, it is critical
to have an adjudicative, “value-enforcing” institution in the community that can
deal with child abuse, child neglect, and criminal acts committed by youth. Strong
tribal courts also are an essential component of tribal sovereignty and sclf-gyvern-
ance.

Adequate funding would be of particular assistance in the development of apecial-
ized family courta within :ribal systems of justice. Such family courts would handle
cases dealing with family violence, domestic relations, child support, child abuse and
negleet, and juvenile delinquency, or some combination thereof depending on the
particular wishes of the tribal government.

The Office of Poliﬁ Development's Tribal Courts Project—which coordinates its
activities with the BIA—is undertaking a number of efforts related ta the improve.
ment of tribal family court and juvenile justice systems. The Project will soon initi-
ate a Tribal Court-DOJ Partnership gram with certain tribal governments,
which Will coordinate Department resources aimed at improving tribal aystems of
justice. The particular emphasis of the Purtnernhi‘p will be family violence and juve-
nile fuatice. %he Depariment tentatively plans to focus resources on increased train-
ing opportunitiea for tribal court judgﬁs In these areas, and will support traditional
tribal justice systems—such as the Navaje Nation Peacemaker ]fwision—for the
handling of juvenile ](ustico issuca.

3. Other Funding for Law Enforeement, Crime Prevention, and Victims of Crimes.
The Department's Office of Juatice Programs also makes funds available to address
crime in Indian Country. The Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA)—through the Ed-
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ward Byme Memorial State and local Law Enforcement Assistance Program—pro-
vides formula nts to states Lo assist state and local criminal justice systems.
Tribes are eligible to receive funding from the states under this program. In addi-
tion, BJA tentatively has planned to provide the lollowing awards [rom discre-
tionary lunds: planning grants to three reservations for the establishment of a com-
rehensive plan to reduce crime, domestie violence, and drug/alco’. | abuse; fundin
or the improvement of tribal court systems, incluciing the possible establishment oﬁ'
s pilot program to increase the effectivenesa of prosecutions of child sexual and
fuhgaical abuse; and suppert for training and technical assistance for programs in
ndian Country offered by the Office of Victims of Crimes and BIA Law Enforce-
ment. In addition, BJA will work with the Boys and Girls Cluba of America to ex-
plore the feasibility of establishing sites in Indian Country.

The Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (0JJDP} manages the
Native American passthirough provision of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Act. In addition, OJJDP provides training, technical assistance, and grant funds to
tribes and instilutions [or the prevention and treatment of juvenile delinquency.

Currently, OJJDP is engaged in, or planning, several initiatives in Indian Coun-
try. OJJDP is providing assistance (o the Pueblo of Jemez, Navajo Nation, Gila
River Indian Conu- anity, and the Red Lake Bund of Chippewa Indians to develop
community-based alternatives to secure detention and incarceration [acilities.

In FY 1995, OJJDP plans to identily & site in Indian Country for one of five “Sale
Futures” programs. Sale Futures wili focus on implementing & comprehensive delin-
quency prevention and intervention program. This program will enhance public
salely and provide a continuum of care for at-risk and delinguent youth.

OJIDP also plans to replicate the “Bethesda Day Treatment Center” model in In-
dinn Country. This model provides day treatment to improve the academic and so-
cial skilla of juveniles referred h{ the courts. The zervices olfered by such a center
include family therapy, individual and group counscling, academic support, job skills
development, and substance sbuse prevention and treatment.

The Office of Victims of Crime (OVC) works with federal, stute, and tribal authori-
ties to Support programs Lo compensate and assist victims of ¢rimes. In addition.
OVC offers training for tribal, state, and federal law enforcement officers, prosecu-
tors, and social service and mental health stafl through the biennial Indian Nations
Conference.

In 1884, OVC's Victim Assistance in Indian Country {VAIC) grants supported the
cilorts of 352 siafl and 668 volunteers providing an array of critical victim assist-
ance services Lo crime victims on reservations and in Native American communities.
OVC VAIC subgrant awards have supported the development ol more than 50 tribal
victim assistance programs in 19 states. OVC haa awarded approximatel $5.4 mil-
lion in funding cycles since 1989 to thesc states [or these purposes. OVC also sup-
ports training and technical assistance to VAIC subgrantees t rough an independ-
ent contracfor.

Since 1989, OVC has provided funding to 28 tribes through the Children’s Justice
Ad to improve the investigation, prosecution, and handling of cases of child abuse,

articularly child sexual abuse. OVC glso supports jts Native American Children's
gusticc Acl grantees through training and technical assistunce provided by the Na-
tional Indian Justice Center.

B. Addressing Domestic Violence

No assessment of the effocts of erime on Indian youth would be complete without
stressing the tremendous impact that family violence has on the growth and spread
of crime. A child that observes domestic violence grows up (o accept violence as &
normal part of life and is more likely to become an abuser or an abuse victim. As
8 society we must take the position that family vielence will not be tolerated.

The Violence Agninst Women Act, established under the Violent Crime Control
and Law Enflorcement Act of 1894, auchorizes and appropriates funds flor & grants
program to combat viclent crime against women. These grants are desi ed to de-
velop and strengthen effective law enforcement strategies to combat violent crimes
againat women and strengthen viclim services in cases involving violence agsinst
women. The Act stipulates that 40 of the appropristed funds must be reserved ler
direct grants (o tribal governments. The gﬁ‘:ce of Justice Programs anticipales
awarding 1520 grants {o Indjan tribes through this discretionary program in FY
1595.

Conclusion

In apite of the grim crime statistics in Indian Country, the Department is optimis-
tic that the future will be brighter for the first Americans. | aay this because we
have had the opportunity to work with many tribal leaders. America’s tribal leaders
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are telented, dynamic, creative, and committed people. Qur optimism also rests on
the knowledge that the federsl government is developing a new partnership with
the trihes—a partnership that will bring new thinking to bear on the problems of
crime in Indian Countyy,

The Deﬁa.rtment looks forward to working with the tribes and the Senate Commit-
tee mn an Affairs to bulld strong, safe tribal communities in which Indian youth
can thrive.

This concludes my testimony. I will be happy to answer any questions the Com-
mittee may have,

PREPARED STATEMENT OF THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS

The American Academy of Pediatrics represents 49,000 pediatriclans who are
dedicated to promoting the health, safety and well-being of infants, children, adoles-
cents and young adults. We appreciate the opportunity to comment on several of the
most important issues facing Native American children and fumilies in the United
States today—issues that stmnglﬁr affect their emotional and physical health. The
Armerican Academy of Pediatrica has had a long relationship with Native American
groups and with the Indian Health Service, a relationship centered over concerns
about Native American child health.

Academy believes, as do most Americans, that education is one of the keys
to a happy, successful life. The uneven quality of Native American education has
long been & concern. In addition to a continuing interest in non-residential edu.
cation for Indian children, the Academy has participated in site visits and reviews
at Indian boarding schools on several occasions over the past two decades, Past
abuses, such &8 the forcible attempts at eradication of Indian languages and cul-
tures in the boarding schools and actual physical and sexual abuse, have largely,
but not entirelg been elimipated. The movement toward therapeutic schools is &
new and valuabfe concept, given the tendency of off-reservation boarding achools to
attract children with severe problems. Adequate screening of these children at the
time of admission and continued close follow-up may enable man{ht.o escape the
problems that have led them {0 these achools, often as a last resort. The therapeutic
achools and other schools for Native American children would do well, the Aeademy
believes, to further the role of tribal culture as & means of helping Native American
children to a greater sense of belonging—and improved self-esteem,

lmlpmved self-esteem would go a long way toward reducing the intergenerational
problem of alechol and other substance abuse which {8 so destructive in maay Na.
tive American communities. Substance abuse is related to many other problems, in-
cluding fetal aleohol syndrome, violence in its many guises, and gang-related activ-
ity. Other approaches to alcohol and substance abuse education and prevention, aa
well as treatment, should be sought through the tribes, the Bureau of Indian Af-
fairs, and the Indian Health Service.

Violence is a pervasive problem in some Native American commuaities, related to
all the other problems in this list: lack of adequate education, lack of self-esteem,
substance abuse, and deterioration in family values, A child suicide rate two to
three times. as high aa the rate for ail U.S. races, & homicide rate about 50 percent
higher, and & rate of death from unintentional ini'\ury two to threa tirmmes higher than
the rate for all races attest to the severity of these problems in Native rican
communities, Some of the tribes an ' the Indizn Health Service have begun some
innovative programs to deal with these problems: the recent videotape, “Cross M
Heart” on accident prevention put out by the Navajo Nation, and the on-going ef-
forts of the IHS Injury Prevention Program sre among them, as {s the Healthy Start
initiative of the Aberdeen Area tribes.

As noted before, the problems of substance abuse, violence, and poor educational
attainment often occur in the same families, Preliminary evidence suggeats that the
likelihood of infant death is higher {n the seme families, which might be labeled
“dysfunctional.® The Academy supports efforts to break into what Is often an
intergenerational cycle of poor functicning. Home visiting programs have been
shown to be effective in this regard,

In virtually sl of our visits to Indian reservations, those concerned about children
have mentianed problems with child abuse, though the problem is certainly not lim-
ited to reservations. The Academ support:s improvement in case.finding and eval-
uation, and in treatment for victims and for perpetrators. It will continue to lend
its expertise in these areas by teaching tribal personnel and medical care providers
about the evaluation, treatment, and prevention of child abuse.

Teen pregnancy continues to be a concern for all groups of Americans, includin
our First Americans, The prevalence of early child-bearing and its agsociation wit
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other adverse life-style choices iz further evidence for 2 nead for innovative ap-
proaches to prevention in Nalive American adolescent ups, The Academy ap-
plauds initiatives such as the achool health programa in Tuba City, Arizona; Brown-
ing, Montana; and Laguna, New Mexico, and hopes to support them and dissemi-
nate information sbout their successes.

The choice of healthy lifeatyles must begin well before adoleseence, of course, and
musl eontinue long beyond the teen years. The Academy is concerned oot only about
clearly and quickly self-destructive {ehaviors such as subatance ubuse, early preg-
nancy, and engaging in violent behavior, but zlso about long-term damage caused
bg inappropriate diels, resulting in the eventual problems of{ nurging-bottie caries,
obegity, and diabetes. Such innovative programs as the Wellness Program st Zuni
Pucblo, New Mexico, need continuing support.

The tribes are rapidly assuming more and more control over their health care
under the Sell-Determination and Self-Governanee statutes. There are no b.iter

ups than the tribes themselves to determine prioritics in assuring the fulure
gl::alth of their population through assuring the present and future health of their
infants, children, and adolescents. They will 1ook to the federal government for con-
tinuing financial suppart for their efforts, and will look at the best of BIA and IHS
programs among models for their child health programa. The Aeademy supporis
their efforts Lo address the jssues of family dysfunction, substance abuse, viclence,
and lack of educational attainment.

PHEPARED STATEMENT OF DoMINIC NessI, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF NATIVE AMERICAN
PROGRAMS, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPM ENT

Mr. Chairman and Members of this Committee, thank you for 'vinlg the Depart-
ment of Housing and Urban Development the opportunity Lo lcnlig"bc ore you Lndaﬁ
on the critieally important subject of the challenges facing Native American youll
and Lo discuss the concerns identified by those young people that testified during
the hearing that you held on February 8, 1995.

Sccretary Cisneros and Assistant Secretary for Public and Indian Housing doseph
Shuldiner scnd their sincerest regards and strong support for your ¢fforts in this
arca.

The witnesses at the February hearing powerfully expressed the isolation and de-
spair felt by many Native American young people. As you heard, these emotions all
too often lead to educational failure, substance sbuse, alcoholism, violence, and sui-
cide.

As you may remember from the Secretary’s appearance at a recent appropriation
oversight hearing conducted by this committee, he mentioned that he would seon
visit & number of reservations in Montana, including the Northern Cheyenne Res-
ervalion in Lame Deer, Montana. [ had the good fortune to accompany him during
that visit which Look place Lwo weckends ago. | would like to begin this testimeny
by recounting a tragic, but all too often common story about a 16 year-old Northern
Cheycnne, boy who was found murdered on the Reservation on February 7.

The newspaper article recounti ng this story is almost & text-book case of the many
social ills facing today's youth. A dysfunctional family, over-crowded housing condi-
tions, juvenile %ciinquency. wellare, vandalism, teen-age substance abuse, violenee
and, finally, 2 murder and a suicide are =1l included in this one single article. The
story in-between the lines, deseribes & loas of hope and direction, being replaced by
despair and tragedy. | have copics of the zrticle and ! will submit them with any
testimeny.

These shocking deaths are all the more disturbing when you consider that this
young men's grandmother moved him from Billings to the Northern Cheyenne Res.
ervalion in 1991 because she fell that the Resorvation was s safer and healthier
place to grow up. Ironically, the Northern Cheyenne are one of the first lndian res-
ervalions to ogcn 8 Boys and Girls Club and (o begin & Tribal initiative o combat
these issues. Unfortunately, for this young man, the good people of Northern Chey-
enne aimply didn't have the money or resourcea 1o reach this young man.

His murder and his friend’s suicide arc symploms of the sacial illa thet ihis De-
partment is fully committed to helping Tribes and Indian Housing Authoritics ad-
dress. We must place special importance on youth programs, both for the present
and long-term health of Nalive Americans andyNsl.ivc commu nitiea.

The positive effect of this elfort cxtends beyond the Native American community
to the Rlosl.ion a8 a whole. I we arc ever 1o reverse the hundreds of years of Tribal
dependency on the federal government rnd replace it with & productive and coopera-
tive partnership relationship, we must reach these future leadors,
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Of the programs that HUD administers in erder to he].f{ Native American goung
people, I would like to highlight today the Public and Indian Housing Drug Elimi-
nation program, the Youth Sperts progrem, cur cultural conteats for young people,
the Department’s involvement with the Boys and Girls Clubs of America, and one
example ;f the volunteer work that HUD afaff contribute on behalf of Native Amer-
fcan youth. -

Drug Elimination Program

Substance Abuse is the most severe health and social problem in Indian Country
today. Nothing is more oosth to Native Americans than the consequences of sub-
stance abuse measured in % yaical, mental, social, and economic terms, Eighteen
percent of all deaths among Native Americans are substance abuse related.

Statistica from the Indian Health Service (IHS) subatance abuse treatment pro-
gram sl ow that Native American young people abuse both legal and illegal sub-
stances. These include inhalants {glue, paint, gasoline, nail polish remover, eic.),
stimulants {amphetamines, caffeine, cocaine), marijuana, opiates (heroin, morphine,
cough )syrupa), and non-religious uses of hallucinogens P, LSD, mescaline, and
peyote).

‘As vou can see from this list, young people abuse & variety of substances that are
affordable and available to them, not just the “street drugs” which receive most of
the mase media 2ttention. This means that the elimination of substance sbuse has
to become s community effort. Cha.ngm% the social and economic environment in
which illicit drug use thrives is essential for long term reduction in substance abuse.
Furthermore, comprehensive, community-based prevention provides a supportive
foundation for effective treatment and law enforcement.

HUD implements its Drug Elimination Program from this social and economic

crspective. Indian Housing Authorities (IHAa) and residents have a t deal of
Flcxi ility within this program to addresa their specific drug-related problems. Eligi-
ble grant activities include:
» employing security personnel and investigators;

reimbursing local law agenciea for security;
making physical improvementa to enhance security;
establishing of veluntary tenant patrols; and
designing grug prevention programs, including education, family and other sup-
port services, youth services, and job training.

In FY 1994, 43 of the 60 [HAs that apﬁlied were funded for $7,737,894. Since
1989, the first year of the program, [HAa have received approximately $25 million
dollars for these activitiea.

The Crow Nation in Montana has used HUD drug prevention funds to create a
cultural presentation called “Our Wa%hof Life.” This show containg Crow songs,
dances, and traditienal flute music. The dancers, singers, and presenters in tﬁ:
show emphasize education, Crow language and culture, and anti-drug themes.

Participants in “Our Way of Lif%” rnngc in age from five years to seventy years
old. The wide variety of groups in the thew helpe both participants and audi-
ence racmbers defeat the feelings of isolation that lead to 80 many problems in In-
dign Country.

An imporiant new initiative under the Drug Elimination Progam will confront di-
rectly the despair that too often leads young people to substance abuse and gang
membership. This initiative is 8 HUD.aponsored training program called “The New
Warriors: American Indian Youth Development and Leadership Teday.”

Training sessions for this program will be hosted this year by reservations in the
six Office of Native American Program geographic areas. Young people will be the
leadersrole models in these sessions, which will include anti-crime/anti-drug tactics
that are culturally relevant to American Indian youth, leadership akills, negotiaiion
skills, conflict resolution, self-esteem, traditional values, forming youth community
groups, and volunteer oppartunities.

OfMice of Native American Programa (ONAP), along with the Menominee Tribal
Houaing Authority and the Menominee Tribal Police Department, will be co-sponsor-
ing a national Drug Elimination Crime Prevention Conference on May 6-11, 1995,
The Conference theme “Building Positive Partnerships for 8 Brighter Tomorrow”
embraces ONAP's vision of establishing positive networking opportunitics and
atrengthening nerships among THAs and law enforcement officials. A contest to
dea{%l_:lDl logo for the Conference is being conducted at the Menominee High School.

HUD also offers technical assistarce grants on a non-competitive basis of up to
$10,000 to Tribal communities who wiced additional planning assistance.
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Youth Sports Program

HUD's Youth Sporta Program (YSP) ia based on the conviction, shared by Indian
people for thousands of years, that fitness and participation in sporis are an ex-
tremely effective way to build identity and sclf-estcem.

The ¥YSP funda sports, cultural, egucationa.'l, recreational, and other activities de-
signed to appeal to youth as alternatives to the drug environment in Indian housing
projects. Acquisition, construction, or rchabilitation of community centers, parka or
playgrounds arc eligible aclivitiea under the program.

A number of Tribes have used YSP funds to organize youth campa through the
“Wings of America” program. This youth development program of The Earth: Circle
Foundation, Inc. usea running as & catalyst to inapire Indian youth to effect change
in themselves and their communities and to take pride in their cultural identity.

A total of 2 THAs received Youth Sports grants in FY 1994, out of 71 applicants
for 2 total of $2.6 million dollars. This ia & subatantial increase from the nine [HAs
that received grants in FY 1393, but there is atill mueh more demand than funding
available [or thia program.

Cultural Contests for Native American Youth

An important way that HUD atiempta to promote pride in Native American youth
and to introduce them to the coneepts ol housing and economic development is
through Bepartment sponsored cultural activitiea. In 1993, we aaked a young Native
Amenican Leen (rom the Roscbud reservation, Lakota Clairmont, to design a poater
which became the theme for HUD's efforts to enhance its relationship with the Na.
tive American community. We sponsored a conleat in 1994 for Native Ameriean
youth to submit drawinga with their images of Indian housing. ONAP received en-
tries from over 150 young pcople, and chose 13 drawings for inclusion in the 1995
American Indian Heritage Calendar. The young people whose drawings were in-
cluded received g $100 aavings bond.

HUD distributed the calendar to tribes and IHAa in Novembe:, 199]. The images
it contamins reflect the variety of Native Ameriean youths nuusing ideals, and are
an important reminder to ua of the importance of & home to young people.

For 1995, GNAP is sponsoring an easay contest in which Native American youtha
will describe the dreams that they have for-improving their people’s living environ-
ments. Winning entriea will be displayed at HUD Hcad%uarl.erﬂ. published for na-
tionwide dislribution, and recognized at a ceremony in D C.

Boys and Girls Clube

in 1987, the Boya and Girla Clubs of America (RGCA) and HUD forged a partner-
ship Lo create new Clubs within publie housing. In 1992, BGCA and §{UD initiated
a similur effort in Indian Housing. Since that time, five cluba have been created and
aa many as 10 additional clubs are in the process of being formed.

RGCA programs include a prevention program addressing the rclated problems of
drug use, alechol use, and premature sexual activity, targeted outreach to "at risk™
young people, carcer exploration and job search, and sporta tournaments.

Many 1HAs have used the Drug Elimination and Youth Sporta Programa to initi-
ate Boys and Girls Club activities and we continue to work with local communities
to convert non-dwelling space or abandoned units into youth centers.

Volunteer Activities by HUD staff

1 would like to conclude this testimony by discussing an activity which is very spe-
cial Lo me and reflects the spirit and concern of many ol my co-workers at HLFI(;.
Ten years ago, mysell and my HUD stafl in Denver creaied a special Weekend event
for Natjve American leens to discuss the very issues we are apeaking about lodny.
The entire event is & cooperative eclfort between HUD volunteera and the Indian
housing authorities [rom the Northern Plains area. The {irst year about 150 young
people attended.

At the end of this month, we will hold cur tenth annual cvent and we expect al-
mast 850 yosung people, rlong with parents, chaperons nud coaches Lo attend our
educational sessians and basketbnll tournament. Senntor Campbell atlended our
accond event and we hope that he will be able Lo come aguin this year to help us
cclebrate our tenth anniversary.

Our goal was Lo demonstrate to the Nnuve American community that we, at
HUD, fully understand that there is more to building & home than simply pulting
up & siricture.

Again, wc nppreciate the opporlunity to uppear before you today and 1 would be
pleascd to answer any questions you may have.




U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEYZLOPMENT,
Weshirgton, DC.

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY,
FOR PUBLIC AND INDIAN HoUsIng

Hon. DANIEL INOUYE,
U.S. Senate,

Commiliee on Indian Affairs,
Washington, DC.

Dear Senator Inouye: Thank you for your letter of March 10, 1995 regsrdin Boys
and Girla Clubs on Indian reservations. Your letter Follows & March 7, 995, genau!
Cong}zllﬁttee on Indian Affairs hearing on the challenges facing Native American
youth,

I testified at the March 7 hearing on behalf of the Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUT). During my testimony, I apoke about the positive impact
that Boys and Girls Clubs are hswni‘in Indian country. 1 am pleascd to provide
the further information requested on thia excellent and much-nceded program.

Question (1): I understand that several Boye and Girls Clubs have tq:cncd on
Indian reservations in the past fow years—have they had & positive impact?

Answer (1): The Clubs currently operating in Indian country have had an ex-
tremely positive impact in their local communitics. The educational and recreational
opportunitics that they offer give youn\% people worthwhile alternatives to the bore-
dom, lack of supervision, and scarcity of after-school aetivitiea or many rescrvations.
These conditions (oo often lead to substance abuse, education.. ilure, and syicide.
In fact, The Washington Poat reported on March 3, 1992 that one out of five Native
American girls and onc out of eight Native Amorican bays have attempted guicide.

Over the past three years, has engaged in an active partnership with Boys
and Girla Clubs of America to bring Cluba to Indian reservations asg part of the ef-
fort to fight the grave social problems that afflict 0 many Native American youn
Pm?-nlm In 1992, the firat independent Boys and Girls Club on Indian land opene
in the Sac and Fox Nation, in Shawnee, OK. There are now eight Boys and Girls
Cluba on Indian reservations

¢ Boys and Girla Clubs on Indian reservations work closely with the national
Club organization to design auccessful programg and activities. Natjonal-love} pro-
ams include SMART Moves, which ia designed (o address the related problems of
grrug use, alcohol use, and premature acxua.lggctivity. Based on current, proven pre-
vention techniques, the program usea & team approach involving Club stafT, purenta
and community representatives. The Boys and Girla Clubs national orvanization
also provides guidance for targeled outreach, in which delinquent and "at.risk"
youth are identified and recruited jnto the Clubs.
¢ national Boys and Girla Cluhs organization provides excellent curricula for
it; local affiliates, but at the same time it strongly supports activities that highlight
lecal culture and tradition. An important example of this concept in actjon is found

in the mgTsms of the SuAnne Big Crow Boya and Girls Club in Pine Ridge, NE.
l The Siu has met with great success in developing activitics that promote {
-

e val-
ues of its namesake. Before ahe was killed in & car accident in February, 1992 g

the age of 17, SuAnne Big Crow was an all.state bagketball player, homecomin
queen, and an honcr student. She was proud of her Lakota heritage, and worke
lo rlnskc the Pine Ridge reservation a place frec of aleohol, drug abuae, jealousy, and
violence.

Beyond working to make Pine Ridge a better place, SuAnne fought hard to combat
the prejudice and racism that 8 all Lo common off the reservation. The Club has
continued her cfforta by organtzinq cultural activities for ofi-rescrvalion youth and
by providing both Indian and non-Indian young people with opportunities to social-
ize.

The national network provided by the Cluba makes it peasible for Native Amer-
ican youth to meet with other kids and Clubs off the reacrvation. This kind of inter-

action gives the young peoplcfmwmg up on isolated reservations a much-needed
sense of their place in the world,

Recently, youths from the Lame Deer, MT reservation made a 350-mile {?urncy
to visit l‘cﬁow non-Indian Club members in Greeley, CO. The Lame Deer Club mem.
bers diaplayed a tepee and J:erformed ceremonial dances, and came back from the
trip with a new gense of pride and enthusjasm. The Grccfcy Club young people cur.
rently are planning a trip to Lame Deor.

Reaction lo Club activities on indian reservationa hag been uaiformly positive,
Club directors from the Delaware Tribe and the Sac and Fox Nstion have told me
that they sce many improvements in their members’ attituden as a result of partici.
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pation jn Club-sponsored activities. The kida have become more reapectful, more
outgoing, and more geared to teamwork. The scholastic performance of many moem-
bers also has improved significantly.

The local communpities at lu.l"_’gc alsa are responding positively to the Clubs. The
SuAnne Big Crow Boys and Girla Club acquired and remodeled a building and
opencd a youth center with 90 percent wolunteer labor, Letters of support for Club
activitics have come from the Housing Authority, the Chief of Police, the principal
of the local achool, and members of the local community.

The remarkable success of the SuAnne Big Crow Boy and Girls Club is especially

atifying because the reservation is located in the (_goorest. county in the United

tates, as identified by the 1980 and 1990 National Census. The fact that the Club
has achieved its positive impact amid such extreme poverty bodes well for Cluba on |
other reservations.

Participation rates are excellent for Boys and Girls Clubs on Indian reservations.
For example, of the 1,800 children of Clab age on the Northern Cheyenne reserva-
tion, more than 700 have become Club members aince the facility began operations
in 1993. As a general rule, fully 30 percent of Club members in &dian country par-
ticipate daily in Club activities.

uestion (2): What are the costs involved in opening a Boys and Girls Club or
other type of youth development organization on a reservation?

Answer (2): Start- ﬁcost,s for a Boys and Girls Club range from $15,000-40,000,
This tovers, among other things, acquisition and/or rehabilitation of needed facili-
tica. Often, Club aspace is donated by the Tribe. An average Club annual operating
budget is $125,600. This budget varies with the size and scope of the Club, and it
covers afliliation dues, insurance, salaries, equipment, and supplies.

It i important to note that not all of these budget needs would be filled with fed-
cral dollars. The Depariment can provide some money for Club use through fundin
sourcea such as the Youth Sports Program. In the long run, however, most Boys an
Girla Club fundinﬁowill wome from private orgamizations and individuala. The
SuAnne Big Crow ;Fhand Girla Club recently received a five-figure donation from
& ;a;]ns?bg individual. The W.H Kellogg Foundation alse has provided grants to sev-
er uba.

Question (3): If there were more funding, such as that provided in the Youth De-
velopment Block Grant, how man_,v Boys and Girls Cluba and other similar programs
could you open in Indian country?

Answer (3): If funding were available, cight to fourteen Boys and Girls Clubs
could be opened immediately on Indian reservations. Many more could be opened
in the long run. There js & tremendous need for the Clubs in Indian country, given
the almost complete lack of other private or public resources to provide positive lei-
sure-lime activities for young people in these jmolaled areas. Combined with this
need ia the excellent promotion work being undertaken by dedicated leaders at the
national level of the Boya and Girla Clubs organization.

Thank you for your interest in the Department’s programa.
Sincerely yours,
DoM Ness1, DIRECTOR,
Office of Native American Programs.
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STATEMENT OF ADA E. DEER, ASSISTANT SECRETARY - INDIAN AFEAIRS,
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, AT THE OVERSIGHT HEARING BEFORE THE
COMMITTEE ON INDIAN AFFAIRS, UNITED STATES SENATE, ON THE
"CHALLENGES FACED BY INDIAN YOUTH, INCLUDING ALCOHOL AWD
SUBSTANCE ABUSE, VIOLENCE, EDUCATION AND FAMILY VALUES,
ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES".

Muarch 7, 1995

Good raorning. Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee. | amn pleased to
be here to speak to the many challenges facing American Indian and Alaska
Native youth today. My staff who attended your hearin; on February 9 were
moved by the testimony provided by the eiyht young people. At the Bureau of
Indian Affaits {BIAl we are doing our part to alleviate the pain and alienation

faced by our youth, and we realize there is much, much more that all of us can
do.

I have with me today Ms. Joann Sehastiar: Morris. Acting Director, Office of
Tribal Servicas; Or. James Martin, Qtfice of Indian Edcuation Programs; and Mr.
Theodore Quasula, Chief, Division of Law Enforcement. They v.ill assist me in
responding to any technical questions the Committee may have.

We have incorporated detailed information in this formal testimany, which we
ask be entered into the record, to demonstrate the range of programs and
activities that support American Indian and Alaska Native youth and families
within several of our offices: Tiibal Services, Fducation, Law Enforcement, and
Alcohol and Substance Abuse.

As agents of the Federal Government, it is our duty and responsibility to do all
we can to improve circumstances for Indian youth. The multiple chaienges
they face are the direct result of historical policies and practices of our
Government. in my testimony | will cite examples of cyrrent programs and

innovations geared 1o the chailenges of American Indian and Alaska Native
youth,



Risk Factors

Too many Indian chidrer grow “p.n {anulies where nsk factors are tugh. such
as. poverty. rural solation. cultural  alenatton. poor hesalth. 3nd low
educational attainment of parents . They enter adulthood without the necessary
skills of mol vatian to contribute to thewr communiies. They will be poorly
equipped 1o reap the benelits or meet the responstiliies of parenthood,
ciizenship and employment. The consequences of being iaused armid multiple
risk factors reach far beyond indiwvidual ives. The future of Indan communiies
as sovercign nalions and rher economic weli-being depend as much on Indian
youth who aie il educated. alienated. or pons. as on those who are heaithy and
otherwise more advantaged. Fer Indidn Nauons. the years 1o come will be less

safe, less caring. and less culturally intacl unless we act

But our action must be thoughtful. broad-hased, and sustained The problems
tnat currently olague some Indian ctuldren and threalen many nwore have
muobved ovet Line and will noi drsappear ovesrmight. Solutions wall depend un
steor. * trihal leadershap and the concerted efforts of every sector of Indian
society -- mndividuals, extended fanules, communities, and government at every
level. They witiequire creahive Federa! and 1noal policies. wise mvestmenls ol
Tfederal 3.0 tnbal resources. and the significant commitment of time and
attention by Lnbal gove.nmenis 10 the needs of Indian children and theur
fammes. 1t s cntice! that inba! gonernments, 1N partnerstup anth Fednral
agercits. go focward 10 spark Indwan communilies to 3c. upon the agenda our

Ind-an chidrien deserve

Where We Are

It s unfortunate that we continue to cile alarming stauistics such as the
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following. Howaever, such data substantiate the nead for greater invelvement
by lacal communities, tribal gavernmants, the Faderal Government. and other
concerned parties.

In 1994, BIA Sacial Services received notice that State courts granted
46 adoptions of Indian children, terminated the rights of 50 Indian
parents, and issued 155 notices of abuse and neglect affecting anly off-
reservat.on yauth.

BIA Sacial Services received 31,901 child abuse complaints in 1993, In
1994, the number of complaints drepped to 25,919, This reduction s
nut necessarily due to a decrease in incidents, but is influenced by the

decrease in the number of tribes reporting to the BIA.

Last year. BIA Law Enforcement investigated 442 crimes in which
children were victims, including sexual contact, incest, sexual abuse,

physical abuse, and felany sexusl molastation.

In a nine month period ending July 1994, 35.914 indians were
incarcerated in tribal and Bl A detention facilitics: mast were charged with
alcahol related offenses and most were intoxicated at the time of their
arrast.

In a 15 month period ending December 1994, 13,932 juveniles were
placed in detention facilities, an averaga of 29 par day. Of the 67
detention facilities aperated by the wibes or BIA, anly 96 beds are
available in juvenile-only facilities, and 247 in adult facilities.

The BIA criminal investigation unit has identified mare than 180 gangs
in Indian country, with activities ranging from showing colors and

<
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panting graffili, to theft, poassesson of firears sale of narconcs, and

drive-by shoolings.

Farietaas and services for youinfuiodferders aré almost ©on exstert «

Indhan countcy

uUnderstatfed pokce gepartments are overwhelmed with complaints e
many ltocahities 1aw enforcement has been reduced to ssmply ensuneg

that all reparis are properly nvestigated.

Las® year. 526 dr g cases vere reportea in Inman count-y - 578 persons
were arrested and ciiat:ons issued. and over 10.000 pounds of mdnjsana

were sewzed. along with crack cocare, heroin, and amphetanenes

80%, of suicides and attempted suicides among Inda: youth are aicohol

or drug-related

A considerabie number of Inthan chiidren in special education are Fetal
Alcohol SyndromesFetal Alcohol Effect {(FAS FAE} or affected by other
Alcohol Related Birth Defects (ARBDI. Six (6} umes more Indian infants
are born with FAS/FAE Than the general populauon.

Youth nationwade are at nsk due to dechining family values, social aienation and
economic dispanty. Nevertheless, the above statistcs indicate the range of
challenges faced by contemporary Indian youth.

What We Hava Learned

The Bureau of indiarn Affars s only one of the players whe is and shoutd be

actively seek:ng solutrans to the challenges facing Indian youth; equsl partners

BEST COPY AVAILABLE




[€)

FRICE

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

5
nclude tribal leadership and the Congress. An orchestrated approach 10
meeting the needs of Indian communities requires a coordination of effort and

resources.

We believe that tribal governments. communities and families can share the
responsibility for addressing the challenges youth face. Economic development.
social service, education, and law enforcement programs -- no matter who runs
them -- will not be successful without community ownership. Local
involvement coupled with a Federal commitment is the key to Providing a future

for our Indian youth.

At 8 time when the Federa. Governmant 1s seeking ways to reduce 1ts presence,
the BIA must take every opportunity 1o partner with tribes and other federal
antities to meet its obligations to tribal people, especially the youth. Some of

the collaborative efforts of the BIA are Listed below.
BIA Child Protection provides funding to BIA Law Enforcement to support
six security officers. responsible for conducting background checks on

prospective staff.

Representatives from BIA and IHS meet quarterly as the Nationat Child
Protection Team.

Memoranda of Agreement ar . in eff2ct between BIA and IHS to work on

child abuse issues and other ealth and social issues.

A Memorandum of Agreament is in the final draft stage between BIA

Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse and IMS to work jointly on

pravention issues.
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The Acting Director of the Office of Tribal Services {OTS! represents the
Oftice of the Assistant Secretary on three inter-agency commttees
which meet quarterly: Inter-agency Task Force on Child Abuse and
Neglect. Inter-agency Special Education and Disabilities Commutiee. and
Inter-agency Council on the Menta. Health of Amerncan Indian Youth.
QOther BIA stat{ also partiCipate actively

8IA Child Protection and IHS are jointly sponsosing 8 Natronal Indian

Family Preservation conference tn Aprit, 1995,

BlA Social Serwces 15 a co-sponsor with the Cherokee Naton of

Oklahoma of tre Natonal Summit on the Indian Family 1n May. 1995.

BIA QTS assisted the Admunisteation tor Chitdien and Famities {ACF} by
compiing nter-agency recommendations which respond to a DHHS
Otfice of the Inspector Genera! audil. Recommendations address how

the ACF can improve iis services 10 Native Amerncans and Tnbes.

BIA Social Services coordinates inter-disciphinary chuld protect:on teams

developed at each area 0 se. many of whch include United States

Attorne s and representatives from State s0cra! services agencies

BIA efforts heve resulted n tnbal access 10 FB! hingerpnnt services for

background investigations of potential employees.
BIA Law Enforcement k:as formed partnershups wath the Department ol
Justice. FBI. and U.S. Attorneys Office 1o enhance inveshigation and

piosecuinion of crenes in Indign counlry.

BIA Layy Entorcemeni has imtigted regrongl training ¢ conjunction with
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the IHS, U.S. Attorneys Office, Office for Victims of Cime, and FBI to
address child abuse, family violence investigation, and vicumiwitness

protection and intervention.

Promising Approaches

We believe the Federat Governmant has a special responsibility to support tribal
efforts to provide for the safaty of their children and communities in general.
As part of its mission, the 8lA iz doing as much as possible with scarce

rgsources, including implementing the following approaches and innovations.

BIA divisions, Such as Education, Law Enforcement, and Social Services
have reprasentatives whao assist in coordinating child protection

initiatives.

The BIA maintains a national toll free child abuse and neglect reportling
hotline (1-800-633-5155), which has proven an effective reporting
machanism.

Ongoing training of tribal and BIA staff on child abuse intervention,
awareness and reporting is provided by Social Services, Child

Protection,.Judicial Services, OIEP and Law Enforcement.

BIA Child Protection continuet to observe National Child Abuse
Prevention month each April. e 193%, the BIA Blue Ribbon Campaign
to Prevent Child Abuse and Family Violenca is being facilitated by the
Jemez Pueblo Chilg Protection Team.

A final report of the Cherokee Nation Child Abuse Prevention Project.
jointly funded by BIA and IHS, is due shortly.

ER
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We are in the third and final vear of a joint project with IHS to train
therapists 10 treat adoescent sexual offenders,

BIA Socia! Sarvices coordinates the Indian Child Welfare Act (ICWA)
program, which funds on- ang off-reservation ICWA programs designed
to stabilize and strengthen Indian families.

The Family and Child Education {FACE} Program provides families with
parenting skills to nurture their children’s development and readiness for
school. The program also provides oportunities for parents to enhance
their educational levels and Pfomote cooperation beiween family support
and social services agencies. While recognized internationally, resources
eXist (o support the FACE program in only 23 BIA schools.

65 BIA funded schools participate in an Economic Development Initiative
which promotes youth entrepreneurship, expanded career choices, and
competition in a global economy.

One grant residentiat school is developing a therapeutic community
schoot model which incorporates Culture and tradition with an inter-
disciplinary therapeutic approach. Youthin these residential schools are
8mong the maost at-risk in the nation, and deserve the opportunity to
achieve academically while their manal health needs are being
addressed.

Another innovative approach, the Sherman indian High School Wellness

Meodel, incorporates some aspects of the therapeutic approach but is
primarily designed to Promote healthy life choices. The curriculum will

address domastic viclence, anger sbatement, problem solving, self
estesm, alcohol and drug abuse Rrevention, and social skills,
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The Effective Schools Model is an important part of the BIA's school
improvemant initiative which places an emphasis on developing quality,
culturally relevant curiculs, training teachers and staff, and involving

parents and the local community in the administration of the school.

BIA has initisted Drug Free Schools and Communities prevention
programs at 3!l 185 BIA funded elementary and secondary schools. The
Department of Education selected 5 BIA schools for the Drug Free
Schools Recognition Program as examplary, comprehensive drug free

programs.

Guidelines have been developed for the reporting of child abuse incidents
at BIA funded schools, and minimum standards of character for
background investigations have been developed for BIA and tribal

progfams.

OLER and OCM are working jointly to address health ard safetly issues 3t
all BlIA funded schools.

A community mcbilization training and technical assistance model was
developed by the Pine Ridge community in conjunction with the BIA
Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse Prevention, the result of wiich

is 8 community-based approach to substance abuse prevention.

The Indian Police Academy sponsors Drug Abuse Resistance Education

{DAREI}} courses to help officars create local substance abusg prevention

programs.

The Gang Resistance Education and Training (GREAT) courses at the

Indian Police Academy help officers to develop tocal programs which
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ieach children how to recognize gangs and warn them of the possible

consequences of joining gangs.

Due to theirr comnuitment 10 youth. many dedicated law enforcement
officers imptement prevention programs on their own. using personal
resources. They have taken the lead in developing commumity Sporis

activities, outdoor recreation, and other mentoning programs lor youth.

More community-hased solutions afe needed, like the Cheyenne River
Sioux Tribe's Walter Miner Law Enforcement Center. whichincorporaies
Indian healing corncepts, culture, education and social detmafication with
detention, n an effart to integrate young detainees back 1110 the
community.  Exemplary of the Planning of New Institutions (FONI)
process. this facility reflects the involvement of the community in s
planning, design. and operation. 58 tribas have applied for detention
facilities under the PONI program.

More tnbes and law enforcement officers are recemving training in
community policing, a philosophy that unites communtties and law

enforcement.

Tribal judges have developed alternatives 10 incarceration simply due to

a lack of facilities designed 1o deaf with juvenile offenders.

Closing Statement

To meet the true needs or American Indian and Alaska Native youth, much
greater emphasis must te placed on overall and comprehensive community
development. An Indian trainer from my State of Wisconsin says that you can

take a young tree from a diseased forest and nurture 1t back to health. byt
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when you put it back n its community the forest, &t will again become
diseased. In like manner. we cannat focus sotely on the needs of Indian youth

without also addrzssing the needs of our communities as a whole,

I would tike to emphasize that the Department and the BIA are interested in
working with this Committee and other agencies to address the chalienges
faced by Indian youth. The Office of Tribal Services. Education. Law
Enforcement. and Alcohol and Substance Abuse will continue to find partners
with whom we can collaborate to share human and fiscal resources to achicve

that goal.

This concludes my prepared statement. | and my staff will be pleased to

answer questions the Committee may have.
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OPENING STATEMENT
MICHAEL H. THIUILLO, M.D., M.P.H.
ASSISTANT SURGEON GENERAL
DIRECTOR, INDIAN HEALTH SERVICE

Mr. Chalrmai: and Members of the Comunlttse:

Lam Dr. Michsel H. Trujlllo from the Laguna Pueblo, New Mexico. T am the Director of the
Indlan Health Service (INS). Accompanying me today are: Dr. Cralg Vanderwagen, Director,
Divislon of Ctinical and Preventive Services; Dr. Scoft Nelson, Chief, Mental Health Programs
Branch; Dr. Jobanna Clevenger, Chiel, Alcoholism Substance Abuse Program Branch. |

appreciate the opportunily to share with you our actlvitier and efforts In addressing the many

health issuse confronting Indian youth acrots the nstion.

Todas's American Indian and Ataska Natlve (AIAN) youth sre the key to the future of Indisn
communities. Yel our Indian youth are often at high risk for health problems which need
continuour focus and attention. Consequently, the IHS pirees high priorlty on services for
Indian children and agolescents, who make up about 40 percent of the population In Indlap

country.

General health [ssuts for [ndian youth ara addressed hoth through our system of THS and

Tribal bosplials and reservation and urban clinlcs, and through prevention programs, such as

health education activitles and teen centers.
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Eshavioral bealth lanus compries the moet {nienes srea of conflict facing AVAN tesnagars,
adotascants and young adults, Behavioral lasuis were ighiigated In the entimony of Indlan
youth and youth groups in testimony before your comralites on Februsry 9. A University of
Mionwota udy ot Indlea adolescents conductad In 1968 found bigh rates of beaith:

- cunpromising beaaviora and risk factors ralstad to unintentionat Injury, subslance abuse, poot
soil-aasassed Bealth status, emotional Katus und sulcide. The study on Indian adolescent mental
heal(h conducted by the Offioe of Technology Assssmant of the Congress In 1990 also oditiined
tbe many behaviorul probims of Inglan sdolescents and expressed concern about the limited
resources arallable o THS to adéres them, Accidents, ilcide and bomdcide are the 3 laading
causes of death in the 15-24 age group; for salcide, the death rate ko almost 3 times bigher than
the national nversge for that age group. Alcokollsm, drug sbuse, depression, sulcide attempts,
wchool drop-outs, antisocial bekavior (including gang membership), Fatal Alcobol Syndrome
(FAS), teen pregnancy, and seaually transmittad diease are major isues for Indian adolescents

and thelr familie,

Why are Lbase babavioral probiens 50 prevalent and serious In Indian couniry? We belleve
— . (hat there are paversi contribuling factors, lnciuding continued oppression and discrimination,
the loms of culture and lssguags lo Indian comtaun|ties, the dysfuncion of many Indian
famllles with parentsl role moddlofﬂmhdlmundhmﬂyﬂdmmd the conflici that many

Indlen youth fesl about their Wentlties.

Co
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s«mmmmumuudmummwmummmsu
activaly been sddreming 1 bebaviora! laeuss and bealth protdama of AVAN youtk. Exsmpies
of those sarvices are:

I} Selcida'Family Viclence Pryveation Progranes

& Lam of mantal basith profemionals avaliabie 1o pravide tachnleal
ssaistance and sducation o tribes and IHS service units confronting
concerns about youth sulcide. The team helps communities to orsanize
and respond Lo, provides Important Information yhout sultide preventlon,
and conducts follow-up on communily actions,

A computarlzed culcide register program to astiet tribas and service units

track follow-up activitles with youth who are al risk,

& tribal demonstration sdolescent syicide prevantion projat, which has
been evalusted by THS s highly succeseiil.

conswiation and technical aasisiance on Prevantlon of ofber forms of
family vioknce Including domestic viclence, iomicids, and child abuse,

& plan on Suicide Pravention and Intervention Servicm requested by the
Congres s currenlly under development.
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« suicide Intervantion svalustion project to svaluate the aificioney of

gilcide prevention and intervention programs are ln White Mountaln,
Arlzons, White Barth, Minnesota, and Jicarilis, New Mexico tribal
communities. The project is funded through a grant to the THS from ihe
Conters for Diseass Control (CDC).

an exemplary child wental hesith Inftiative sdministered by the Navajo
Natlon, which &pplied for and received 8 $17 milllon 5-year grant from the
Canter for Mental Health Services (CMHS) of the Substance Abuse and
Menia! Hesltb Services Adminlstration (SAMHSA). The grant will focus
on three Navajo service units and will Include truditlonal healing a3 2

major trestment modallty.
Alcobollem asd Substance Absse Prevention and Treatment

Alcobollsm and substance abuse impedes the course of adolescent maturston and

must be treated first before olher baues can be properly addressed.

Much 1o the credit of Indlan tribes and vilinges, they have provided the Initial
Impetus that led to Federal Invoivemant In funding and are currenty contlnuing
thelr tnvoivemnent in all phases af eliminating the dlisease of aicohollsm and lis

offects of sl age groups. In the apirit of pelf-determination, most tribes prefer to

[€)
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manage thelr own aleoholism programs, In secordance with the government-to.
government relstionshlp that the Feders| Government enjoys with Indian tribes,
Congress bus been supportive of the need for such services within AAN
communities, The majority of approximately 360 programs throughout the
twelve (12) THS Areas ace located within the tribal communlty or reservation
boundarles. Programs, bowever, are aixo sl up in urban area t0 accommodate

indians reslding [n urban communitles.

Somz 800 AVAN adotescents and young adults age 12 up fo age 24 xre annuall
receiving Intensive Inpatient tregtment, tncluding family therapeutic involvement,
at 10 reglonal treatment centers for youth in 8 THS Aress. These centers offer
Intensive alcobollsm (rectment in a culturally relevant manner but also address
additional psyehiatric and educution disgnosis needed for efedtive lohg-term
success. The THS Is currently In the process of wnalrzing the effectiveness of
Lhese treatment centers since thelr Inception In 1987, The evalyation process will
provide tbe Alcohollsm and Substance Abuse Program Branch (ASAPB) with

valuable information for future program desig: and aftercare.

. In the Bemldji Area, at the dirsction of the tribcs, ihere are mven group
boinas that offer similar pehabilitation.
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. Tribes In tbe Bllingn Ares chose 10 purcham resldential Lrestment from
tocs] private centers to complement tribal cutpatient and residentla)

aftercars programs,

- The Abardecn Area continues with progress with developing x treatment
cenier on the Standing Rock Resarvation and continue to utltize local

private centare,

As a continuum of care for high-risk youth, alcohol treatment, including aflercare
and outpatient trestment of the Individusi and bis or ber family are a high

priorisy.

Indlan vouth can be high-risk for sulcide and may be seen for the first time by
alcobollsm counselors who must be extremmly sensitive to correctly identily those

at Fisk. The ASAPB s developing an Intake protocol spacific for AUAN youth,

The locus of the THS activity in addressing the itfelong disabliltles of children
borh with Fetal Aicohol Syndrome (FAS) or Fetal Alcohol Effect (FAE) has been
on primary prevention. The THS effort has been for community and provider
tralning on ihe toplc, the development and dlatributing of patlent education
materials and tralning of providers for the dlagnosls of FAS and FAE, Within
the past 2 years tralning has been expanded to mclude behavioral interventions




68

ARpropriste for families and educators working with feral alcohol-sffected youth.
This training effort wil be further expanded to Inciude specific tenining for
medical and behavioral health care providers on assessment, Intervention,

treatment, and came management

In addition, most communlties have & sthool-brsed alcobol and substance abuse
preventlon progrsm, dellvered aa part of the surrisulum and/or supplemented by
commeunity or school akeohol and drug abuse specialized counselors to work with
at-risk youth. Many communities elso have communliy.based prevention projects
targeting youth o enhance selftsteem, coping and communrlcation skills, and

provide aliermnative acilvitles,

Mental Bealih/SoclalUChil) Abuse Services

Whlle there is & need for us io allocate additional staffing, mental bealth
and social services are offer#d In all (ribal programs apd secvice unlts.
Many behavioral fssues of Indlen youth appear related 10 low self-esteern
from the effecls of viclence, abuse, and alcobotism In the famlly and

community.

Increasing numbess of Indian youth are belng Identified aa perpetretors of

child abuse. In Mecal year (FY) 1993, the THS Initinted & program to train
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mental haalts providers 10 treat thase youthful offenders 0 that the
intargabarational cycien of abuse wiil be broken,

Formal child sbuse trestment programs kave been funded o four Indian
communities: Hopl, Navajo, Bay Mills, and Y¥ashoe. Seversl of these
programe are providing excellant service, utilldng traditional a2 well as
westemn methods of baaling. A tribal chlid abuse prevention
demonstration program also has been aupporied at Fort Peck, Montana,
by the IHS. Additonal funding of $250,000 kas been requested in the

President’s FY 1996 budget for victm trsatment

Teen pregnancy prevention acilvitles are provided through the hosplials
and clinics, but also through focal community and school based teen health
centers in & pumber of AIAN communities. These programs are &lso

linked to the comprehensire schoo! keaith sducation effort authorized by

the THCIA and supporied under an Inter-Agency Agresment with the

CDC and Involving the BIA.

By far the highest mortatity of AUVAN youth occure from injuries, fargels
from sutomobite accidents which occur as & result of risk-taking behavior,
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often associated with alcobol use and depremsion. The IHS has placed
major smphasis oo sccident preventlon education In schools and
communities and on eariy emergency response (0 accldents. The THS also
created an Injurs Prevention Fellowship Program for field personnel,

whlch bas graduated almost 100 partleipants.

Interagency Cooperative Efforts

Since becoming Director of the THS in the past year, [ bave strongly supporied
THS efforta 10 work with other agencies to strengthen our programs and Increase
our resources to serve and amist AAN youlh. These efforts inciude relationships

with:

The Burewu of Indian Affairs (B1A) coordinates with the [HS to address
cblld sbuse, alcobolism, social serviced, menial Bealih losues, handicapped
chlldren and adolescents, and problems In BIA boarding schools and
dstention centers. The IHS also funds social detox/asecsment and referral
pervice at BIA funded Juvenile Detention Contars Including current
locations at Fort Peck and Cheyenne River, In addiiion, the IHS also

funds transillonat startup projects at Chinle, Tuba City, and Pine Rldge

waere juvenlle detention centers are scheduled to open within the next few

yoars.
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The Conior for Monisl Healitk Services of the SAMIHSA fo develop an
Indian chiid msistal health Laktiative;

The Conter for Substancs Abuse Preventlon (CSAF) of the SAMHSA bas
funded AT/AN grantese in the following areas: (1) over 13 Communlity
partnership programe; (2) over 30 HI-Risk Youts Demonstration
programs; (3} one Fomale Adolescent Treatment Program, Tae CSAP bas
aiso sponsored the development of community mobillzation training for

AUAN entitled Gathering of Native Americanc.” After an elgit site pliot of

thig training program, the IHS and the CSAP are currently sponsoring
continustion of thix training In selected IHS Areas

The Center for Substance Abuss Treatment (CSAT) of the SAXHSA In ts
colisborative efforts with the IHS have resultad In numerous alechol and
substance abuse grants to Lribes end ALNA organizations. The CSAT
currently (unds six rural, remois and culturally distlnet demonstraiion
projects whick include a primary ALVAN focus, and slx pregnant post

parium women and infant treatment programy,

The THS alec helped fund the recently completed Inwiliute of Medicine
Study on youts tobacco wee inftiation. This study resulted In the 1554
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publication i ] Addiction 1n
Chiidren apd Youth,

. The Nationai Center for Chilld Abuse and Neglect (NCCAN) (o train THS

and tribal providers to treat victims of child abuse;

. The CDC for the successful evaluation of sulcide prevention approaches In
three (ribal locatlons which ars White Mountaln, Arizona, White Exrth,

Minnesota, and Jlcarilla, New Mexico;

. The Department of Justlce, Office of Juvenlle Justice and Delinquency
Prevention, to provide technical assistance and tralning for (ridal

community-based alternative programs for adjudicaled Indigh delinguents;

. The Headstart program in the Administration for Chlldren, Youth, and
Families (o provide lechnical assistance and training {0 Indian Headsiart

programa;

. The Nationa! Center for Amerfcan Indian and Alsskan Native Mental
Health Research, Unlversity of Colorado School of Medicine, to encourage
and facliltate research on nenis! health and subsiznce abuse isstes in

Indlan youih;
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Absrdsen Ares Hsalthy Start

. The Northarn Plains Haalth Start program ls one of the 15 grantess
funded in 1991 by the Mmm:l and Chlld Health Divislon, Heaith
Resources and Sarvices Administration. The 19 tribal leaders in the
Absrdeen Area hive made 3 commitment Lo help thelr paopié reastablish
strong, healthy familiss and reguce the [nfant mortallty rate befow the
then current 18.4/1000 Live births rale. A community.bassd family
advocacy approach Involving a one-on-one method of reaching the people
seems (o be offective. The advocater are trained members of 2 Jocal team
tkst include haalth care, soclal service and traditional mvedicine providers.
The comprebensive services Inciude preventive and primary health services
for pregnant women and infant and childhood immunizations. It is
anticipated the local team will foster a "mentoring" environment for the
Healthy Start fumily advocate, which wifl result in more sffective prenatal,
Infant and childhood care.

Tribal Raiaticnships

As part of our kealth care misslon and our commitment 0 ncourage tribes to
operate (bslr 0wn haalth b4 bekavioral health services, we have worked closeiy
with tribee [n our efforts to assist Indian youth. Trides ase in the best position

13
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not only to provide needed servica, but aiso to address and prevent famiiy
viclence, mubstance abuse and sulcide. Traditional etrengtha of Iitdlen
communitics are often rekindled In these efforss, Including return Lo cultural
pride and langusge, teaditional fmlly networks, and tribel vajues. Our cole in
the IHS has been ta provide Information about the serious effects of chitd abuse,
family vioience, subatance abuse and depression sulclde on Indian youth and their
familles and 10 eNcourage thc use of triba) strengths in preventing these problems
from occurring. We are slso pleased that Indian south themselves have
organized Into groups such as Unity and Running Strong for American Indian

Youth which are promoling 2pproaches and sirategies for beaithier lives.

This concludes mF testimony, Mr, Chaivman. 1 wiil be happy (o anéwer gny questions that ye.

may heve. Thank you.
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BLOCK GRANTS TO STATES: DMFLICATIONS FOR INDIAN TRIBES
Prepared at the Request of Senator Dunlel X, Tnouye
Submltted by the Burcau of Indlan Affalrs
March 13, 1998 -

M
t

Ll

Block grants are & mechanism to fold funds from 2 varicty of Pederal programs into one grant
award, generally distributed only 1o states. Once a categorical program is folded ino & block
plant, it ceases to exist a5 2 separate program. The authorizing legisiation actuslly repests the
original legislation initiating the categorical program. For exampls, H.R. 759, the Common
Sense Welfare Reform Act of 1995, introduced Janusry 31, eliminates ot amends 7 cash ald
programs, 3 medical ald programs, ¢ food &ld programs, L1 housing aid progams, 2 cnegy
aid programs, 6 education ald programs, 6 Jobs and training aid programs, 8 focial servics
programs and 3 coMmunity aid programs, folding them into capped siate block grants.  (See
Appendices A & B for lists of welfare programa currently slated for ¢limination or amendment
- in two welfare reform bills.)

Summary of Concerns

s Capped block grants distributed only o staes infringe on the legal govemment-io-
povemment relationship of Indlan tribes with the Federa! governmert.
s Suate-only block grants are inconsistent with the officlal Indisn Policy statements of fout
Presidents; Nixon, Reagan, Bush and Clinton,
¢  Hard-won legislative set-asides to tribes would be lost and tumed over to stated.
& The few tribal programs operating under sub-grants from siatas cxperience lack of parity
funding and disregard for the culral design of tribal programs.
s Swate block Brants can impose & requircment to provide matching funds, which causes a
= hardship on tribal sub-contractors.
»  States have historically not reaponded to tribal needs.
o Stares rasely consult of plen volunkarily with tribes end urban Indian populations.
o States are unfamilizr with tribal community needs and reservation delivery sysiems.
o Tribes a5¢ the most knowledgeable and efficicnt in developing end sdministering serviced to
their cltizeas.
o States lack the knowledge of and shility to confinn who ls an Indian.
o Already scaros resources limit small tribes (450 of the 550 fadernlly recognized tibes) from
operating the full range of family services.
» More stringent siate eligibilicy requirements will ensure decreased access by American
fndians.
o Limited sccess to state block grants will srin historically undecfunded Bureau of indian
Affirs (BIA) programs.

Recommendations
The BIA supports tribal proposals that tribes should be funded directly in block grants in an
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amount equal to no less than 3% of the 1otal amount approprizted in 2 specific piece of block
grant legislation. (See Appendix C for the full taxt of 2 proposed amendment. )

Another allemative to capped state block grants that is supporied by the BIA 1 to amend block
grant legislation w0 recognize the BIA a3 the Slat staie, with the Secretary of the Intesior

designated a5 the allottes. The funding formula 1o disicibute funds directly to tribes would be
calculated in consulation with tribey.

The BIA also agreas with the proposal by tribes that any state within whose boundaries an Indian
tribe is located shall consult with the Indian tribes in the development of state plans.

In 1981, several federal block granks were created from existng federal statutes. { sfortunately,
litle artention was given to funding for tribes In those block granti. President Reagan,
recognizing the disservice done to tribes under the 1981 block grants, proposed in his Januvary
24, 1983 Indian Policy smtement, that the laws be amended w0 provide for direct funding for
Iribes via separate tribal block grants.

Subsequently, a February 1984 study commissioned by the Department of Health and Huingn
Services, Block Granus and the Siate-Tribal Relarionship, documented the inequitable wearment

Biven fo tribes [n the development of several federal block grants created 6 1981, The repont
stated:

Congress failed to perceive two things: first, in many cases durect funding (o tribes would
be nominal, and second that states would be placed in the awkward position of being
expetied to respond fo tribal aceds through tribal govemnments, which do not comprise
part of the usual state constituency and states cannct require or enforce accountabllity,
p.38)

In addition, the report sited:

Wiale it seems clear that Indians as siale citizens are constitutionally entitled (o a falr
share of state services, this general principle does pot address the issue of the delivery
system; that is, the degres to which services on the reservation should be delivered by
tribal rather than state axd municipal govemnments. This vacuum in federal iaw and
policy is the source of unnécessary complications in the stase-tribal relationship when,
as here, federal legislation adjusts the delivery system for federally funded sarvices
without clearly addressing its imipact on the delivery sysiem relationships a1 the
tescrvation tevel. (p. 38)

One of the 1931 bleck prants, the Title XX Sociz] Services Block Grant, provided no funding
for nbzs, and other block grants were avaylable 1o tribes only if a tribe had received funding
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the previous year frorn one of the categorical programs included in the block grant. This
excluded all but abous 20 tribet.

Inibes are Efficien Service Providars

‘Iribes and tribat organizations, as primary providers of services for thelr members, are in the
best position to davelop and sdminlster scrvices in their commualdes.

Swis and county governments believe that they are in the best position to understand the soclal
problems of their constituencies and to develop and Implement sporopriale solutions to thete
problems. Tribal governmants are no diffsret in that they bellove they hive unique knowledge
and qualifications critical to providing effoctive services to theik communities, both in & cultucal
and political sease. Purthermore, poliical leaders and progrem adminismators throughout the
United States recognite the importance of providing communlity-based services 1 péopls,
Community-bated services provide the most effective metns, in torms of cotls and service
outcome, of delivering social services.

Tribes, while having much less federal funding than stales, bave still been sble to develop
structired Lo effectively manage funds and adminisier 8 broad ringe of progmmy. These include
welfars assistance, child care, child welfars, health, education, law enforcement, courts, asd job
taining. Theso programs rely on tralned profeationaly employed by tibes, most of whom re
residants of the community dnd possess a eritical knowledge of community standards. This
experiencs and knowledge of tribal programs fs unmatched by any other public or private entity.
The programs that tribes offer incorporata locaily developed strategies that are typically not
utilized by non-tribal service providers. The result is sexvices which best - and mout ¢fficiently
« mest the nesds of the individua! and tribal community.

A 1988 study commissior. d by the Départments of Health and Human Services and Interior,
Indian Child Welfare: A Starus Report, concluded that tribal child welfare programi were, in
many ways, outperforming state systems. These community-based secvices were found 1o be
more efféctive than state services desplie unstable and Insdaquate competitive grant funding.

Concerns with State Adminlatragdon of Block Grani

Since the implementation of the 1981 uate block grant program, tribes have expressed their
difficulties openating tribal progams under sub-grants from the states.

The tribes have experienced a Jack of parity funding for their programs because they must
compeio i & highly political and competitive environment, They have specifically cited such
problers 48 disregard for or lack of wnsitvity 1 the caltural of spiritual design of Indinn
progams. Since there are 30 few American Indian state leglslators, they have few, if 2ny,
pohtical advocatss for their programy, funding and program uniqueness. The State of New
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Mcxico is one of the few siates where a special American Indian Subcommiuee has oversight
over state Indian programs.  This subcommittee has protécted and advocated for the exceptional
necds of Indian programs.  Such advocacy is not the norm.

Tribes advise that state govemments often take a large share of xdministrative costs from the
block grants before actual programs are funded. Thus, for Indian programs, it is postible that
there would be two levals of adgintstrative costs: by the Stale government/zgeney and the tribal

govemment.  This is not #/cout effective nor does it feliver much-nesded funds to the
community jtself.

When block grants are made directy to tribes, eligibility for the programs is based on
ideniification as American Indians, and less on stringent eligibility requirements such a3 income
or domicile iswwes. Often, residency and domicile issues g+ gsad to disqualify indians for state
fervices.  Also state governments ofien confule who is 2 .aate or fedenally recognized Indian
and who is eligible for services as an Indian. Tribes also exPress concerns about the glate’s
practice of using census population figures, which are not muly represenative of tribal
populations.

While tribes have succesded in fulfilling federal contract and grants with fewer reporting
requirements, stafes continue to impose axtensive teporting Iequirements on their sub-grants or
cantracts to tribes. Ancther problem experienced by stales, and ransferred to tribes under stte
block granu, is the Pederal requirement to provide matehing funds or use the amall funds e
“leverage” o receive funds, Tn such cases, tribes without 638 cOMracLs are aba dissdvantage
trying to focate matching resources in order to qualify for program rundin;/.)

To administer certzin income support programs, lixe AFDC; child support enforcament
programy; and other human resource programs, like houting programs, atale governments lack
imowladge of tribal, federal and state jutisdictional issues, or enforcement processes, or debg
management And its collection.

Block Grants Directly 10 Tribey

The Bureau of Indian Affairs supports wribal ptoposals thai tribes should be fundad dirsetly in

block grants it an amount equal to no less than 3% of the total amount appropaisted in a specific
piece of black grant legislation.

A tribal allocation of block grant funds is consistent with the official Indian Policy statements
of Presidents Nixon, Rcagan, Bush, and Clinton which pledged 3 continued government - to -
govemment relaionship with tribes.

The provision of direct funding to tribai govemments is consjstent with many current federzl

statutes, ineluding the 3% allocation 1o tribes under the Child Care wd Development Block
Grani and the 3.3% allocation 1o tribes under the Job Truining Partnership Act. Many federal
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programs include swiutory fuuding aliocationt for tribes and mibal organizations; and it it
commonplace for new legisiation to include specific funding provisions for existing and newly

m;ogniud tribes.  Examples of programs that have tribal funding provisions includs the
following:

Chitd Care and Development Biock Grant
Tide IV-B Family Preservation and Support Services
Tide IV-B Child Welfare Servicaes
Frmily Violence and Prevention Services
JOBS (Job Opportunities and Basic Skills Training)
Job Training Partnership Act
Head Seant
Vocational Rehabilitaton Act
- Vocaliona! Edvcatdon Act
. Library Services and Consguction Act
Clean Water Act
Safe Water Drinking Act
Even Start Program
Drug Free Schools Act
Low Incoms Home Encrgy Assistance Program
Title I, Housing ard Community Development Act
The Department of Housing & Urban Development Act
Title I, The Older Amercans Act

f

If incorporated into block granty, these and other hard-won Indian set-asides would go directly
to states and would be fost to tribal communitics. In addition, other programs pravide for tribat
eligibility when applying for discretionary funds:

Al-Risk Child Care
Child Abuse Demonstration and Research Granty
Community-Bassd Family Resource Program

Crants to Improvements Tnvestigation and Prosecution of Child Abuse Cases
Family Unification

Commuaity Development Block Grant

N Ty 0T TR YNNI A | | 1)

= State/Tribal C .
d The BIA tgrées with the proposal by tribes that any state Within whosé bowndarles an Tndlan
tribe is located shall consult with said Indian tribes in the development of statz plans.

As & practical matier, tribes and states should coopentte in planning services so that unnecesry
duplication of services is avoided and services that only states offer include components that will
maximize their elfectiveness with Indian people. Tribes often have valuable insights into the
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most effective and cfficiens means of serving both urban and reservation-based Indian
papulations.

There is considerable movement within the Indian population between resérvation and urban
aress, particularly for reasons of educition and employment. There are also large, peimanent
Indian populations in urban areas. Por these reasons, Indian people will need to ascess state
sovices from time to ime, Furthermore, some tribes, especially smaller oncs, which comprise
the majority of federally recognized tribes, will not be able to operate the full range of
welfare.related sarvices that states can offer,

In some areas Lribes and states have previously eatered IMo coopetative 2greements, such s on
¢hlld protecyion, ehild support enforcement, and social servites. Where such mutually agreed
upon MTangements are in force, it is important that any proposed block grant legistasion rot
interfare with nor Impede such agreements. .

Examples of Financial and Other Impacts of State-Only Block Grants

Capped block grants to states will hase immediate and lang term négative impacts on American
Indizn/Alatka Native tribes and villages, Communities Hat have historically suffered under
(minimal tesource allocations will face even more restrictive financing and, thereby, service
delivery. The following tcenanos provide examples of negative impacts of stata block grants
on tribes and BIA programming.

USDA Schoot Luach Program

For 1 number uf years, Bureau funded scheols have depended on the U. 5. Department of
Agticulture's (USDA) school lunch program to provide food for all students in alt grades,
including those stiending boarding schools and peripheral dormitories. Due to low income
levels. virtually ajl 46,000 Indian students attending Bureat funded whools qualify for the
reduced cost mieals. 1n FY 1994, the Bureau collected $6.9 million from the USDA for tha food
service program at Bureau operated schools. Schools operated by Tribes collected approximately
5.7 million from the USDA. In toral, spproximately $12.1 million was collected from Bureau
funded schools for purposes of providing school lunch programs for Indian childcen.

Impact:

Currendy, all 18% Bureau funded schoals. which arc usuaily located either on Indian reservations
or very remole areas, use Indian School Fqualization Program (ISEP) funds as their basic
school operations suppart.  Since the ISEP formula was nol designed to cover the direct cosls
of food programs, alrios: 2li of the schools began applying to-the USDA tchool lunch program
during the 1980's as a means to supplement their basic ISEP funding levels, Should
approximaiely $12.1 mullion not be availzble to the Bureau funded schools from the USDA
lunch program, the schools would be forced to consider the following aetlons.
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1. Schools would have 10 look o their basic ISEP funds to tbsotb the costs. The TSEP. fund
at each whool must already pay for salaries of teachers and counselors of a rate statutorily
mindaisd by the Congress. At many hools, salaries alone account for up to 92% of the ISEP
budget. Each prinelpal must use the remaining 8% for teaching supplies, materiziy and other
Instruction-refated costs. The schools would have 3 reduce the number of tzachert/counselors
or other staff in order to absorh the total costs of food service programs. Course offerinpt
would 3l be reduced. Eventually, the accreditation satus of the school would be affeciad.

3. The Bureau funded schools would have (0 continue to providea food servics progmm for
tudents In day and boardlng schools. In many cases, the breakdust and lunch provided by the
schoolt are thebnly nutritious meals the Inditn siudent will recelve. for the whole day. Without
the USDA program, many of the 46,000 Iniflan studeats would go hunpry.

). Since many of the Bureau funded schools are small and in fsolated areas, the lows of the
USDA school lunch program (unés would have & sérious Impact on the school's budget and the
Impact would bo felt throughout many small Indian communitics. In most cases, the school i
the hub of the tribal community and any such negative financlal impact at the school is cacried
over into the horves and famitles of such small communities.

4. Currently, the Bureau s projecting an ISEP Welghted Student Unit (WSU) value of $2,954
per student for the 1995-96 school year. Should the Bureau funded schools be required to
thorh the $12 million reduction (n the USDA program, the ISEP per student WSU value would
be reduced to 52,809

For a numbes of Years, Buteau funded schools have becn eligible to participate in the Drug Free
Schools & Communities Program. ‘This program and comesponding funds atlows Buresu funvded
schools 1 Provide glcohol and substance abuse prevention programs, training for school staff,
parenal and community involvement s coordination of community services, Today. ail 185
Bureay funded schools have such programs In operation serving 46,000 Indian students. Five
of the Bureau fundéd schools have received national recognition for outstanding programs. The
Bureau recelves $9.4 milllon per year from the Department of Educaton for the program.

Impact:

Since the ISEP formula wes not designed to provide funds {or such preventive health programs,
1l schoola have hiad (0 seek rupplemental funding sources to combat the effects of drugs In their
schools. The only current source of funding avallable to the 46,000 Indian students attending
the Bureau funded schools is the Drug Free Schools Program. Should this program not bo
wvailtble, Bureau funded schools would be forced to consider the following actions:

1. Coupied with the jtential loss of school lunch program funds from the USDA, Bureau
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funded schools would be forced o zbsorb any drug free progeam costs within their basic ISEP
funding fesels. Without increases in ISEP to offset th252 1e5ses, schools would have to reduce
their overall education program.

2, The schools wou.d be forced to cancel all current drug prevention education programs for
the 46,000 Indian students. Schools would be unable 10 effectively deal with the escalating
problem of drug use by Indian youth,

3. The artainment of the President's National Education Goal relating lo safe and drug free
schools would become an unfunded Yadersl mandate for all Bureau funded schools.

HHS and BLA_Social Scovices Progams

A picture of the current situation for tribat zccess 10 federal social service znd child welfare
funds was provided in 2 report by the HHS Office of (he Lnspector Generat, Opparmuntides for
ACF 1o Improve Child Welfare Services and Proiecilons for Native American Children, August
1994. The report revealed that tribes receive little direct benefit of funding from federal child
wetfare pragrams, speaifically, Title IV-B Child Welfare Survices and Family Preservation and
Support Services, and Tide 1V-E Foster Care and Adoption Assistuice, While tribes recedve
2 small amount of direct funding under IV-B (less than 52 million from a $293 million program),
there is no funding available directly to tribes under the much larger 1V-E program (33 billion
annual expenditure) or under Tide XX social services block grants, (See Appendix D for further
information.) Tribes can access [V-E fos"er cere and adoption assistance funds but only if they
have functional tribal’statc agreements in place. This, even though Indian children are placed
out-of-home at 2 rate 3 & umes greater than the rate for non-Indien children (Departments of
HHS and intenios, fndlan Child Welfare: A Status Repor, 1988).

Tribes have worked iong and hard for the past several years to access State flow-through funds
a1 well as direct funded sources, ¢.3., Title 1¥-B ¢hild welfare funds, but gs reported. the
amounts feceived have been minimal. In many cases, restrictive eligibility criteria and award
formulas affectively excluded Indian tribes from accessing these funds. Those tribes who were
succassful received refatively small grants, €.g., Title TV-B child welfare and family preservation
grants.

Inpact:

Onte categorical program funds are block granted to states, tribes have no sswance that they
will have zny catler access to glready well protected state doflars, One BIA Atea, the Billings.
Mornuna Area Office, submitted a list of funds received, by tribe and by source for social
serace progranming. (See Appendix E) The majority of funding ($10,339,000) is from BIA
sources, but almost an 2¢dnional $1 millien iy receivesl fro n HHS/State sources, Te resource-
scarce tribal communities, that $1 milling iy 2 significant amount of money that would be lost
under block Braning.
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The need for coniinuing services provided by the categorical programs slated for eliminatton will
not lessen.  Moreover, programs ang services which provided protections and served asa safety
net for vuinerzble Indian children, families and elderly will bs elimimied and may never be
replaced. As a result, the EIA anticipates that it will be confronted with an increased nesd of
<normow proportions for services in Indian communities for which it s Hl-prepared, fiscelly or
otherwise. Thly is becanse BIA programs have never been the primary servioe providess for the
affectsd beneficliries. Thus, the BIA sees no possibility of meeting the needs that witl be
created by the wholesals eliminction of such 4 wide range of categorical programs. For
example, an enormous need will be created by eliminating IV-E foster care payments for the
high numbers of Indian children currently In foster or subatitute care.

If tribes decide to provide sarvices to former state clients, their wellare assistance funds will be
drumatically impaeted. The burden will be placed on tibes or the BIA for providing services
10 mushrooming cawloads. Ina short peried of tme, BLA Welfars Assistance funds, totaling
only $105,442,000 for all tribal communities, would ba drained and Indian ¢hlldren and familles
will suffer. Also, BIA social service dollars currently fund 31 tribally operated eciergendy
theltert nationwide. If tribes are strafned to meet the most basic of needs in their communities,

1t is likaly that these few shelters wouald have to be sacrificed 30 funds could be routsd to another
priority.

Indian Child Wellare Act funds are used to protect Indlan children and prévent the scparation
of Indian families. The BIA distributes the funds non-competitively to all tribes ($20,612,000)
and competitively 10 urban areas (51.732,0000. 1f this legislation were repeated, there is no
other source of funding to fill this crtical nsed.

The BLA Housing Improvement Program (HIP) provides assistance 10 the most needy individuals

in reservation communitiss to repeir existing Indian-owned homes or construct replacement .
tiouses. The vast majority of new home construciion on Indian reservations is funded by the :
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The HIP program funds fepairs (1) 10 houses

that although they will remain wbstandard nead immadints repaes for the health or safety of the

occupants, and (2) to bring houses up 10 standard. The funds in the HIP program are minimal

{$19,047,000) and, in FY 1955, will allow tribes to bullé on'y 100 new homes and repair 1,125

existing homes. If cuts are made to HUD programs, the strain on the HIP program will be

enormous, and for which the BIA has no additonal funds Lo moet the lncreased need.

!' Wl

Imgact on Law Enforcement Efforts
Federal funding for tribal and BIA law enforcement and detention programs, for both adults and

E juveniles, has histoncally been ingufficient. Tribe after tribe has come to the BLA and Congress
for assistance, with little or no remeciztion. The Yiolent Crime Control and Law Enforcament
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Act of 1994, Community Oriented Policing (COPS) program has increzsed bibal iaw
enforcement operating budgets by over 10 parcent. In FY 1995, over $9 million has been
pravided 1o 128 iribes by the 1J. S. Department of Justice. In future, it is probsble that
additional tribes will be found eligible for COPS funding, thereby increasing the level of funding
desperately needed for law enforcement and crime prevention efforts in Indian counry, Ifa
program such as COPS was capped or turmed over to siates to administer, it is highly unlikely
that tribes would receive the current $9 million or future increases. The quantity and quality
of law enforcement services would decline, impacting already overburdened community socisl
service and community development delivery systems.




AFDC - PART A of titie IV of the Sociss Zgiity Act

S31- Tite Xv1 of the Sociat Sacurlty Act

;RJLEECARE AND ADOFTION ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS - Purt 1V of the Social
GRANTS TO TERRITORIES FOR AID TO THE AGED . Tiie'1 of the Bociel Secuty Act
GRANTS TO TERRITORIES FOR AID TO THE SLIND - Tibe X of tha Soclal Becurty Act
GRANTS TO TERRITORIES FOR AID TG THE TOTALLY DISABLED - Thie XIV of thy
Boclal Sacurity Act

GRANTS TO TERRITOR:ZS FOR AID TO THE AGED, BLIND OR DISAHLED - Tire
X1V of the Baciel Security Act

MEDICAL 51D

MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH CARE SERVICES BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM -
Tite V of tha Socie) Bacurtty Act

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS - Section 330 of the Public Health Secvices Ad
MIGRANT CENTERS - gaction 329 of the Public Health Sarvicss Act -

EQQD AID

FUOD STAMP PROGRAM - The Food Btamp Act of 1977

SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM - gaction 4, 8. of 1w National Schoat Lunch Act
EMERGENCY FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - The  gmecgency Food Assistance
Program of 1983

NUTRITIDN PRCGRAMS FOR THE ELDERLY - The Oldar Amarioans Act of 1988
SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM - Section 4 of the Crid Nubrition Act of {268

CHILD AND ADULT FCOD CARE PRCGRAM - Section 17 of the Netonsl School Lunch

Act
SUMMER FOOD BERVICES PROGRAM FOR CHILDREN - Sactior 13 of the Netonal
Achool Lunch Act

COMMODITY SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM FOR CHILDREN AND THE
ELDERLY - Sectiong 4 & B of the Agricultire end Consumer protection Acl
SPECIAL MILK PROGRAM - Section 3 of tha Chid Nutrkion Act of 1988

HOMEING AID

BECTION 8 RENTAL ASSISTANCE AND PUBLIC HOUSING - T8e 1 of the United
Stalas Houeing Azt of 1937 .

RURAL SINGLE FAMILY HOUSING LOANS - Saction £02 of the Houeing Act of 1549
SECTION 236 INTEREST REDUCTION ASBIBTANCE - Secton 23 of the Nesona
Haousing Act '

RURAL RENTAL HQUSING ASSISTANCE - Saction 515 of tha Housing Act of 1945
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fgm&gﬂENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS - Porageaph (2) of Secton 521(s) of the Houding

SECTION 235 HOMEOWNERSHIP ASSISTANCE - Swcton 235 3f tha Nationat Housing Acl
RENT SUPPLEMENT ASSISTANCE - Section 101 of the Hovng & Urban Davekpment Act of

1866
RURAL HOUSING REAPIR ASSISTANCE - Section 504 of the Houging Act of 1849
FARM LABOR HOUBING LOANS - Sscton 514 of tha Houalng Act of 1949

RURAL HOUSING SELF-HELP TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE - Saction 523 of the
Housing Act of 1948

FARM LABOR HOUSING GRANTS - Section 518 of the Housing Azt of 148
RURAL HOUSING PRESERVATION GRANTS - Section 533 of tha Housing Act of 1549

ENERGY AID

LOWNCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS - Trw Low-Incorme Home
Endrgy Assistance Acl of 1981

WEATHERIZATION ABSISTANCE PROGHRANM - Part A of Tite [V of the Enargy Consbrveticn
rnd Production Act

EDUCATION AlR

Subpart 1 of Part A of Title Y of the Higher Education Act of 1966

Subpart 1 of Part A of Titde ! of the Elemantary and Secondary Education Act

Subpart3 of Part A of Titla IV of the Higher Education Act of 1045 '

PartC of Title 1 of the Elemantary and Recandary Education Ast of 1948

Ghaptar 1 of Bubpart 2 of part A of Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1986
Subpart £ of Part A of Tltle I¥ of the Higher Education Act of 1885

Part A of Title 1X of the Higher Education Act of 1965 .

JOBS AND TRAINING AID

ADULT TRAINING PROGRAM - Part A of Tite Il of the Job Trelning Parnershlp Act

SUMMER YOUTH AND EMPLOYMENT TRAINING PROGRAM - Part U of Tt Il of

the Job Training Parnarship Act

JOB CORPS - Pat B of Titia IV of the Job Training Partnacship Act

OLDER AMERICAN COMMUNITY 8ERVICE EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM - Tita Vol
the Oider Amatican of 1965

JOBS PROGRAMS - Past F of Thie of the Socisl Securtty Act

NATIVE AMERICANS AND MIGRANT SEASONAL FARMWORKERS PROGRAMS -
Coctions 401 & 402 of the Job Tealning Partnership Act

S0C1AL SERVICES

BLOGK GRANTS TO STATES FOR SOCIAL SERVICES - Tite 0t of the Social Sacurlty

Act

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT PROGRAMS - The Communlty Services Block
Grant At

LEGAL SERVICES - Tha Lagal Satvias Comparation Act of 1974

FEMA EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER PROGRAM - Titiw [ll of the Stewart B Kinney
Homaiess Asslvtence Act

RESEARCH REGARDING FAMILY PLANNING AND POPULATION ISSVES -
Section 1004 of the Putiic Health Survices

LRI
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VOLUNTARY FAMILY PLANNING PROJECTS - Bection 1001 of the Public Heatth Servicoss

At
DOMESTIC VOLUNTEER SERVICE ACT - The Dornestic Voluntesr Servios At of 1573
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR OLDER INDIVIDUALS - The Olgar Amaricans A2 of 1985

COMMUNITY AID

COMMUKITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
ACTION GRANTS - Title | of the Houring and Cammunlly Deveiopmant Act of 1974 -
APPALAGCHIAN REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM - The Appaiachisn
y&wmwtmumwu Appaiachian Regional Deveidpimant Ad cf
1 .
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Appendix B

PROGRAMS TERMINATED OR AMENDED (*) 8Y THREE EIOCK GRANTS IN THE
GERGONAL RESPONSIRILITY ACY OF FEBRUARY 13, 1805 -

CASH WELFARE AND RELATED PROGRAMS (4 PROGRAMS)

AID TO FARILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN (AFDG)
AFDC ADMINISTRATION

JOBS PROGRAM

EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

CHILO CARE PROGRAMS (7 PROGRAMS)

AT-RISK CHILD CARE
TRANSITIONAL CHILD CARE
AFDC WORK-RELATED
* CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

CHILD CARE ASSOCIATE SCHOLARSHIP
3TATE DEPENDENT CARE PLANNING
NATIVE HAWAIIAN FARILY CENTERS
PROGRAMS OF SIGNIFICANCE

CHILD WELFARE (23 PROGRANS)
FOSTER CARE MAINTENANCE PROGRAMS
FOSTER CARE ADMINISTRATION
FOSTER CARE TRAINING
ADOPTION MAINTENANCE PAYMENTS
ADOPTION ADMINISTRATION
ADOPTION TRAINING
INDEPENDENT LIVING
FAMILY PRESERVATION AND SUPPORT
TITLE IV-B RESEARCH
TITLE IV-B TRAINING
TITLE (V-3 CHILD WELFARE SERVICES
ABANDONED INFANTS ASSISTANCE
CHILD ABUSE STATE GRANT PROGRAM
CHILD ABUSE DEMONBTRATION AND RESEARCH GRANTS
COMMUNITY SASED FAMILY RESOURCE PROGRAM
ADCPTICM OPPORTUNITIES PROGRAM
FAMILY VIOLENCE 8TATE GRANT PROGRAM
FAMILY 8UPPORT CENTERS
SOCIAL SERVICES RESEARCH
MIS8ING AND EXPLOITED CHILDREN'S PROGRAM
GRANTS TO IMPROVYE THE INVEATIGATION AND PROSECUTION CF
CHILD ABUSE CASES

CHILDREN'S ADVOCACY CENTERS
FAMILY UNIFICATION PROGRAM
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Appendix C

Trital Rlack Grant Amandmaaty

The BIA suppocts the following language a3 proposed by tribes and tribal ocganizations,
Proposed Tribal Block Growt Amendmenis

Section 1, (a) wmwmmuumawmmmummmmu
of the total amowns appropriated under this Act

) The Secretary of HHS, with the full panicipasion of Indion tribes and sribol
orgasitations, shall establish and promuigase by regulation 4 finding formula for tribes
which conslders the geographle, economic, soclal, ond cultural characieritiics of the tibal
reservation and service area, as well ar the noed of Indian trides for a base fnding level,

{c) For purposes of thls Acy, the termy “Indian®, “indlan tribe® ond *Tribol
Organizaiion® shall have the same meaning as found In ?J USC £50b(a), (), dnd (c).

Section 2, Tribes shall develop programy, conristent with the goals of this Act. Such plans
wmkebmmmrdbdmmpﬂc.mmkndddmm

Section 3, rajlummmmmmuummum.mmw
_conidt with sald Indian tribes In the development of sicie plans wnder i Act.

) Nothing [x thiz Act ghall be consruad to

1) alfect the eligibility of axy Indian to recetwe services provided ia
progromr and activides carrisd ow under a gramt (o the staie or sakes wder this Act, or

2) pvd%orﬂmumgemﬁmummbwmmww
sade that faciliiates the provision of servives by the Indian tribe to the service popularion
of sha Indion iride. .

o
DO
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Appandix D

ACF FUNDING FOR
TRIBAIL CHILD WELFARE SERVICES

T Most ‘Tribes have received linle or no Thie IV-E or Thle XX funding.

- In 15 of the 2§ States with the largest Native Ameriean populations, eligible Tribes
recerved neither Tile IV-E nor Title XX funds from 1989 1o 19932 In 199) alone,

i these 15 Stotes
—. received 51,714
million in Title

[V-E funds and

TADLT 1 O TR TWINTY-FOUR STATES WITH TIHH LARGES
HATIVE AMTRICAN POPULATIONS, NIND SIIAROD TOYLE IV AND/OR
TITLE 0 FUNDS WITHE RLIOMLE TRIGES M 1993

$1,289 million in Hanber o Tide V-0 Pende® "TRE KX Dot

Title XX funds. Suief Trive® Huaber of Triba Humber of Triboy

* " Aanted EEgisH Fardsd £l
- ' ) EOET N ST R 2 R O
Nine of the 24 i :"--;'-‘-“'-'"Ph s M X 8

Stales rchrl-:d :.__,T..:g}uﬁ;::?{ -.:gz .--.1:-;. “,u_):ﬁ SRS
that some Tribes ] ! »
. in their States T T AR
- recerved 0

Title IV-E andor O I I BT o T
Title XX funds In : ) )

NA

1993, (S gL S S
Table 1.) [

5 Gt E R A Y i
Efght States [] NA

reported that 46 BRG] I T - 28 W
°

- Tribes received Nt _‘__‘_—7__'_) LA

$1.9 miltion .2 T B S B VT DR T
T percent-of the i e b

States’ $82 million |0 LTETM AR
Title IVE furds, Qor_ & " #7 Y
while 4 Suates | [T| Y S ERATRSITENN

- reported that 32 P SO, JUS N SR
Tribes teceived am s R TER YRRy
$2.8 million -3 !'A-i-c'-r‘ 2 e B -r:-o 3 _-m'.—.rm':- I‘

- percent--of the RN e é}‘%ﬁf“ﬁﬂiﬁf 3 Y
Stater’ $98 milllon | X¥ 1 }

- Title XX funds. _E.\L [ j Mor i1 Juates sinOR For § Saar XA

T Ancordag 40 both e Mcias Sovite Prpulindt ad Labor Forde Labwdias {(Brercay of
Isdian Affairs. Jeasaey [991) pod 1 Aedau Fopuiicton Dirtaation for the Uniicd
Seam, Aegfons, wné Suns, by Race avd Hupank Gt [Beresn of the Cansoa 1990)
1ha 1 of 34 $Lalae covapriazs Lione 20 that ad 14 Lergort Nathes Asceican

(For cdditional
results from the

OIG mail survey,
see appendix B.)

ppulBlions 10 stodluie e 034 thae 20 (Rat bas IAe Larpind NEM Amaricas
populations 25 perecwings o the tocnl St porgariations

Lut of [eterilly rrroprian Tribew (34 Fod_ Ref .11 OcL w1

Sarver of 24 Sthig Chiad Wetlare Depan s, Ot of Irspenod Geaersl, Fald 199
HA® indicarem 1At (he Iiormatms wit 201 1vaieblE fram 1 Sthie

Trtber whosr A £aRads o AERIPR Stalcs Atey bees cOuzted b oD Sula

-
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AEPFOMAXE 20 QUESTIONS TOSID TO JOSRPEINE WIRVES ON MARCH 7
BEFORE TEE PRMATE COMMITTNR OM INDIAN AFFAIRS EEARING ON “IBSUER
COMFRONTING INDIAR YOUTH.™

guestion #11 why doea the Adminimtration proposs im its G.X. Bll]
for America'a Workers to conmolidate the JTFA fummar Joka for
Native Awericsn Youth imto & youth grast goes to statea?

ynder the Administration's propogal, there would ke separata
funding for tribal govexrnments, 1ust ag there is now under JTPA.
This is consistent with the President's commitment to tribal
leaders and their independence from State govarnments. Tribal
gavernments currantly have the authority under the Indian
Eaployment, Training, and Related Servicas Demonstration Act to
congzolidate thesn funds with other job training funda into
gystams that best meat their needs. The Adminlstration is
committed to working with tribal governments to promote and
asgist in the use of this authority.

guestion #21 what is the Departasntia position ragarding State
block grants and their potehtial impact on programs aarving
Indiune and Wative Americane?

Consolidating federal funds through block grants is an old
approach that has been tried and failed. For more than thirty
years we have been moving ap and down the federalism ladder
senking to find the right lovel of raeponsiblility and
accountability that will yield success.

wWhen enacted in 1982, JTPA was envisioned and designed as a block
grant to the states, This new approach reducecd the role of the
federal government from préceding programs and enhanced the roie
of States, and retainad a strong role for local level policy and
initiative., However, growing numbers of Teports from the GAO and
oftice of the Inspector General of misuse of federal dollars and
poor performance at the state and local levecl led the Bush
adninistration and a bipartjsan coalition in Cohgress to reassert

federal accountability through a set of new rules and regulations
enacted in 1992. Wwhile an understandable response, the reaction
made JTPA less [lexible.

After 10 yecrs, we have learned that simply shiftini
accountability for enployment and job training services fron the
federal bureaucracy to State burcaucracy will not improve
perforaance. That is why the administration is offering a
different moedel that replacss bureaucratic accountability with a
customer-focusnd systam of accountability based on individual
enmpowcrment, iaproved customer chojce, and provider cospetition.
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Proposais to consolidate Indian pro?ruls with state block grants
undermina the vary assenca of shifting funda, power,
responsibility and accountablility for such prograzs to local
gove nuents, like Indian tribee, which are clomest to the paopla
to t: served.

furthersora, tha special governmant=to-govarnment relationship
between the fedsral government and the tribal nations is founded
on treaty opligations and Bxscutive Orders. The Prasidant during
nis historic meat with Indian leaders at the White Houso last
yasr said that "It 1s the entire govarnment, not siwply the
bepartment of Interior, that has a trust responsibility with
tribhal governsants.® The Department's effortas to maintain the
administration for Indian and employsent and tralning programs ac
the Hational office reatfirms that commitmant.

Questions $3: wdat impect will the Xousa rasolssion of Titla IV~
A, Jantion 401 and Titla II<B, Indian gummer Youth Program hava
on the tribea?

Tha proposed House rescission of the Titla IV=-A Indian and Nativa
American program hy 10% from $64.}1 million to §57.7 million will
maan that ahout 2,700 fawver Native americans will receive
training and supportiva servicea deslgned to provida them with

& ketable skills leading to preductiva, unsubsidized ewploywent.

The rescissions will eiliminate the 1935 and 1996 Titls II-B
Sumzer Youth programsz. The elimination of $15.8 million for
sumzer of 1995 wiil causa over 11,000 Indian Youth residing on
129 federally and state recognized tribal lands to not receive
first-time work experience, job rcadines=s skills training and
school~to-work bridging activities. This same youth,
reprasanting the most eéconomically disadvantagad in the country,
will he denied the opportunity to earn $il millien in wages.
That averageg& about $845 in grossc wages por youth. The effects
tor tha gunmar of 1996 would be aqually savere.

The elimination of summer education and training opportunities
for Indian youth residing on impoverished and is~latad
recervations will further compound the at-risk factors cited by
cvery Administration witnass befora this committaas.
Unfortunately, when fedsrally fundad program services to youth or
adulta are eliminated, the private gector cannot cowpensate for
the loss of program services becauze it im waaX or lacking on
thesa reservations.

Quastion #4: what coordination afforts doas tha Dapartmesnt affact
with othar fadaral agencien sarving Todians and Metiva Amacioans?

The Department continues to participate in a federal inter-
governeental workgroup involving the Dapartments of Interior and
Health and Human Ssrvicea to coordinata the implemantation of

Public Law 102-477, the Indian Employment, Training and Related
Services Demonntration Act. This has resulted in ten (10)

J6
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approved tribal plans to conavlidato and manige owployment and
training preqrame leocally.

This effort has also involved a tribal workgroup representing the
interasts of participating tribes and thosec 6eeking to submit
proposed plans for the dexonstration project. Tha Departmant ix
actively encouraging more tribes to become engaded in
cansolidating faderal exploynent and training programs. Working
closely with the other Departments and tho tribal workgroup has
rosulted in a technical assistance meeting cet for the weex of
March 27 to help tribes wanting to develop and submit "477 plans"
for approval.

Also, the Departments of Bducation and Labor have worked in
collaboration te develop the action plan for carrying out the
grar" procedures for the school-To-Work Opportunities Act of

19 The Indian set-aside portion will fund grants to preparc
I)  n youth for first jobs in high-skili, high-wage carcers and
future post-secondary education and training, Eligible entities
must include tribal organizations responsible for economic
development, cmployment and job training, and education and they
pust involve schools funded by the Burcau of Indian Affairs,
These grants wers announced in a Snlicitation tor Grant Awards on
March 15, 1995. Grant awards will be announced by Junc 30, 1995,
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U. 5. Departnient of Justice

Office of Legislative Affairs

Ofisce of the Astisant Atunsy General Wegnagron, D C 20530

May 3, 1995

The Honorable Dani¢l K. Inouye
Vice-Chairman

Committee on Indian Affairs
United States Semate
Washington, D.C. 20510-6450

Dear Senator Inouye:

This is in response to the questions you submitted on behalf
of Senator Dorgan following the Committee's March 7 hearing on
challengea facing Indian youth.

Question 1; wWhat funding sources are available tao regervations to
combat crime particularly in areas of juvenile justice and child
abuse and neglect?

Anower: The Department, in administering its grant programs, is
committed %o enhancing the capacity of tribes to confront the
problems of crime in Indian communities. The fcllowing programs
are available to assist tribes in addressing the probleme of crime
in Indian Country:

] Tribal Law Enforcement -- The Community Oriented policing
Services (COPS) program was established under the Violent Crime
Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, COPS is committed to
. helping Indian tribes control crime by helping them hire more
B police officers and axpand their law enforcement capacity. In FY
. 1995, 128 tribes have received over $9 million in funding from
rolice hiring grants. Such direct grants to tribes are an
important step toward building tribal law enforcement capacity.

- * . Tribal Courts -- Tribal courts are critical to cfEfective law
v enforcement in Indian Country. The Department has initiated a

Tribal Courts Project. The goal of the project is to assgist tribes
in developing and strengthening their gystema of justice, so that
trikal governments are able to egtablish, maintain, and enforce the
laws that govern Indian lands.
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Tribal court systems are particularly significant in the
handling of casas where children are victims of crime, as well as
where children are offenders. The trikral court system is the
closest -- culturally and physically -- to the victims, offenders,
and their families, and thus adjudication in these courts may nave
the most immediate and profound impact on crime rates in Indian
Country. To reduce crime, it is critical to have an adjudicative,
nyalue-enforcing” institution in the community that can deal with
child abuse, child neglect, and criminal acts committed by youth.

The Department's Tribal Courts Project -- which coordinates
ite activities with the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) -- is
undertaking a number of efforts related to the improvement of
triba: family court and juvenile justice systems. The Project is
about to initiate a Tribal Court-BOJ Partnership Program with
certain tribal governments, which will <coordinate Department
resources aimed at improving trikal systems of justice. The
particular emphasis of the Partnership wiil be family violence and
Juveniie justice. The Department tentatively plans to focus
resources on increased training opportunities for trikal court
judges in these areas, and will support traditional tribal justice
aystems -- such as the Navajo Nation Peacemaker Division -- for the
handiing of juveniie justice issues.

. Domestic Violenca - - No discussion of crime would be complete
without Stressing the tremendsus impact that family violence has on
the urowth and spread of crime. The Violence Against Women ACL,
astablished under the Violent Trime Tontrel and Law Enforcement Act
of 1994, authorizes and appropriates fuads for a grants program to
combat violent «<rimne ajainst women. Thess grants are designed to
develop and strengthen pffective law enforcement strategies to
combat viclent crimes against women and strengthen victim services
1n cases 1nvelving violence against women- The Act stipulates that
4% of the appropricted funds must be reserved for direct grants to
tribal governments. The Office of Justice Programs anticipates
awarding 15-26 vc Tpdian ti:ibes through this discrerionary
pr-graT in FY

L] Bureas of Juastice hssistance (BJAr -- BJA provides form'a
aqirants to staltas teo assi1gt state andl local rriminal  justic:
systems. Trikes are =ligible Lo recerve fundiny from the states
under this progran. In addit:on, aJh l1entatively has planned to
ptovide the following awards and assistance directly to tribes and
. ribtal organizaticms: plann:ing grauts to three reservatiens for

establisanen: of a conprehens:ve plan to reduce crime, domest ic
wiclence, and dvug aicohul abuse: funding fcr the improvement of
tribal court systems, including the possible establishment of a
pilot program to lncrease “he effectiveness of presecutions of
~hild sexual aund physical abuse; supgor! for training and technical
assistance for programs in Indian Country offered by the Of{ice of
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Victims of Crimes and Bureau of Indian Affairs Law Enforcement; and
work with the Boys and Girls Clubs of America to explore che
feasibility of establishing sites in Indian Country.

. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (QJJDP}
-- 0JJDP manages the Native American pass-through provision of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Act. In addition, 0OJJIDP provides
training, technical assistance, and granc funds to cribes and
institucions for the prevention and treatment of juvenile
delinguency.

Currently, oOJJDP is engaged in, or planning, geveral
initiatives in Indian Country. OJJDP is providing assistance to
the Pueblo of Jemez, Navajo Nation, Gila River Indian Community,
and the Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indiana to develop community-
based alternatives to secure detention and incarceration
facilities.

In FY 1995, OJJDP plans to identify a pite in Indian Country
fo: one of five "Safe Futures® programs. Safe Futures will focus
on implementing a comprehensive delinguency prevention and
intervention program. Thia program will enhance public safety and
provide a continuum of care for at-risk and delinquent youtch.

. Office of Victims of Crimg_ (QVC} -- OVC worka with federal,
state, and tribal authorities to support programs tc compensate and
assist victims of crimes. In addition, OVC offers training for
tribal, atate, and federal law enforcement officers, prosecutors,
and social service and mental health staff through the biennial
Indian Nations Conference.

Question 2: What, if any, =fforts are underway to increaae the
number of progsecutors who handle these types of cases?

Answar: The prosecution of violent crimes against victims in Indian
Country is one of the Department's higheat enforcement prioritiea,
egpecially where the victims are children. The United States
Attorneys' Offices and the Criminal Divisian -- in conjunction wich
the FBI, the BIA, and the tribes -- have taken several important
steps aimed at improving the Department's responsiveness to crime
and crime victims in Indian Country.

1. Federal Frogecutiopn of Crime in Indian Country
United States Attorneye' Offices with significant Indian

jurisdiction have focused con how to provide better service to the
Native American population.

L) Spegial Agsistants for Indian Affairs -- The Department has
encouraged United States Attorneys to appoint special asaistants
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prosecutorial repources must be mirrored by an increase in law
enforcement personnel.,

L] Law Enforcement Cooperation -- During FY 1995 and FY 1996, the
United Statea Attorneys will encourage the further development of
tribal police and law enforcement programs and aggressive cross-
depignation of tribal police with BIA and other appropriate
policing auchorities.

L Additional Federal Law Enforcement Pergonne] -- Twenty-seven
additional FBI agents will be aBsigned to supplement the agents
currently conducting investigations in Indian Country.

L Tribal /Federal Cooperative Programs -- Because of the complex
jurisdictional issues and the expanse of Indian Country, the FBI
works with tribea to develop cooperative law enforcement effeorts.
These efforts include the initiation of Operation Safe Trails in
cooperation with the Navajo Nation's Department of Law Enforcement.
This program, which is designed to address major crime and gexual
abuse in Indian Country, is staffed Y a task force of FBI Special
Agents and Navajo Nation Police Officers. FBI field offices in
other areas are exploring the possibility of implementing Safe
Traile programs. 1In addition, the FBI has developed filot programs
€O train tribal police in FBI facilities. The FBI plans to expand
its programs and training efforts to include regional training
programs for tribal police officers.

I hope this information is helpful. Please contact cthis
office if we may be of further assistance.
Sinchre
4

Kent Markus
Acting Assistant Attorney Qeneral

O
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